
 

 
PLAN COMMISSION / ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

AGENDA 
  

Thursday, September 22, 2022                                                                         Frankfort Village Hall        
6:30 P.M.                                                                                               432 W. Nebraska Street (Board Room) 
 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Roll Call 

 
3. Approval of Minutes of September 8, 2022 

 
4. Public Hearing:  240 Center Road – Oltman Residence (Ref #104) 

Public Hearing Request: Construction of a new single-family home for the property located at 240 Center 
Road, zoned R-2, requiring 4 variations. (PIN: 19-09-28-227-013-0000)  

 
5. Public Hearing: 21800 S. La Grange Road, Suite B – Proposed Pickleball (Ref #105) 

Public Hearing Request: Special Use Permit for an indoor recreation use in the I-2 (General Industrial) zone 
district.  (PIN: 19-09-28-102-002-0000) 
 

6. Public Hearing: 8531 W. Lincoln Highway – Oasis Assisted Living (Ref #106) 
Request: Special Use Permit for an assisted living facility. Other requests: Final Plat of Subdivision (PIN: 
19-09-23-300-031-0000).  

 
7. Public Comments 
 
8. Village Board & Committee Updates  

 
9. Other Business 

 
10. Attendance Confirmation (October 13, 2022) 

 
11. Adjournment 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
All applicants are advised to be present when the meeting is called to order.  Agenda items are generally reviewed in the order 
shown on the agenda, however, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals reserves the right to amend the agenda and consider 
items in a different order. The Commission may adjourn its meeting to another day prior to consideration of all agenda items.  All 
persons interested in providing public testimony are encouraged to do so.  If you wish to provide public testimony, please come 
forward to the podium and state your name for the record and address your comments and questions to the Chairperson. 



1 
 

 

 

MINUTES 

MEETING OF VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT PLAN 
COMMISSION / ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

        September 8, 2022–VILLAGE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING    

 432 W. NEBRASKA STREET 

Call to Order:   Chair Rigoni called the meeting to order at 6:31 PM 

Commissioners Present: Chair Maura Rigoni, Brian James, Will Markunas, Nichole 
Schaefer, Dan Knieriem 

Commissioners Absent: David Hogan, Jessica Jakubowski 

Staff Present: Director of Community and Economic Development Mike 
Schwarz, Planner Drew Duffin 

Elected Officials Present:  None 

A. Approval of the Minutes from August 25, 2022 

Motion (#1): Approval of the minutes, as presented, from August 25, 2022 

Motion by: Knieriem  Seconded by: Markunas 

Approved: (5-0) 

Chair Rigoni swore in any members of the public who wished to speak at the meeting. 

B. Public Hearing: 25 Carpenter Street – Kerley Residence (Ref #104) 

Drew Duffin presented the staff report.  

Chair Rigoni invited the applicant to the podium.   

The applicant had nothing to add to the staff report. 

Chair Rigoni asked if any of the commissioners had any initial questions for staff or the 
applicant. 

Commissioner Knieriem asked the applicant if there was any plan for expansion to the 
north. 

 
 



2 
 

John Kerley responded no. 

April Jackson, owner of 21 Carpenter Street approached the podium.  She stated that she 
never received a Certified Letter. She heard about it from her neighbor. She received an 
email from Chris Gruba with information about the project.  She stated that the plans look 
great but there is a runoff problem in this area. She stated that there is no storm sewer 
down Carpenter Street. 

Chair Rigoni stated that the PC/ZBA does not review engineering and that the 
engineering would be reviewed as part of the building permit review. 

Ms. Jackson stated that 35 Carpenter has basement flooding. She added that there are a 
lot of water problems in the area. She added that the area where the Village removed 
homes had a higher elevation than the homes which remain in that area.  

Leah Riley of 30 W. Bowen stated that there is one manhole near her driveway. Once that 
sewer was put in it helped somewhat.  She stated that the applicant is proposing a lovely 
home and it will increase the values of the homes in the neighborhood. 

Chair Rigoni asked if there were any other audience members wishing to speak.  There 
was no response. 

Motion (#2): Motion to close the public hearing.  

Motion by: Schaeffer   Seconded by: James 

Approved: (5-0) 

Commissioner Knieriem asked if there would be a fence. 

John Kerley responded yes, some type of picket fence. 

Commissioner Knieriem asked if there was an addition going back to the east. 

The applicant responded there would be. 

Commissioner Schaeffer stated that this is a typical non-conforming lot, and the proposed 
front addition would line up with the neighboring properties. 

Commissioner James thanked staff for the additional information and said that the 
presentation slides showing the approximate dimensions of the neighboring building 
setbacks were very helpful. 

Commissioner Markunas stated that the commission reviewed this a lot during the 
workshop and thanked staff for the additional information. 



3 
 

Chair Rigoni asked staff to make sure that the drainage concern is conveyed to the 
Building Department. 

Mike Schwarz responded that this would be done both in the minutes and verbally. 

Commissioner Markunas asked the applicant if there would be any other lot 
improvements. 

John Kerley responded no. 

Motion (#3): Recommend that the Village Board approve the request for a variation from 
Article 6, Section B, Part 1 to reduce the required front yard setback from 30 feet to 10.2 
feet in the R-2 Single-Family Residential District located at 25 Carpenter Street in 
accordance with the submitted plans, public testimony, and Findings of Fact. 

Motion by: Schaeffer   Seconded by: Markunas 

Approved: (5-0) 

Motion (#4): Recommend that the Village Board approve the request for a variation from 
Article 6, Section B, Part 1 to reduce the required side yard setback from a total of 25 feet 
with no less than 10 feet on each side to a total of 19.4 feet with no less than 9.1 feet on 
each side in the R-2 Single-Family Residential District located at 25 Carpenter Street in 
accordance with the submitted plans, public testimony, and Findings of Fact.   
 
Motion by: Schaeffer   Seconded by: James 

Approved: (5-0) 

Motion (#5): Recommend that the Village Board approve the request for a variation from 
Article 6, Section B, Part 1 to increase the maximum allowable lot coverage from 20% to 
29% in the R-2 Single-Family Residential District located at 25 Carpenter Street in 
accordance with the submitted plans, public testimony, and Findings of Fact. 
 
Motion by: Markunas   Seconded by: James 

Approved: (5-0) 

Motion (#6): Recommend that the Village Board approve the request for a variation from 
Article 6, Section B, Part 2(g)(2) of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance to permit 
the use of non-masonry siding on the first floor of an existing home in conjunction with a 
first-floor addition the R-2 Single-Family Residential District located at 25 Carpenter 
Street in accordance with the submitted plans, public testimony, and Findings of Fact. 

Motion by: Schaeffer   Seconded by: James 



4 
 

Approved: (5-0) 

Motion (#7): Recommend that the Village Board approve the Plat of Resubdivision, 
subject to any necessary technical revisions prior to recording. 

Motion by: Markunas   Seconded by: Schaeffer 

Approved: (5-0) 

Chair Rigoni stated that this matter would likely be scheduled for the September 19th 
Village Board meeting, but the applicant and any interested residents should confirm this 
with staff or check the Village website for the agenda posting. 

C. Public Hearing: 20871 S. La Grange Road – Facen4Ward (Ref #105) 

Drew Duffin presented the staff report and clarified the correct motion. 

Chair Rigoni invited the applicants to the podium.   

The applicant, Kristen Facen, approached the podium and stated she had nothing to add 
to the staff report. 

Chair Rigoni asked if any of the commissioners had any initial questions for staff or the 
applicant. 

Chair Rigoni asked the applicant what the applicant expected average attendance would 
be for each event. 

The applicant responded 50 people. 

Chair Rigoni asked about the hours, since the staff report suggested that the venue would 
be closed on Thursdays. 

The applicant responded the business would be open from Monday through Thursday 
from 10:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. and from Friday through Sunday from 10:00 a.m. to 10:00 
p.m. 

Commissioner Knieriem asked the applicant if there would be an attendant at all times. 

The applicant responded yes there would be. 

Commissioner Knieriem who are the adjacent neighbors. 

Drew Duffin responded that Vibe Nutrition to the east was the only adjacent neighbor at 
the moment, since the other tenant space to the west is currently vacant. 

Commissioner James asked staff if they knew the hours for the adjacent businesses. 



5 
 

Drew Duffin responded that he did not know offhand. 

Chair Rigoni asked if there were any other questions or comments from the commission.  
There was no response. 

Chair Rigoni asked if there were any audience members wishing to speak.  There was no 
response. 
 
Motion (#8): Motion to close the public hearing.  
Motion by: James  Seconded by: Schaeffer 

Approved: (5-0) 

Commissioner Markunas asked about the bathroom. 

The applicant responded that last time there was only one bathroom but this time there 
will be two. 

Commissioner James asked the applicant to describe the games. 

The applicant responded they would have video game consoles such as PlayStation, 
Xbox, etc. 

Commissioner Schaeffer thanked the applicant for the information. 

Commissioner Knieriem echoed that comment. 

Chair Rigoni mentioned that there was recently another small event venue which came to 
the Plan Commission in the Downtown area. She asked the commissioners to consider 
any appropriate or necessary conditions. 

Commissioner Markunas stated it was important that they remain consistent. 

Commissioner Knieriem stated that soundproofing should be installed up to the ceiling of 
the building to minimize the amount of noise which might spill over into the neighboring 
businesses.  He also stated that there should be no live entertainment. 

Chair stated that the applicants were not seeking a liquor license so there was probably no 
need for any condition on alcohol. 

There was some discussion about a condition regarding the hours of operation. 

Commissioner Markunas stated that he did not have an issue with the business hours of 
operation, since they fall within the Village’s allowed hours of operation. 



6 
 

There was some discussion about whether there should be a condition based on what was 
stated in the business plan narrative. Such a condition would mirror the language in the 
agreement submitted by the applicant. 

There was some discussion about whether the contract in the packet should be a 
condition. The commissioners agreed that such a condition would be too binding should 
the applicant ever change their client contract. 

Motion (#9): Recommend that the Village Board approve a special use for indoor 
entertainment (event space) at 20871 S. La Grange Road, in accordance with the 
reviewed plans, public testimony, and Findings of Fact, with the following conditions:  

1. Soundproofing on the east and west walls shall be installed to the ceiling of 
the building. 

2. Loud music must end by 8:00 p.m. from Sunday through Thursday and by 
10:00 p.m. on Friday and Saturday.  

 
Motion by: Markunas  Seconded by: Schaeffer 
 
Approved: (5-0) 
 

D. Public Hearing: 10235 W. Lincoln Highway – Opa! (Ref #106) 

Mike Schwarz presented the staff report. 

Chair Rigoni invited the applicant to the podium to provide a summary of the request.   

The architect, Steve Francis of Linden Group Architects, gave a summary. He explained 
that they submitted revised elevations per the comments they received at the workshop. 
He also clarified that anytime masonry is added on to an existing structure, the technical 
term is “veneer,” hence the label on the submitted plans. The new brick, shingles, and 
other architectural details would match with the existing building. The applicant also 
proposed installing openable windows to allow open air in good weather. The previously 
proposed deck was changed to a patio to match design of existing patio which was to be 
enclosed. The light fixtures on the existing patio would be repurposed for the new patio. 
The applicant had already changed their hours of operation to address parking concerns 
on-site. Parking congestion was worst during lunch hours, so the idea was that opening in 
the afternoon would improve parking conditions for the other nearby businesses. 

Chair Rigoni asked if any of the commissioners had any initial questions for staff or the 
applicant. 

Commissioner Markunas asked if the applicant would use full size brick for the 
enclosure. 

The architect responded that they would.  



7 
 

Commissioner Schaeffer asked staff if parking requirements could be calculated based on 
the restaurant’s available seating rather than using square footage.  

Staff responded that the parking regulations were set by the Zoning Ordinance, and that 
the calculation for a restaurant is based on square footage and the number of employees. 
In recent cases, the Plan Commission was made aware of the option to either recommend 
approval of parking variations or grant parking adjustments based on the available shared 
or joint parking on-site.  

Commissioner Knieriem asked staff if there was a shared parking agreement for the 
Brookside Commons Office Centre PUD, which Opa! is a part of.  

Staff responded that they are not aware of any formal or legal documents for shared 
parking, but the individual property owners may have documentation given that they all 
share and maintain the parking lot.  Staff also stated that the applicant may know 
otherwise or be able to provide such documentation.  The parking lot is already shared by 
the various property owners. The Zoning Ordinance provides that where multiple 
businesses share parking, the Plan Commission may grant parking adjustments if 
sufficient evidence is presented to them.  

Commissioner Knieriem asked whether the shared parking was an informal agreement. 

Staff responded that they believe that it is unless documentation can be provided to 
demonstrate otherwise.  

Commissioner Schaeffer asked whether the informal shared parking agreement was only 
for the spaces within the Brookside Commons Office Centre PUD or for the three parking 
lots for the Brookside Commons Office Centre PUD, the Brookside Commons West 
PUD, and the Brookside Office Condos PUD.  

Staff responded that based on their research, as far as they can tell, there is no formal 
agreement for shared parking among the three separately approved PUDs (Brookside 
Commons office Centre, Brookside Commons West, Brookside Office Condos). Staff 
believes that the different property owners within the Brookside Commons Office Centre 
PUD, via their owners’/tenants’ association, understand that they collectively share their 
parking lot. However, staff was unaware of any formal agreement between the three 
PUDs.  

Chair Rigoni asked if there were any comments from the public. 

Chime Airere, a local tenant, approached the stand. He expressed his thanks to Opa! for 
changing its hours of operation. He asked whether the change in hours was temporary or 
permanent. When the applicant spoke about changing his hours, it sounded like a 
voluntary decision which could be reversed in the future.  



8 
 

Chair Rigoni responded that there was a condition in the recommended motion which 
would be bound to the property. That would prevent the applicant from changing his 
hours back without approval. Any future business would be bound to that condition as 
well unless the Plan Commission approved it. 

Chime thanked the Plan Commission for the clarification and commented that he thought 
the change in hours was positive.  

Motion (#10): To close the public hearing. 

Motion by: Schaeffer  Seconded by: James 

Approved: (5-0) 

Chair Rigoni asked the commissioners if they had any comments.  

Commissioner Markunas noted that the Plan Commission’s main concern at the 
workshop was parking. He thanked the applicant for changing his hours of operation. 
Since most of the other businesses in the PUD are medical offices, tend to close around 
4:00, and are not open over the weekend, it seems that the parking demands for the 
different uses would face less overlap.  

Commissioner James agreed with Commissioner Markunas’ comments regarding the 
changes in hours. He stated that he assumed the tables on the proposed patio area would 
only be seasonal. One of the concerns he had was with where snow would be stored in 
the winter. He believed that some parking spaces would be used for snow storage, which 
would result in a worse parking situation in the winter. If the patio seating was seasonal, 
his concerns over winter parking availability were addressed.  

The architect noted that most snow was stored in or near the detention pond in front of 
the building, so very few, if any, parking spaces would be filled with snow.  

The applicant, George Karuntzos, echoed the architect’s comment and stated that snow is 
removed quickly so they should not lose any of those spots. 

Commissioner Schaeffer stated that she liked that the proposed brick would match the 
existing brick. She had no issue with parking and seasonal seating. 

Commissioner Knieriem asked if when the restaurant opened at 3:00 p.m., whether the 
applicant expected restaurant patrons right at opening or if the dinner rush would not 
begin until later in the evening.  

The applicant responded that staff arrived at 2:30 p.m., but that the restaurant didn’t get 
busy until around 5:00 p.m., or sometimes earlier in the colder months. He noted that he 
lost a lot of business in recent weeks changing the opening hours to 3:00 p.m. It would 
not be viable to open later than 3:00 p.m.  



9 
 

Commissioner Knieriem asked if the applicant had experienced any financial loss from 
opening later.  

The applicant stated that changing his hours was a gamble, but it may balance out in the 
long run. Having the additional patio seating may help make up the difference.  

Commissioner Knieriem asked if the applicant’s restaurant was full on the weekends for 
dinner and what are the current wait times? 

The applicant responded that they were full lately, with an average 40-minute wait time 
on the weekends.  It was about a 2 hour wait on the weekends over the past winter.  The 
proposed outdoor seating would help meet demand during the weekends during the non-
winter months.  

Commissioner Knieriem noted that many downspouts on the restaurant were 
disconnected, which could cause water damage. 

The applicant said he had never seen an issue and that he was unaware of the 
disconnections. 

Commissioner Knieriem stated he was there a few days prior, and he believed water was 
able flow openly over the property because of the disconnections. There may be some 
long-term damage the applicant couldn’t see.  

The applicant noted that the previous owner took bad care, and that he had done a lot of 
work to clean it up. Returning to hours of operation, the applicant asked if he would be 
able to open the restaurant earlier for special occasions or events.  

Chair Rigoni stated that based on the way the suggested motion was written in the staff 
report, the condition for hours of operation was for every day of the week. She believed 
that the condition should be a discussion point since there was room for flexibility on the 
weekends. She noted that she was puzzled by the design of the PUD, and that it seemed 
like the properties in question were not initially intended to be used as a restaurant. She 
appreciated the later opening time but wished that the outdoor seating and the major PUD 
change could be voted on as separate motions. The Plan Commission had discussions 
with other applicants in the past who were adamantly told to make no additions to their 
spaces which would make parking worse. She felt like the proposed outdoor patio seating 
was pushing the line. She understood where the applicant was coming from, but the Plan 
Commission needed to be consistent in its recommendations. The enclosure was a 
different mater, since the seating area already existed, but the inclusion of the additional 
outdoor seating on the patio was something that she struggled with. She asked the 
commissioners if they felt they could regulate the later opening hours to only include a 
limitation on weekdays and allow the applicant flexibility on the weekend. 



10 
 

Commissioner Knieriem noted that the applicant was not asking for it, but that he was 
willing to make that change.  

There was some discussion on the wording of the condition.  

Commissioner Knieriem asked whether there was any need to limit the hours on the 
weekend, or whether they should not mention the weekend in their condition at all.  

Chair Rigoni responded that they would give that flexibility to the owner by not 
mentioning the weekend. She asked if there were any other comments. 

There were none. 

Chair Rigoni asked staff to verify that the proposed brick was full-sized, and not just a 
veneer in the sense of a thin layer on top of the main structure.  

The project architect confirmed the brick veneer would be full-sized. They asked if the 
Plan Commission was comfortable with veneer note on plans, knowing that the architect 
said they intended to use full bricks. 

Chair Rigoni stated she was comfortable with that. She asked the other commissioners 
their opinions. 

There was general agreement among the other Commissioners  

Chair Rigoni asked if there were any other comments. 

There were none. 

Motion (#11):  Recommend to the Village Board to approve the Major PUD Change to 
Brookside Commons, in accordance with the reviewed plans and public testimony, 
conditioned on final engineering approval and that the restaurant shall not open before 
3:00 p.m., Monday through Friday.  
 
Motion by: Knieriem   Seconded by: Schaeffer 

Approved: (4-1, Chair Rigoni voted no) 

Chair Rigoni stated that she only voted no because of the proposed patio and additional 
seating. If the patio was a separate motion from the enclosure, she would have voted in 
favor of the applicant.  

E. Public Comments 

There were none. 

F. Village Board & Committee Updates 



11 
 

Schwarz noted that the following matters that previously came before the PC/ZBA were 
approved by the Village Board at its meeting on September 6: 

• Little Caesars Special Use Permit for a carry-out restaurant at 20245 S. La Grange 
Road – the ordinance was approved. 

G. Other Business 

Chair Rigoni asked why people at the Brookside Commons PUD parked in areas that 
were not designated as parking spots. She stated that the situation was getting out of 
hand. 

Mike Schwarz noted that he had been in contact with the property owner to the east of 
Opa! and would bring his application to the Plan Commission as a workshop in the near 
future. The property owner has been made aware of the problem of people parking on his 
property illegally and was told to stop it. Staff would remind him of the issue.   

H. Attendance Confirmation (September 8th, 2022) 

Chair Rigoni asked the Commissioners to notify staff if they will not be in attendance on 
September 22nd, and to notify staff once they knew they could not attend.  

Motion (#12): Adjournment 8:10 P.M. 

Motion by: Schaeffer   Seconded by: Knieriem 

Unanimously approved by voice vote. 

Approved September 22nd, 2022 

As Presented_____ As Amended_____ 

_____________________/s/ Maura Rigoni, Chair 

_____________________/s/ Secretary 



1 
 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA                                                                                                                                                                                                   S                               September 22, 2022 

 
Project: Oltman Residence  
Meeting Type:  Public Hearing  
Request: Four (4) Variances for proposed single-family home 
Location: 240 Center Road 
Applicant:  Gander Builders  
Prop. Owner:  Dustin Oltman   
Representative: Jarrett Lecas 
 
Site Details 
 

Lot Size: 38,350 sq. ft. (0.88 acres)                             Figure 1. Location Map     
PIN: 19-09-28-227-013-0000 
Existing Zoning:  R-2   
Proposed Zoning: N/A 
Buildings / Lots: 1 house w/ attached garage 
Proposed house: 3,493 square feet 
Building Height:  31’ 1 ¼” 
 
 
 
 
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 
Project Summary  
 

The applicant, Jarrett Lecas, seeks to construct a 3,493 square-foot house on the vacant property at 240 Center 
Road for the Oltman family.  A house formerly existed on this site but has since been demolished and cleared.  
 
The proposed house would require four (4) variances:  
 

1. To permit non-masonry siding that covers less than 100% of the 1st floor.  The applicant is proposing a 
mixture of three primary materials, including 4” Hardie Board lap siding (wood composite), ChamClad 
(PVC with wood appearance) siding and painted white brick.  

2. Metal roofs are not permitted on single family homes except as accent features, such as roof areas above 
bay windows.  The applicant is proposing a mix of metal and shingle roof material over the primary 
structure.  

3. To permit a driveway serving a side-loaded garage to be located 1’ from the side property line, whereas 4’ 
is required.  

4. To permit a driveway serving a side-loaded garage to have a turning radius of 25’, whereas 26’ is required.  
 
 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject Property     Residential Single-Family R-2 

North Residential  Single-Family R-2 

South  Residential Single-Family R-2 

East Residential Single-Family R-2 

West Residential Single-Family R-2 



2 
 

Attachments 
1. Location Maps, prepared by staff (VOF GIS) scales 1:2,500 and 1:1,000 
2. Plat of Survey of existing site, prepared by Studnicka and Associates, Ltd. dated 12/17/15 
3. Color rendering of front building elevation with primary materials listed, received September 15, 2022 
4. ChamClad informational brochure from Internet 
5. Chamclad warranty brochure from Internet 
6. Email from applicant (website for ChamClad), September 7, 2022 
7. Variance findings of fact, submitted by applicant 
8. PC-ZBA meeting minutes excerpt from August 25, 2022 (workshop meeting)  
9. Photographs of property, taken by staff on August 17, 2022 
10. Site Plan, received by staff on September 1, 2022 
11. Elevation drawings, received by staff on September 15, 2022 
12. Floorplans, received by staff on July 7, 2022 

    
Analysis 
 

Background:  

A workshop was held on this project on August 25th, 2022.  At that time, three (3) variances were sought for a side 
yard setback, 1st floor building materials and a metal roof on the primary structure.  At the time, the Plan 
Commission had concerns regarding the side yard setback and the appearance and longevity of the proposed 
metal longboard siding.  An excerpt of the meeting minutes from the workshop have been included with this 
report.   

In response to the concerns raised during the workshop, the plans were revised, moving the house further back on 
the lot approximately 19’ to allow for the required 10’ side yard setback.  However, the driveway was shifted to 
the south, and is now 1’ away from the south side property line, whereas 4’ is required for driveways that serve 
side-loaded garages, requiring a variance.  The driveway also has an undersized turning radius.  Driveways serving 
side-loaded garages must have a minimum turning radius of at least 26’, whereas 25’ is provided, requiring 
another variance.   

The original variances for 1st floor building materials and roofing materials have remained.  However, the workshop 
plans illustrated 6” metal longboard siding, which has since been replaced by “ChamClad” siding with a faux wood 
finish, which is a high-grade PVC siding.  The originally requested Hardie Board siding remains unchanged.  A copy 
of the manufacturer specifications for the ChamClad siding have been included with this report.  Physical building 
samples will also be provided at the public hearing.  

Table of Dimensional Requirements:  

 R-2 Single-Family 
Detached Residential 
District Requirement 

 
Subject Property 

 
Comments 

Minimum Lot Size  15,000 SF 38,350 SF Conforming 
Minimum Lot Width 100’ 100’ Conforming 
Minimum Lot Depth 150’ 370.4’ Conforming 
Minimum Required Yards 
(Setbacks) 

• 30’ front 
• Total 25’; min. 10’ 

on either side 
• 30’ rear 

• 59.6’ front 
• 10.1’ & 26’ sides 
• 245’ (+/-) rear 

Complies 

Maximum Height 35’ 31’ 1.25” Complies 
Maximum Lot Coverage 20% (for a two-story 

house) 
4.6% (1,756 SF)  Complies 

Maximum Impervious 
Coverage 

40% >40% Complies 

Maximum Rear Yard  30% 0% Complies 



3 
 

Coverage 
Minimum Gross Floor Area  2,600 SF (for a two-

story) 
3,493 SF Complies 

Minimum Basement Size 80% of the ground floor  100% Complies 
 

General comments regarding revised plans:  

Staff offers the following points for discussion:  

1. The R-2 zone district requires a minimum lot size of 15,000 square feet, 100’ width and 150’ depth.  The 
existing lot is 38,350 square feet in area, 100’ wide and approximately 370.4’ deep and is therefore 
conforming regarding lot size and width.  The lot does narrow slightly toward the middle of the lot, to 
98.3’ wide, before flaring out to 110’ wide along the rear property line.  The house is located near the 
narrowest point of the lot.  

2. The Zoning Ordinance requires that all houses in the R-2 zone district provide a 10’ minimum side yard 
setback (total of 25’ on both sides).  The proposed house would be constructed 10.1’ from the north side 
property line and 25.5’ from the south side property line, meeting this requirement.   

3. The Zoning Ordinance requires that all houses in the R-2 zone district have the 1st floor entirely 
constructed of masonry (Article 6, Section B, Part 2 (g)(2)).  The proposed house would be constructed of 
three primary materials: ChamClad siding (PVC with faux wood finish), 4” Hardie Board lap siding (wood 
composite) and painted brick, requiring a variance.  The proposed ChamClad siding has a treated surface 
that closely resembles natural wood.  To staff’s knowledge, this material has not been used on new 
construction in Frankfort.    

4. The Zoning Ordinance prohibits metal roofs on single-family homes except for accent features above bay 
windows (Article 6, Section B, Part 4 (i)).  The proposed house would have both a metal roof and shingled 
roof over the primary structure, requiring a variance.  The metal vs. shingle material is about an even split.  

5. The Zoning Ordinance requires that all garages over 3 cars in size be side-loaded.  The proposed 4-car 
garage is side-loaded to comply with this requirement.  The garage itself is 1,134 square feet in area.  

6. The Zoning Ordinance permits a maximum lot coverage of 20% for two-story homes in the R-2 zone 
district.  The proposed house with attached garage amounts to 1,756 square feet, which is approximately 
4.6% of the lot, complying with this requirement.  There are two existing accessory structures (a shed and 
a barn) measuring 257 SF and 496 SF, although these are proposed to be demolished.  If these structures 
remained after the house was constructed, the lot coverage would be approximately 6.5%.  

7. There would be five (5) trees removed to construct the new house.  Of these trees, four (4) are classified 
as “preservation trees” per the Landscape Ordinance, including three hackberry trees (42”, 8”, 8” 
diameters) and one oak tree (6” diameter).  Preservation trees must be mitigated on-site at a 1”:1” ratio 
of tree caliper (non-preservation trees can be removed without penalty).  Preservation trees must be 
replaced with one of the “overstory tree” species as listed in Appendix A of the Landscape Ordinance.  
Replacement trees shall be at least 2.5” caliper size upon planting.  In this instance, a total of 64” of tree 
diameter would be removed and need to be replaced on-site.  If the applicant chooses to plant new trees 
that are 2.5” in diameter, a total of 26 trees would need to be planted on-site.  If trees larger than 2.5” 
caliper were planted, the total number of replacement trees would be less.  The site plans do not 
illustrate the location, type and size of any replacement trees.  

Page 11 of the Landscape Ordinance states that “Village staff may vary the number of replacement trees 
required depending on the desirability of the existing tree”.  Staff has included site photos of the trees that 
would be removed.  If the Plan Commission is of the opinion that any of the preservation trees do not 



4 
 

need to be replaced, in whole or in part, staff asks that this be noted during the public hearing.  For 
example, the Plan Commission could recommend to staff that only 32” of tree diameter replacement is 
needed instead of 64” based upon the desirability of the existing trees.  In absence of any 
recommendation from the Plan Commission, staff intends to require the total tree replacement as per the 
Landscape Ordinance and will request a tree planting plan from the applicant prior to the issuance of a 
building permit.  

Standards for Variations 
 
For reference during the public hearing, Article 3, Section B, Part 3 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists 
“findings” or “standards” that the Zoning Board of Appeals must use to evaluate every variation request.  
 

a. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall not vary the provisions of this Ordinance as authorized in this Article 3, 
Section B, unless they have made findings based upon the evidence presented to it in the following cases:  

 
1. That the property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under the 

conditions allowed by the regulations in that zone;  
 

2. That the plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances;  
 

3. That the variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  
 

b. For the purpose of supplementing the above standards, the Zoning Board of Appeals, in making this 
determination, whenever there are practical difficulties or hardships, shall also take into consideration the 
extent to which the following facts, favorable to the applicant, have been established by the evidence:  

 
1. That the particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical conditions of the specific property 

involved will bring a particular hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from a mere inconvenience, if 
the strict letter of the regulations was carried out;  

 
2. That the conditions upon which the petition for variation is based would not be applicable, generally, to 

other property within the same zoning classification;  
 

3. That the purpose of the variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more money out of the 
property;  

 
4. That the alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by any person presently having an interest in 

the property;  
 

5. That the granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or unduly injurious to other 
property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located;  

 
6. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at 

variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already 
constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the 
applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the neighborhood;  

 
7. That the proposed variation will not impair an adequate supply of air to adjacent property, substantially 

increase the danger of fire, otherwise endanger the public safety or substantially diminish or impair 
property values within the neighborhood. 
 

 
 
 
 



5 
 

Affirmative Motions 
 

1. Recommend the Village Board approve the variance request for first-floor building materials to allow 
non-masonry siding on the property located at 240 Center Road, in accordance with the reviewed 
plans, public testimony and Findings of Fact.  

 
2. Recommend the Village Board approve a variance from Article 6, Section B, Part 4 (i) to permit a 

metal roof on a residential structure, in accordance with the reviewed plans, public testimony and 
Findings of Fact.  

 
3. Recommend the Village Board approve a variance from Article 6, Section B, Part 2(i) to permit a 

driveway serving a side-loaded garage to be 1’ from the side property line, whereas 4’ is required, in 
accordance with the reviewed plans, public testimony and Findings of Fact.  

 
4. Recommend the Village Board approve a variance from Article 5, Section D, Part 3(b) to permit a 

driveway serving a side-loaded garage to have a turning radius of 25’, whereas 26’ is required, in 
accordance with the reviewed plans, public testimony and Findings of Fact.   

 
 
 
 



OA
K 

ST

CE
NT

ER
 R

D

LIN
DE

N 
DR

AS
H 

ST

PFAFF DR

PACIFIC ST

UTAH ST E SAUK TRL

OREGON ST

W SAUK TRL

CHURCH ST

CANADIAN RR

SANGMEISTER RD
0 250 500125

Feet

µ
240 Center Road - Proposed House (variances)



CE
NT

ER
 R

D

AS
H 

ST

0 100 20050
Feet

µ
240 Center Road - Proposed House (variances)





 

 

 



 

 

 



TESTING
 ü ICCES ESR 4560
 ü CCMC 14323-R
 ü ASTM D696-16
 ü ASTM D635-18
 ü CAN/CGSB - 41.24.-95
 ü CAN/ULC S102-2018
 ü ASTM G154-16
 ü ASTM D790

 ü ASTM G155
 ü ASTM E330/E330-14  

 PROCEDURE B Q50<0.85
 ü RILEM TC -127-MS 

 (ACID RAIN)
 ü CAN/ULC S134
 ü NFPA 285
 ü NFPA 268

THE ChamClad AdvAnTAgE
 ü LEED Compliant

 ü Made in Canada from 100% recycled PVC

 ü 50 Year Warranty

 ü Canada and US Distribution

 ü UV Protected

 ü Impervious to Water Absorption, Bacteria and Mold

 ü Low Maintenance

 ü Easy to Install, No Special Tools Required, Lightweight

 ü High Impact Resistance

 ü Short Lead Times

 ü One Profile Gives Two Looks: V-Groove and U-Channel

ChamClad.COm

Siding & Soffit
inStALL VidEoS

EXTERIOR &
InTERIOR WALLS, 
SOFFIT, CEILIng

& TRIM

ChamClad
by Chameleon

 Transforming Spaces 

ChamClad.COm
for more information contact

us at info@chamclad.com

ChamClad
by Chameleon

 Transforming Spaces 

10235 184 St nW

Edmonton AB t5S 2J4

780-454-4430

May 11, 2022



ThE ChamClad WaY
Chamclad exterior and interior walls, 
soffit and ceiling panels are transforming 
architectural design and building practices 
across north America.  
 
our Canadian made product is designed 
to be the ideal choice for applications 
requiring durability, low maintenance and 
easy installation – with no special tools 
required. 

our films have 35 years proven 
performance in the EXtERioR industry 
and offer the most realistic woodgrains, 
metallic, and anodized finishes in the 
market. Additional benefits include 
superior UV protection and weathering 
resistance, colour stability, low heat 
buildup, and scratch and graffiti resistance. 

ExTEriOr Wall & SOffiT 
Cladding SYSTEm

1 pAnEL 2 LookS 
U-ChAnnEL, V-gRooVE

12” intERioR WALL & CEiLing 
pAnELS SEAMLESS

pRofiLE 12’ & 20’ LEngthS

f tRiM 12’ LEngthS1.5” 2pC. h tRiM
pVC: 12’ LEngthS

UniVERSAL J tRiM
pVC: 12’ & 20’ LEngthS

 2pC 1.5” oUtSidE CoR-
nER tRiM (SMALL fACE) 

12’ & 20’ LEngthS

2pC h tRiM 2.75” fACE
12’ & 20’ LEngthS

UniVERSAL J tRiM
12’ & 20’ LEngthS

2pC 2.5” oUtSidE 
CoRnER tRiM (LARgE 

fACE) USE With pAnEL 
LEngthS gREAtER

thAn 20’

* StARtER StRip
12’ & 20’ LEngthS

1 pAnEL, 2 LookS
U-ChAnnEL, V-gRooVE

 12” EXtERioR 3/8” 
WALL & Soffit pAnEL 

SEAMLESS pRofiLE
12’ & 20’ LEngthS

inSidE CoRnER tRiM
12’ & 20’ LEngthS  

6” Siding 2pC finiSh 
tRiM 1/2” pAnEL

12’ & 20’ LEngthS
CEiling & inTEriOr WallS

4” & 6” VEntEd Soffit
6” AVAiLABLE in 12’, 14’, 20’

4” AVAiLABLE in 12’, 20’

6” EXtERioR 1/2”
WALL pAnEL

12’, 20’, 30’ LEngthS

4” Soffit pAnEL 
– SoLid  12’ & 20’ 

LEngthS

6” Soffit pAnEL –
SoLid 9’, 12’, 14’, 20’, 30’ 

LEngthS

* 6” Siding 2pC tERMi-
nAtion finiSh tRiM 1/2” 
pAnEL 12’ & 20’ LEngthS

2pC 3.5”  EXtERioR 
WALL finiSh tRiM

12’ LEngthS

BRUShEd
MEtALLiC

MoUntAin oAk

hARVESt
WALnUt

BRoWn oAk

toffEE

honEY SUpER
MAttE

MonUMEnt oAk

ChARREd BLACk

ModERn
WALnUt 

SUpER MAttE

MoUntAin pinE

ChERRY

BARnBoARd
gREY

BEAChWood 
gREY

STOCK COlOUrS

SpAniSh CEdAR

SUnBLEAChEd
oAk

BRUShEd SiLVERpURE WhitESpECkLEd
gRAphitE

 COnTACT US FOR MORE AvAILAbLE COLOURSCUSTOM LEngTHS AvAILAbLE

* thESE tRiMS AVAiLABLE in ALUMinUM, pVC oR pVC/ALUM CoMBinAtion in  12’ , 20’ LEngthS

CinnAMon
WALnUt

BARREL oAk

BRUShEd
titAniUM

CAnAdiAn
fiR

AtLAntiC WhitE

tEAkChAi CEdAR

1.5” 2pC h-tRiM Soffit 
pVC 12’ LEngthS

45 dEgREE BAY
WindoW EXtERioR tRiM

12’ & 20’ LEngthS

4” intERioR WALL & 
CEiLing pAnEL

12’ & 20’ LEngthS

6” intERioR WALL And
CEiLing pAnELS

9’, 12’, 14’, 20’, 30’ 
LEngthS

2pC intERioR CRoWn 
MoLd 10’ LEngthS 

inSidE CoRnER tRiM
12’ & 20’ LEngthS  

2 pC intERioR WALL & 
CEiLing finiSh tRiM pAnEL

12’ & 20’ LEngthS

ChamClad
by Chameleon

 Transforming Spaces 

 2pC 1.5” oUtSidE CoR-
nER tRiM (SMALL fACE) 

12’ & 20’ LEngthS

Soffit And 12” Siding 
2pC finiSh tRiM 

3/8” pAnEL
12’ & 20’ LEngthS



ThE ChamClad WaY
Chamclad exterior and interior walls, 
soffit and ceiling panels are transforming 
architectural design and building practices 
across north America.  
 
our Canadian made product is designed 
to be the ideal choice for applications 
requiring durability, low maintenance and 
easy installation – with no special tools 
required. 

our films have 35 years proven 
performance in the EXtERioR industry 
and offer the most realistic woodgrains, 
metallic, and anodized finishes in the 
market. Additional benefits include 
superior UV protection and weathering 
resistance, colour stability, low heat 
buildup, and scratch and graffiti resistance. 

ExTEriOr Wall & SOffiT 
Cladding SYSTEm

1 pAnEL 2 LookS 
U-ChAnnEL, V-gRooVE

12” intERioR WALL & CEiLing 
pAnELS SEAMLESS

pRofiLE 12’ & 20’ LEngthS

f tRiM 12’ LEngthS1.5” 2pC. h tRiM
pVC: 12’ LEngthS

UniVERSAL J tRiM
pVC: 12’ & 20’ LEngthS

 2pC 1.5” oUtSidE CoR-
nER tRiM (SMALL fACE) 

12’ & 20’ LEngthS

2pC h tRiM 2.75” fACE
12’ & 20’ LEngthS

UniVERSAL J tRiM
12’ & 20’ LEngthS

2pC 2.5” oUtSidE 
CoRnER tRiM (LARgE 

fACE) USE With pAnEL 
LEngthS gREAtER

thAn 20’

* StARtER StRip
12’ & 20’ LEngthS

1 pAnEL, 2 LookS
U-ChAnnEL, V-gRooVE

 12” EXtERioR 3/8” 
WALL & Soffit pAnEL 

SEAMLESS pRofiLE
12’ & 20’ LEngthS

inSidE CoRnER tRiM
12’ & 20’ LEngthS  

6” Siding 2pC finiSh 
tRiM 1/2” pAnEL

12’ & 20’ LEngthS
CEiling & inTEriOr WallS

4” & 6” VEntEd Soffit
6” AVAiLABLE in 12’, 14’, 20’

4” AVAiLABLE in 12’, 20’

6” EXtERioR 1/2”
WALL pAnEL

12’, 20’, 30’ LEngthS

4” Soffit pAnEL 
– SoLid  12’ & 20’ 

LEngthS

6” Soffit pAnEL –
SoLid 9’, 12’, 14’, 20’, 30’ 

LEngthS

* 6” Siding 2pC tERMi-
nAtion finiSh tRiM 1/2” 
pAnEL 12’ & 20’ LEngthS

2pC 3.5”  EXtERioR 
WALL finiSh tRiM

12’ LEngthS

BRUShEd
MEtALLiC

MoUntAin oAk

hARVESt
WALnUt

BRoWn oAk

toffEE

honEY SUpER
MAttE

MonUMEnt oAk

ChARREd BLACk

ModERn
WALnUt 

SUpER MAttE

MoUntAin pinE

ChERRY

BARnBoARd
gREY

BEAChWood 
gREY

STOCK COlOUrS

SpAniSh CEdAR

SUnBLEAChEd
oAk

BRUShEd SiLVERpURE WhitESpECkLEd
gRAphitE

 COnTACT US FOR MORE AvAILAbLE COLOURSCUSTOM LEngTHS AvAILAbLE

* thESE tRiMS AVAiLABLE in ALUMinUM, pVC oR pVC/ALUM CoMBinAtion in  12’ , 20’ LEngthS

CinnAMon
WALnUt

BARREL oAk

BRUShEd
titAniUM

CAnAdiAn
fiR

AtLAntiC WhitE

tEAkChAi CEdAR

1.5” 2pC h-tRiM Soffit 
pVC 12’ LEngthS

45 dEgREE BAY
WindoW EXtERioR tRiM

12’ & 20’ LEngthS

4” intERioR WALL & 
CEiLing pAnEL

12’ & 20’ LEngthS

6” intERioR WALL And
CEiLing pAnELS

9’, 12’, 14’, 20’, 30’ 
LEngthS

2pC intERioR CRoWn 
MoLd 10’ LEngthS 

inSidE CoRnER tRiM
12’ & 20’ LEngthS  

2 pC intERioR WALL & 
CEiLing finiSh tRiM pAnEL

12’ & 20’ LEngthS

ChamClad
by Chameleon

 Transforming Spaces 

 2pC 1.5” oUtSidE CoR-
nER tRiM (SMALL fACE) 

12’ & 20’ LEngthS

Soffit And 12” Siding 
2pC finiSh tRiM 

3/8” pAnEL
12’ & 20’ LEngthS



ThE ChamClad WaY
Chamclad exterior and interior walls, 
soffit and ceiling panels are transforming 
architectural design and building practices 
across north America.  
 
our Canadian made product is designed 
to be the ideal choice for applications 
requiring durability, low maintenance and 
easy installation – with no special tools 
required. 

our films have 35 years proven 
performance in the EXtERioR industry 
and offer the most realistic woodgrains, 
metallic, and anodized finishes in the 
market. Additional benefits include 
superior UV protection and weathering 
resistance, colour stability, low heat 
buildup, and scratch and graffiti resistance. 

ExTEriOr Wall & SOffiT 
Cladding SYSTEm

1 pAnEL 2 LookS 
U-ChAnnEL, V-gRooVE

12” intERioR WALL & CEiLing 
pAnELS SEAMLESS

pRofiLE 12’ & 20’ LEngthS

f tRiM 12’ LEngthS1.5” 2pC. h tRiM
pVC: 12’ LEngthS

UniVERSAL J tRiM
pVC: 12’ & 20’ LEngthS

 2pC 1.5” oUtSidE CoR-
nER tRiM (SMALL fACE) 

12’ & 20’ LEngthS

2pC h tRiM 2.75” fACE
12’ & 20’ LEngthS

UniVERSAL J tRiM
12’ & 20’ LEngthS

2pC 2.5” oUtSidE 
CoRnER tRiM (LARgE 

fACE) USE With pAnEL 
LEngthS gREAtER

thAn 20’

* StARtER StRip
12’ & 20’ LEngthS

1 pAnEL, 2 LookS
U-ChAnnEL, V-gRooVE

 12” EXtERioR 3/8” 
WALL & Soffit pAnEL 

SEAMLESS pRofiLE
12’ & 20’ LEngthS

inSidE CoRnER tRiM
12’ & 20’ LEngthS  

6” Siding 2pC finiSh 
tRiM 1/2” pAnEL

12’ & 20’ LEngthS
CEiling & inTEriOr WallS

4” & 6” VEntEd Soffit
6” AVAiLABLE in 12’, 14’, 20’

4” AVAiLABLE in 12’, 20’

6” EXtERioR 1/2”
WALL pAnEL

12’, 20’, 30’ LEngthS

4” Soffit pAnEL 
– SoLid  12’ & 20’ 

LEngthS

6” Soffit pAnEL –
SoLid 9’, 12’, 14’, 20’, 30’ 

LEngthS

* 6” Siding 2pC tERMi-
nAtion finiSh tRiM 1/2” 
pAnEL 12’ & 20’ LEngthS

2pC 3.5”  EXtERioR 
WALL finiSh tRiM

12’ LEngthS

BRUShEd
MEtALLiC

MoUntAin oAk

hARVESt
WALnUt

BRoWn oAk

toffEE

honEY SUpER
MAttE

MonUMEnt oAk

ChARREd BLACk

ModERn
WALnUt 

SUpER MAttE

MoUntAin pinE

ChERRY

BARnBoARd
gREY

BEAChWood 
gREY

STOCK COlOUrS

SpAniSh CEdAR

SUnBLEAChEd
oAk

BRUShEd SiLVERpURE WhitESpECkLEd
gRAphitE

 COnTACT US FOR MORE AvAILAbLE COLOURSCUSTOM LEngTHS AvAILAbLE

* thESE tRiMS AVAiLABLE in ALUMinUM, pVC oR pVC/ALUM CoMBinAtion in  12’ , 20’ LEngthS

CinnAMon
WALnUt

BARREL oAk

BRUShEd
titAniUM

CAnAdiAn
fiR

AtLAntiC WhitE

tEAkChAi CEdAR

1.5” 2pC h-tRiM Soffit 
pVC 12’ LEngthS

45 dEgREE BAY
WindoW EXtERioR tRiM

12’ & 20’ LEngthS

4” intERioR WALL & 
CEiLing pAnEL

12’ & 20’ LEngthS

6” intERioR WALL And
CEiLing pAnELS

9’, 12’, 14’, 20’, 30’ 
LEngthS

2pC intERioR CRoWn 
MoLd 10’ LEngthS 

inSidE CoRnER tRiM
12’ & 20’ LEngthS  

2 pC intERioR WALL & 
CEiLing finiSh tRiM pAnEL

12’ & 20’ LEngthS

ChamClad
by Chameleon

 Transforming Spaces 

 2pC 1.5” oUtSidE CoR-
nER tRiM (SMALL fACE) 

12’ & 20’ LEngthS

Soffit And 12” Siding 
2pC finiSh tRiM 

3/8” pAnEL
12’ & 20’ LEngthS



TESTING
 ü ICCES ESR 4560
 ü CCMC 14323-R
 ü ASTM D696-16
 ü ASTM D635-18
 ü CAN/CGSB - 41.24.-95
 ü CAN/ULC S102-2018
 ü ASTM G154-16
 ü ASTM D790

 ü ASTM G155
 ü ASTM E330/E330-14  

 PROCEDURE B Q50<0.85
 ü RILEM TC -127-MS 

 (ACID RAIN)
 ü CAN/ULC S134
 ü NFPA 285
 ü NFPA 268

THE ChamClad AdvAnTAgE
 ü LEED Compliant

 ü Made in Canada from 100% recycled PVC

 ü 50 Year Warranty

 ü Canada and US Distribution

 ü UV Protected

 ü Impervious to Water Absorption, Bacteria and Mold

 ü Low Maintenance

 ü Easy to Install, No Special Tools Required, Lightweight

 ü High Impact Resistance

 ü Short Lead Times

 ü One Profile Gives Two Looks: V-Groove and U-Channel

ChamClad.COm

Siding & Soffit
inStALL VidEoS

EXTERIOR &
InTERIOR WALLS, 
SOFFIT, CEILIng

& TRIM

ChamClad
by Chameleon

 Transforming Spaces 

ChamClad.COm
for more information contact

us at info@chamclad.com

ChamClad
by Chameleon

 Transforming Spaces 

10235 184 St nW

Edmonton AB t5S 2J4

780-454-4430

May 11, 2022



TESTING
 ü ICCES ESR 4560
 ü CCMC 14323-R
 ü ASTM D696-16
 ü ASTM D635-18
 ü CAN/CGSB - 41.24.-95
 ü CAN/ULC S102-2018
 ü ASTM G154-16
 ü ASTM D790

 ü ASTM G155
 ü ASTM E330/E330-14   

PROCEDURE B Q50<0.85
 ü RILEM TC -127-MS 

 (ACID RAIN)
 ü CAN/ULC S134
 ü NFPA 285
 ü NFPA 268

THE ChamClad AdvAnTAgE
 ü LEED Compliant

 ü Made in Canada from 100% recycled PVC

 ü 50 Year Warranty

 ü Canada and US Distribution

 ü UV Protected

 ü Impervious to Water Absorption, Bacteria and Mold

 ü Low Maintenance

 ü Easy to Install, No Special Tools Required, Lightweight

 ü High Impact Resistance

 ü Short Lead Times

 ü One Profile Gives Two Looks: V-Groove and U-Channel

ChamClad.COm

Siding & Soffit
inStALL VidEoS

EXTERIOR &
InTERIOR WALLS, 
SOFFIT, CEILIng

& TRIM

ChamClad
by Chameleon

 Transforming Spaces 

ChamClad.COm
for more information contact

us at info@chamclad.com

ChamClad
by Chameleon

 Transforming Spaces 

10235 184 St nW

Edmonton AB t5S 2J4

780-454-4430

May 11, 2022

for our USA distribution please
email us at info@chamclad.com



1 

 

 

 

  

WARRANTY  
Exterior and Interior Cladding 

Transforming Spaces 

 

info@chamclad.com 
Chamclad.com 
780-456-4430 
 

November 25, 2021 



2 

COVERAGE UNDER THIS WARRANTY 

Chameleon Wrapping and Lamination Ltd. (“Chameleon”) is pleased to offer a 50-Year Limited 

Warranty on its ChamClad® line of PVC siding, cladding and accessories (the “product”), on the 

terms and conditions set out herein (the “Warranty”). 

Chameleon warrants the product will be free from initial manufacturing defects in material or 

workmanship (“initial defects”) for a period of 50 years from the date of purchase. Provided the 

product has been stored and installed according to ChamClad® installation instructions, the 

product is warranted for a period of 50 years (as prorated as set out below) against warping, 

blistering, and peeling (“technical failure”), subject to the limitations contained herein.  

The product, like all materials, will experience some degree of discolouration due to age, sun 

exposure, and other environmental conditions. Provided the product has been stored and 

installed according to ChamClad® installation instructions, Chameleon further warrants the 

product against unreasonable discolouration for a period of 15 years from the date of purchase 

(subject to the limitations contained herein). In the event a claim is brought under the Warranty 

for unreasonable discolouration, Chameleon, in its sole discretion, will determine whether the 

degree of discolouration or fading is unreasonable or excessive, having regard to the factors set 

out below. 

In the event of initial defects, technical failure or unreasonable discolouration covered by the 

Warranty, Chameleon will, at its sole discretion, repair, restore or replace the product in 

accordance with the claims provisions set out below. Chameleon’s responsibility is limited to the 

product only. Coverage for installation and labour costs will be determined by Chameleon on a 

case-by-case basis, at Chameleon’s sole discretion, and unless otherwise agreed by 

Chameleon in writing, all labour and installation costs are the sole responsibility of the 

homeowner. The warranty on the repair or replacement product will be limited to the unexpired 

term of the Warranty for the product which was repaired or replaced. 

The Warranty extends to the original purchaser(s) of the product. The Warranty shall terminate 

upon the sale of the property or the death of the original purchaser(s)/homeowner(s), unless the 

Warranty is transferred to a new owner by applying to Chameleon in writing (as more 

particularly set out herein) within 60 days following the sale. Failure to transfer the Warranty to a 

new owner in strict compliance herewith shall result in the balance of the Warranty period being 

forfeited. 

The right to transfer the Warranty is limited to individual homeowners only and under no 

circumstances shall any transfer be deemed to extend or renew the warranty period, which in all 

cases shall be a maximum of 50 years. In the case of corporations, governmental agencies, 

trusts, religious organizations, schools, condominiums, or cooperative housing, the Warranty is 

non-transferable, except by a builder to the home purchaser in the event of a new home build. 

Should any of the product be determined by Chameleon to have any manufacturing defects or 

suffer technical failure, Chameleon, in its sole discretion, shall determine whether to replace, 

restore, or repair and return said product to the homeowner via the authorized ChamClad® 

retailer/distributor. 



3 

To start a claim, a Warranty Claim Form can be filled out and sent to Chameleon. If there are 

any questions, please contact Chameleon’s customer service at 1 (780) 454 4430 or at 

info@chamclad.com. 

The product is not warranted for suitability of use in all situations. It is the sole responsibility of 

the purchaser to determine the suitability, effectiveness, and safety of any particular use or 

application of the product. As building code regulations and conditions vary from area to area, 

each purchaser should consult local building and safety codes for specific requirements, and 

qualified exterior contractors to determine the suitability. 

EXCLUSIONS AND LIMITATIONS UNDER THIS 
WARRANTY 

Chameleon’s obligations and liability under the Warranty are expressly conditional upon and 

subject to the following: 

1. The installation, storage, and proper handling of the product must have been completed in 

accordance with ChamClad® installation instructions (please refer to www.chamclad.com 

for storage, installation and care instructions). Nothing in this Warranty will construe a 

warranty of workmanship of any installer nor impose any liability of unsatisfactory 

performance caused by faulty installation, including, but not limited to failing to ensure 

proper spacing for expansion and contraction. When storing the product prior to installation, 

it is important that it is not left uninstalled in direct sunlight. Leaving uninstalled product in 

direct sunlight will void the Warranty. 

2. The Warranty must have been registered as required herein, and any transferee must have 

completed and submitted the proper transfer documentation to Chameleon. The claimant 

must provide Chameleon with all information which it reasonably requires to evaluate the 

Warranty claim. 

3. This Warranty does not cover destruction of or damage to the product, or to the product’s 

failure to adhere to any surface, where caused or contributed to by improper installation, 

improper cleaning (including the use of unapproved cleaning products or any abrasive 

materials), misuse, neglect, impact from foreign objects, ice, fire, wind (including tornados 

or other extreme wind events), earthquake, flooding (overland or otherwise), lightning or 

acts of God. 

4. This Warranty does not cover abnormal surface weathering or distortion which may be 

caused or contributed to by air pollution, fumes, vandalism, misuse, harmful chemicals, or 

close proximity to heat sources such as fireplaces, barbecues, heaters and open flames. 

This Warranty does not cover damage to the product’s finish resulting from foreign 

substances such as grease, oil, sand, and dirt. 

 



4 

5. This Warranty does not cover damage to the product caused or contributed to by the 

reflection, refraction, or intensification of sunlight from nearby highly-reflective surfaces. 

Care must be taken when determining whether the product is suitable for its proposed 

application by determining whether there are any reflections, refraction or intensification of 

sunlight which may arise from windows, doors, or other highly reflective surfaces, including 

those on adjacent properties. 

6. This Warranty does not cover discolouration (whether unreasonable or otherwise) or other 

damage caused or contributed to by air pollution, harmful chemicals and harsh weather 

conditions. Normal weathering is to be expected as a result of exposure to ultraviolet 

radiation, atmosphere and weather that may cause staining, fading or other issues which 

may vary due to the geographic location of a property, sunlight, air quality, or other factors.  

7. Coverage under this Warranty for discolouration will be limited to abnormal or unreasonable 

discolouration, judged against the weathering performance provided by Chameleon’s 

laminate supplier. The standard for unreasonable discolouration in ordinary conditions shall 

be a colour difference ≥ grey scale 2/3 (ISO 105-A02) for exposure in the US and Canada, 

and otherwise shall be in the sole discretion of Chameleon. Chameleon may require 

independent lab testing to evaluate a claim for unreasonable discoloration. 

8. In the event the product has been painted or sealed using a varnish or otherwise coated 

over the original factory finish, this Warranty will be void.  

9. The Warranty will be void if the product is not cleaned in accordance with the approved 

cleaning methods, as more particularly set out below and at www.chamclad.com. 

10. ChamClad® products are not warranted against movement distortion caused by structural 

movement or ground settlement. Use of ChamClad® products beyond normal commercial 

and residential use in an application not recommended by Chameleon or the local building 

codes will not be covered. 

11. Chameleon’s sole and exclusive liability under this Warranty is limited to the repair, 

restoration or replacement of the product. Chameleon shall not be liable for any other 

losses, damages, or expenses, whether direct or indirect, incidental, consequential, 

punitive, exemplary, or otherwise whatsoever, including without limitation, costs of removal 

or reinstallation of the product, labour, freight, taxes, loss of goodwill, lost profits and loss of 

use. Chameleon’s total liability whether arising from or based on contract, warranty, 

negligence, tort, strict liability, or any other cause or basis whatsoever, is strictly limited to 

the purchase price of the products involved. Chameleon will not be responsible for any loss 

of any kind arising from a breach of this Warranty, for the sale of the product or from 

negligence or omissions on the part of Chameleon, its agents or employees. The warranty 

on any repaired or replacement products will be limited to the unexpired term of the warranty 

on the original product. 

http://www.chamclad.com/


5 

12. If a claim is made for a product that is no longer available, Chameleon reserves the right to 

supply a siding product that, in its sole discretion, is of equal quality and colour range for 

the purpose of fulfilling Chameleon’s obligations under this Warranty. 

13. Any person to whom product is supplied under the terms of the Warranty shall only be 

entitled to benefits of the unexpired term of the Warranty applicable to the product originally 

installed. 

14. The Warranty coverage against technical failure is pro-rated as per the below pro-ration 

schedule (starts from the original date of purchase of the product): 

• First 15 years   (0 - 15 years) -100% of the cost of materials will be covered  

• Next 5 years   (16 - 20 years) - 75% of the cost of materials will be covered  

• Next 10 years (21 - 30 years) - 50% of the cost of materials will be covered 

• Next 10 years (31 - 40 years) - 25% of the cost of materials will be covered 

• Next 10 years (41 - 50 years) - 10% of the cost of materials will be covered 

15. If any of the exclusions, disclaimers or limitations are prohibited by law, such provisions 

may be severed from the Warranty without otherwise affecting the validity of the balance of 

the provisions. 

16. This warranty is exclusive and in lieu of any and all other warranties, express, implied, and 

statutory. 

CLAIM PROCEDURES UNDER CHAMCLAD® 
WARRANTY 

To make a claim under the Warranty, the original owner or registered transferee must notify 

Chameleon within thirty (30) days of discovering the defect. Such notice must be in written form 

using the attached document and shall be sent by certified or registered mail postage prepaid 

and addressed to: Chameleon, 10235-184 Street, Edmonton, Alberta, T5S 2J4. The claim must 

include a description of the defect, date of discovery, the property address where the product 

was installed, and proof of purchase.  

With reasonable notice, the owner shall allow our agents and/or distributor to enter the property 

and building to view the product only when deemed necessary and solely by ChamClad®. 

When asked, the owner or transferee will be responsible to provide all documentation and 

defective samples at the owner’s expense.   

     

 

 



6 

CHAMCLAD® WARRANTY REGISTRATION FORM 

Please fill out this form completely and include a copy of your invoice (proof of purchase) and 

email to: info@chamclad.com 

1. CUSTOMER NAME: 

 

 

2. ADDRESS WHERE PRODUCT IS INSTALLED: 

 

 

3. DATE PRODUCT WAS INSTALLED: 

 

 

4. COPY OF INVOICE FROM DISTRIBUTOR (PROOF OF PURCHASE): 

 

 

5. INSTALLER INFORMATION (NAME AND CONTACT): 

 
 



7 

                                                                                                 

CARE AND MAINTENANCE OF CHAMCLAD® 
PANELS  
ChamClad® products are designed to be low maintenance and our Laminate Films 
have exceptional properties that ensure ease of cleaning and surface longevity.  They are highly 
ultra-violet, pollution and salt air resistant.  The film’s low surface tension makes it 
inherently dirt-repellent and therefore easy to clean.  ChamClad® panel finish includes anti-
graffiti properties and in most cases is easily removed with a mild kitchen detergent and warm 
water. Should you experience removal difficulties, please contact us at info@chamclad.com 
  
In normal or urban environments, where atmosphere is considered to have low-pollutants, we 
recommend cleaning every 12-18 months.  In areas subject to high-pollutants such as industrial 
or coastal environments, we recommend cleaning more frequently – every 8-12 months.  
  

• Using a soft bristled nylon brush attached to a garden hose, clean the surface with a 
mild PH neutral soap or non-abrasive kitchen detergent in warm water. DO NOT USE 
abrasive, erosive, or caustic solvents to clean ChamClad® panels as they 
can damage the panel finish and could void the warranty.  To avoid streaking start at the 
top of the wall – working your way to the bottom.  

 

• Follow with a thorough rinsing of fresh water to ensure that substances such as airborne 
salts, dirt and pollutants are removed. 

 

• Always remove unintentional paint splashes, stucco spills, etc. immediately to 
prevent the possibility of permanent staining.  

 

• Do NOT pressure wash as this could damage the protective coating 
layers of ChamClad® Exterior wall panels and will void the Warranty.  

  
Provided that Regular Care and Maintenance practices are followed, ChamClad® Exterior wall 
panels will provide long term performance and protect your investment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



From: Jarrett Lecas
To: Chris Gruba
Cc: Steve Lecas
Subject: Re: 240 Center
Date: Tuesday, September 6, 2022 2:31:21 PM

Chris, attached is the website tab for Chamclad's manufacturer specs where it details
everything you need to know about the material. This includes the 50 yr warranty and all
certifications ( including hurricane certifications for Florida). Let me know if this suffices
thank u!

https://chamclad.com/resources/

On Tue, Sep 6, 2022 at 9:48 AM Chris Gruba <cgruba@frankfortil.org> wrote:

Steve & Jarrett –

 

I forgot, but since the variances have changed since the workshop (setback and now
ChamClad siding), would you please fill out the variance findings of fact again?  Wanting to
avoid any of the commissioners asking at the meeting why they weren’t updated.

 

Thanks,

 

Christopher Gruba

Senior Planner

VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT
432 W. Nebraska St.  |  Frankfort, IL 60423  |  Ph: (815) 469-2177  |  Fx: (815) 469-7999

 

 

From: Steve Lecas <steven@ganderbuilders.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 6, 2022 9:11 AM
To: Chris Gruba <cgruba@frankfortil.org>
Subject: Re: 240 Center

 

OK I apologize I just figured something like that would be public record as it’s being
delivered amongst the planning commission and I would’ve liked to of been prepared for
any resistance or being able to try and work it out with a neighbor. I was very surprised as
when I spoke with the wife she was extremely supportive so obviously it took me back.
Thank you for getting back to me. Steve

mailto:jarrett@ganderbuilders.com
mailto:cgruba@frankfortil.org
mailto:steven@ganderbuilders.com
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/tQm-CERBLlunV9vuNPUn8?domain=chamclad.com/
mailto:cgruba@frankfortil.org
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/QRjtCG6ENZcqKYDh7K5vl?domain=vofil.com
mailto:steven@ganderbuilders.com
mailto:cgruba@frankfortil.org
cgruba
Rectangle







Highlight











































RECEIVED 9.1.22



























c. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and

improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.

d. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at variance

with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already constructed, or in the

course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the applicable district, as to cause a

substantial depreciation in the property values within the neighborhood.

e. That the adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are being provided.

f. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize

traffic congestion in the public streets.

g. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in which it is

located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the Village Board, pursuant to the

recommendations of the Plan Commission.

Affirmative Motions 

1. Approve an adjustment to the total Zoning Ordinance-required parking for the subject property based 

on the availability of both joint parking and shared parking for the proposed indoor recreation use and 

the current building tenants.

2. Recommend to the Village Board to approve the Special Use Permit for an indoor recreation facility for 

the property located at 21800 S. La Grange Road, Unit B, in accordance with the reviewed plans, findings 

of fact, public testimony and conditioned upon the following:

a. If any mechanical units are added to the roof or site, they shall be screened per the requirements 

of the Zoning Ordinance.

b. The project shall obtain compliance with all applicable codes, including the Fire Code and 

International Building Code.

c. There shall be no indoor bleachers installed and no tournaments held at this location.

5 



0 175 35087.5
Feet

µ
21800 S. La Grange, Unit B - Proposed Pickleball (Special Use Permit)



S 
LA

 G
RA

NG
E 

R
D

SANGMEISTER RD

P
E

N
N

Y
 C

T 
S

0 475 950237.5
Feet

µ
21800 S. La Grange, Unit B - Proposed Pickleball (Special Use Permit)













































1 
 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA                                                                                                                                                                                                   S                                September 22, 2022 

 
Project: Oasis Assisted Living    
Meeting Type:  Public Hearing   
Requests: Special Use for Assisted Living Facility, Final Plat  
Location:   8531 W. Lincoln Highway  
Applicant:  Oasis Senior Living, Inc.  
Prop. Owner:  MT Leasing Inc.  
Representative: Tahir Khan 
 
Site Details 
 

Lot Size: 203,861 sq. ft. (4.68 acres)                                Figure 1. Location Map     
PIN(s): 19-09-23-300-031-0000 
Existing Zoning:  B-2   
Proposed Zoning: N/A 
Future Land Use:  General Commercial 
Buildings: 1   
Total Sq. Ft.: 75,074 sq. ft. (bldg.) 
 
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 
Project Summary  
 

The applicant, Oasis Senior Living, Inc., is proposing to construct an 82-unit assisted living facility at the southwest 
corner of Route 30 and Windy Hill Drive.  Assisted living facilities are permitted in the B-2 zone district with the 
issuance of a Special Use Permit.  The project will also require approval of a Final Plat of Subdivision to create a lot 
of record, as the property is unsubdivided.  A Final Plat would also grant new easements (storm/detention, water, 
sanitary, etc.).  As currently proposed, the project will not require any variances (setbacks, lot coverage, building 
height, etc.).  The site is currently disused, with two abandoned structures that would be removed as part of the 
development.  The site contains a moderate number of existing trees, some of which are preservation trees. 
 
Attachments 

1. Aerial Photographs (VOF GIS)  
2. Color renderings and materials, received September 1, 2022 
3. Special Use Permit – Findings of Fact, applicant responses, received March 2, 2022 
4. Stormwater Management Report, Geotech Inc., received April 14, 2022 
5. Storm Sewer Analysis, Geotech Inc., received June 8, 2022 
6. Stormwater atlas map of the site (Village of Frankfort) 
7. NPDES Permit from IL EPA, received September 6, 2022 
8. National Wetlands Inventory Map of subject property  
9. Retaining wall photo example (Chase Bank), provided by applicant, received September 1, 2022 
10. Retaining wall block detail, provided by applicant, received September 1, 2022 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject Property Undeveloped General Comm. B-2 

North    Undeveloped Mixed Use E-R 

South      Townhomes Single Fam. 
Attached Res. 

R-5 

East Undeveloped General Comm. B-2 

West     Com. & SFR General Comm. B-2 



2 
 

11. Photographs of site, taken by staff on May 13, 2022 
12. March 10, 2022, PC-ZBA meeting minutes excerpt (workshop) 
13. Plat of Survey, received October 21, 2021 
14. Site Plan, Geotech Inc., received August 17, 2022 
15. Final Plat, Geotech Inc., received August 10, 2022 
16. Improvement Plans, received September 14, 2022  
17. Existing Tree Plan (tree survey), received February 16, 2022 
18. Preliminary Landscape Plan, received August 17, 2022 
19. Auto-Turn Plan (truck turning radius), received August 9, 2022 
20. Building Elevation drawings, received August 15, 2022 
21. Floorplan, received September 14, 2022 
22. Photometric Plan, received June 8, 2022 
23. Trash Enclosure Detail, received August 15, 2022 

 
History  
    
PC-ZBA Workshop, March 10th:  
 
This project was heard before the Plan Commission as a workshop on March 10, 2022.  An excerpt of the meeting 
minutes from that date have been attached to this report.  Below is a summary of the comments provided during 
the workshop.  These comments were made by one or several commissioners and may not reflect the opinion of 
every commissioner.  Staff has provided updates to these comments in italics.  
 

1. The proposed assisted living building should blend with the architecture of the adjacent Windy Hill Farm 
Condos subdivision.  No changes made to elevation plans.  The applicant had stated that the intent of the 
proposed masonry and cement board siding was to provide a residential appearance.  

2. The landscape buffer along the south side of the property should be increased from the proposed 14’ 
width to provide a better visual and acoustic buffer between the proposed assisted living facility and the 
existing townhomes to the south, especially if delivery trucks would be loading and unloading in the south 
drive aisle.  If possible, this landscape buffer should be at least 25’ wide.  The landscape buffer was 
increased from 14’ to 33.45’, with additional landscaping material added.  

3. The tree removal will be significant, and the applicant should try to preserve some of the existing mature 
trees.  None of the existing trees on site will be preserved, although most of the existing trees within the 
rights-of-way of Route 30 and Windy Hill Drive will be preserved.  

4. The proposed trash enclosure should be moved further away from the existing townhomes to the south.  
The trash enclosure was moved from along the south property line to the west property line (still within the 
southwest corner of the site).  The distance from the south property line was increased from approximately 
7’ to 44.7’.  

5. The building elevation facing Route 30 should include more brick.  The original building materials included 
cultured stone and cement board siding; no brick was ever proposed.  The building elevations have not been 
changed since the workshop meeting, although the renderings were revised to reflect the actual proposed 
color of the building.   

6. Color building elevations should be provided prior to the public hearing. Non-scaled revised color 
renderings have been provided to illustrate the four primary materials and true colors.  

7. Decorative fencing should be provided similar to what is existing near the entrance of Windy Hill to create 
a more unified look. The Landscape Plan illustrates decorative fencing on either side of both access drives 
along Windy Hill Drive to match the existing fencing at the northeast corner of the property. The proposed 
fencing would match the existing fencing in terms of materials, height, design, and color.  

8. The applicant should plant physical stakes along the south property line for the Commission to visualize the 
setback from the townhomes. Stakes were installed along the south property line on June 9th, 2022 and the 
Plan Commission was notified.   



3 
 

Neighborhood Meeting, August 23rd:  
 
On August 23rd, the applicant hosted a neighborhood meeting at the Frankfort Public Library.  The intent of the 
meeting was to explain the project, including changes to the plans since the workshop meeting and answer any 
questions from the public.  The meeting was attended by approximately 30 people, mostly residents of the Windy 
Hills Farm Condos, located south of the subject property.  The meeting lasted approximately 1 hour.  Residents 
were encouraged to attend the future public hearing for the project.  
 
During the meeting, residents had several concerns and questions.  Summarized, they included:  
 

1. The proposed assisted living facility is too close to other assisted living facilities in the area, saturating the 
market.  

2. Delivery trucks would be noisy.  
3. The assisted living facility should not be located on a major thoroughfare (Route 30), because it is 

extremely noisy and would be disruptive for residents.  
4. The assisted living facility will be ugly to look at from the existing townhomes, especially the trash 

enclosure.  
5. It seems that one dumpster is not enough to serve 82 units.  
6. The assisted living facility would be better suited for the undeveloped property on the east side of Windy 

Hill Drive (approximately 3.5 acres).  
7. The intersection of Windy Hill Drive and Route 30 needs a traffic light.   
8. It was asked if the facility could still be profitable if there were significantly less than 82 units.  

 
Some of the applicant’s responses included:  
 

1. The only regular trucks on-site would be food trucks, smaller box trucks and garbage trucks.  Food 
deliveries take place at 7 am.  

2. The dumpster would be equipped with an enclosure to screen it from view, as well as heavy landscaping 
along the south property line.  Both the trash enclosure and the building would be partially screened from 
view by the proposed landscaping.  

3. The assisted living facility is only 1 floor because most residents want to live on the 1st floor.   
4. The single dumpster would be emptied once a week, which they believe is adequate for their needs.  
5. To qualify, a potential resident only needs to be age 55 or older.  They can move in while they are 

completely independent.  
6. The units are not bought; they are leased.  The leasing can be month-to-month.  There is no down payment 

($30,000 is sometimes typical).  Oasis’ units are typically slightly more affordable than other assisted living 
facilities in the area.   

7. Oasis currently has facilities in five or six other US states, including Michigan.  
8. The facility would be licensed by the State of Illinois.  
9. Oasis does not take in residents that are “mentally challenged” but do accept people with dementia.   
10. The facility is secured at every door and pass keys are required to enter and exit.  The facility is not easy to 

enter illegally or trespass.  Residents would be free to enter and exit as they wish, except for the memory 
care patients.  

11. There would be no doctors or nurses employed at the building, but they will be allowed to come to the 
building for house calls.  

12. Under the rare instances when residents become combative, the most likely reason is that they are on the 
wrong medication.  Correcting the medication usually corrects behavior.  Oasis has never had to remove a 
resident because of misbehavior at any of their locations.  



4 
 

13. Oasis would maintain the entire property, including the grounds.  
14. Oasis expects to have the building 80% occupied within 6 months after opening.  
15. The applicants chose Frankfort for their assisted living facility because of Frankfort’s reputation as a 

desirable community.  
16. The facility’s location on a major thoroughfare is desirable because it allows easy access to the and from 

the building, such as when children might pick up their parents and take them out to dinner.  They believe 
that the traffic noise from Route 30 would not be an issue due to building insulation.  

17. Building signage location has not yet been determined, but they do intend to install a ground sign.  
18. For residents who are able to drive, staff offers to clean off cars and warm them up in the wintertime for 

residents.  
19. The undeveloped 3.5-acre parcel to the east is too small for the proposed assisted living facility, which is 

why they pursued the 4.68-acre subject property.  
20. The applicant has purchased the property.   
21. A traffic light at the intersection of Route 30 and Windy Hill Drive is not proposed.  Route 30 is under the 

jurisdiction of IDOT, which determines when a traffic light is merited.  
22. The facility would not reserve a certain number of units for people on Medicaid, because they are not 

required to, nor do they wish to do so.   
23. The units would be leased for approximately $4,500 per month.  
24. Per the applicant’s market research, the Frankfort area is deficient by 450 assisted living units and 

therefore the demand exists.  
25. Each unit has a kitchen setup, containing a microwave, toaster, Keurig machine and sink.  However, there is 

no stove because meals are prepared by staff.  Meals and snacks can be delivered door to door if the 
resident desires.  The meals are 99% homemade.  

26. Each resident does not have a designated parking space because most residents don’t drive.  Most 
residents live in the building because they need assistance.  

 
Summary of changes:  
 
Staff has noted the following changes to the plans since the workshop on March 10th and the neighborhood 
meeting on August 23rd:  
 

1. The building has been shifted north slightly, to allow for a wider landscape setback along the south 
property line.  There were formerly two rows of parking along the front of the building facing Route 30. 
The rows have now been split up, with one row of parking along Route 30 and one row of parking along 
the west side of the building.   

2. The landscape buffer along the south property line has been increased from 14’ to 33.45’ and more 
vegetation has been added in this area.  

3. The northern driveway was shifted further north when the building was moved further north.  
4. The apron on the northern driveway has been widened (flared out) at the request of Village staff to make 

it easier for southbound traffic on Windy Hill Drive to navigate around any vehicles turning into the 
assisted living facility.  

5. The unit count was increased from 78 to 82.  There are now more studio units and less 1-bedroom units.  
6. A retaining wall was added to the northwest corner of the site, measuring approximately 300’ long and 7’ 

tall at the highest in the middle.  The retaining wall tapers to meet grade at either end of the wall.  
7. The trash enclosure has been moved from along the south property line to the west property line (still in 

the same vicinity, but further away from the existing townhomes).  The setback from the trash enclosure 
to the south property line has been increased from 7’ to 44.7’.  



5 
 

8. Decorative fencing was added on both sides of both access drives along Windy Hill Drive to match the 
existing fencing at the northeast corner of the property. The proposed fencing would match the existing 
fencing in terms of materials, height, design, and color.  

 
Analysis 
 

2019 Comprehensive Plan 
 
The Village’s 2019 Comprehensive Plan illustrates the subject property as “General Commercial”.  The “General 
Commercial” designation roughly translates to a zone district of B-1, B-2, B-3 or B-4.  The subject property is 
currently zoned B-2 (Community Business).  The Village’s Comprehensive Plan is largely silent regarding senior 
housing or assisted living/memory care facilities, although the plan does encourage providing “a mix of housing 
options to meet community needs” as part of Goal 7.1.   
 
Zoning 
 
The subject property is currently zoned B-2, Community Business, which allows for assisted living facilities 
contingent upon issuance of a Special Use Permit.  Assisted living facilities also require a Special Use Permit in the 
R-4 (Attached Single-Family Residential) and the H-1 (Historic) zone districts.  They are permitted by-right only 
within the B-3 zone district.  Rezoning of the subject property is not required or recommended.  It should be noted 
that the project was designed without the need for any variances, nor was this project designed as a PUD in which 
“exceptions” to the regulations in the Zoning Ordinance could be requested.   

Dimensional Table 

  Required Proposed Notes 
Minimum Lot Size 20,000 sq. ft. 4.68 acres Existing parcel unchanged  
Minimum Lot Width 100 ft.  631 ft. (approx.) Measured along Route 30 
Front Setback (north) 150 ft.  150 ft.  Measured to Centerline of Route 30 
Landscaped front yard 
(north) 25 ft.  30.76 ft.  

 

Corner Side Setback (east) 50 ft.  80.54 ft.   

Side Setback (west) 50 ft.  70.49 ft. 15' required when not adjacent to res. 
Rear Setback (south) 50 ft.  64.15 ft. 30' required when not adjacent to res. 
Building Height 35 ft.  24 ft. 4 in. (35' 4" to top of decorative cupola) 
Lot Coverage No Max 36.80%   
Impervious Lot Coverage 75% 58.30%   

 
Parking & Loading 
 

1. Assisted living facilities require 0.5 parking spaces for each dwelling unit, plus one for each employee 
during the largest working shift.  There are 82 dwelling units, and the applicant has noted that there 
would be up to 12 employees at any one time, requiring a total of 53 parking spaces.  The site plan 
illustrates 55 parking spaces, 3 of which are ADA accessible, meeting this code requirement.  
 

2. For the plans presented at the workshop meeting, all parking was located in the front yard between the 
building and Route 30.  The parking field has now been split up, with one row of parking in the front yard 
and one row along the side yard to the west.  The row of parking along the west side property line will be 
less visible from Route 30, being screened from view by the building and a row of evergreen landscaping 
along the west property line.   
 



6 
 

3. The Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum drive aisle width of 20’ when serving one row of parking.  The 
drive aisles adjacent to parking stalls range from 20’ - 24’ wide, meeting this requirement.  A 20’ wide 
drive aisle is the minimum width required by the Fire District.   
 

4. All parking spaces measure 9’x18’, meeting the minimum code requirement.  
 

5. The Zoning Ordinance is silent regarding off-street loading requirements for assisted living facilities, 
although in general loading areas may not be located in a front yard.  It is typical for assisted living 
facilities to receive deliveries by smaller “box trucks”.  The site plan illustrates four pedestrian entrances 
along the south building façade, with sidewalks leading to the southern access drive.  At the workshop 
meeting on March 10, 2022, the applicant noted that deliveries would be made in the drive aisle along the 
south property line, completely screened from Route 30 and mostly screened from Windy Hill Drive.   
 

6. Concrete curbs are required for all paved areas and have been provided.  
 

Access and Circulation 
 

1. Per the Village’s 2007 Master Transportation Plan, Route 30 is classified as a “Regional Arterial” and 
Windy Hill Drive is classified as a “Neighborhood Collector”.  Route 30 is under the jurisdiction of IDOT, 
while Windy Hill Drive is operated and maintained by the Village.  Two access points (driveways) are 
proposed along Windy Hill Drive, which have been reviewed by both the Public Works Department and 
the Village’s Engineering consultant.  The existing driveway access to Route 30 would be closed.  
Driveways were proposed along Windy Hill Drive instead of Route 30 due to the slow permit review 
process for roads under IDOT jurisdiction and because IDOT was unlikely to grant a driveway permit 
within proximity to the existing intersection.   
 

2. On all business lots with over 200’ of frontage, two points of ingress/egress may be permitted, measuring 
at least 20’ wide.  The site plan illustrates two points of ingress/egress to Windy Hill Drive, measuring 24’ 
wide and 20’ wide, meeting this requirement.  

 
3. A traffic study may be requested by the Village but is not required.  Typically, residents of assisted living 

facilities do not drive to and from the building and the applicant noted the same during the workshop 
meeting.  A traffic study was not requested during the PC-ZBA workshop meeting.  
 

4. Sidewalks currently exist within the rights-of-way along both Route 30 and Windy Hill Drive and would 
remain.  If the existing sidewalks are damaged during construction, those damaged portions must be 
replaced.  This requirement has been added as a condition of approval.  
 

5. A 6’ wide sidewalk has been provided connecting the front entrance of the building to the existing 
sidewalk along Windy Hill Drive, meeting code.  

 
6. Although not required by code, the Village requested that the northern driveway apron be flared into a 

partial turn lane, or tapered turn.  This flared driveway is intended to provide more space for vehicles to 
enter the site from Windy Hill Drive, being cognizant of the small, landscaped median within Windy Hill 
Drive closer to Route 30.    
 
 
 
 



7 
 

Floorplan 

The current floorplan illustrates 82 residential units, whereas 78 units were originally proposed during the 
workshop meeting.  The breakdown of unit types is as follows:  

Current 82-unit floorplan:  

a. Memory care units: 26 

b. Studio units: 31 

c. One-bedroom units: 21 

d. Two-bedroom units: 4 

Former 78-unit floorplan:  

a. Memory care units: 26 

b. Studio units: 20 

c. One-bedroom units: 28 

d. Two-bedroom units: 4 

Architectural Style and Building Materials 

1. The Zoning Ordinance requires that new construction within the B-2 zone district shall:  
 

a) Have an original and unique design.  The building exterior would be constructed of cultured stone and 
cement board siding.  The roof would be constructed of asphalt shingles, although metal roof accent 
panels would be used over the bay windows.  

b) Shall be consistent with the architectural design, height, massing, and materials of adjacent properties. 
The building architecture and materials convey a more residential design to blend in with the adjacent 
townhomes.  The adjacent townhomes to the south have a masonry (river rock) wainscot with board & 
batten siding.  Both the assisted living facility and the existing townhomes would have pitched roofs 
with asphalt shingles.   

c) EIFS should only be used for accent features.  No EIFS is proposed for the assisted living facility.  
d) Brick or masonry materials shall be used on all sides of non-residential development.  All sides of the 

proposed building contain some cultured stone veneer, either rising to the height of wainscot or 
sometimes extending to the eave of the roof.   

e) Flat and mansard roofs are discouraged.  A hipped roof is proposed for the assisted living facility, 
which is common for residential structures.  

f) Colors schemes should consider the character of other structures in the area. Excessively bright colors 
should be used only as accent features. The proposed building will have mostly neutral colors (see 
attached colored renderings with proposed building materials).  

 
Grading 
 

1. There is a noticeable existing slope on the subject property.  The site is highest at the northwest corner 
near Route 30 and lowest along the frontage of Windy Hill Drive.  Cut and fill will be required to level out 
the property.   



8 
 

 
2. A single retaining wall is proposed at the northwest corner of the site.  The proposed wall would vary in 

height, tapering at either end of the wall.  The wall would be highest in the middle where it bends, 
measuring approximately 7’ tall max.  A detail of this retaining wall is included on Sheet 3 and the 
applicant has also provided a copy of the manufacturer specifications (attached).  The proposed retaining 
wall would be most visible from the proposed building, not Route 30, since the grade drops down from 
Route 30.  As such, the parking spaces near this retaining wall will appear recessed when viewed from 
Route 30 or the property to the west, visually screening those parking spaces.  The Design Standards note 
that walls taller than 2.5’ or longer than 50’ require review and approval by the Plan Commission (the 
retaining wall meets both criteria).  Approval of such walls by the Plan Commission is an 
acknowledgement, not a variance.   
 

Stormwater & Drainage 
 
An extensive amount of preliminary engineering work was conducted after the workshop meeting but before the 
public hearing.  After thorough review by Robinson Engineering, it was determined that the site may utilize existing 
and proposed infrastructure and drain into the existing detention pond on the east side of Windy Hill Drive.  This 
pond then empties into Hickory Creek further east.  There is no on-site stormwater detention required or 
provided.   
 
Floodplains and wetlands 
 
There are no existing floodplains on the subject property.  A 51-page wetland report submitted to the Village on 
July 8th concluded the presence of a small “potentially jurisdictional wetland area totaling 0.03 acres” and a 
“potentially jurisdictional stream measuring 373 linear feet”.  The term “jurisdictional” refers to the jurisdiction of 
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE).  Based on discussions with Robinson Engineering, it’s staff’s 
understanding that both the wetland and the stream would be permitted to be filled in due to their relatively small 
sizes, regardless of whether they are under the jurisdiction of USACE, although if they are, a permit would be 
required from either the USACE, Illinois Department of Natural Resources or the Illinois Environmental Protection 
Agency.   
 
Tree Removal & Landscaping 

1. Tree Survey:  A tree survey was submitted illustrating 108 existing trees on subject property and within 
the adjacent rights-of-way.  Of these trees, 96 are located on the subject property and all will be removed.  
The remaining 12 trees to be preserved are located within the right-of-way of either Route 30 or Windy 
Hill Drive.  

Of the 96 trees that will be removed, 24 are classified as “preservation trees” per the Landscape 
Ordinance and must be mitigated on-site.  The other 72 non-preservation trees may be removed without 
mitigation, although the Landscape Ordinance does require other forms of landscaping (street trees, 
buffers, parking lot landscaping) as part of the proposed new development.  Of the 24 “preservation 
trees”, 5 of these are evergreen trees and 19 are deciduous trees.  

2. Preservation Trees: The 5 evergreen preservation trees must be mitigated on-site at a 1:1 ratio for tree 
height.  The 19 deciduous preservation trees must be mitigated on-site at a 1:1 ratio for tree caliper (trunk 
diameter).  A total of 144’ height of evergreen trees must be mitigated on-site, with 438’ provided, 
exceeding this requirement (3 times as much).  A total of 283 deciduous tree caliper must be mitigated 
on-site, with 96 caliper inches being provided, falling short of this requirement (3 times as little).  Page 11 
of the Landscape Ordinance contains a provision that can allow relief specifically from the preservation 



9 
 

tree mitigation requirements: “Relief from any portion or all of the on-site tree replacement requirement 
may be granted by the code official”. As such, staff seeks input from the Plan Commission as to whether 
an oversupply of evergreen trees would offset the undersupply of deciduous trees.  In this instance, it 
may make more practical sense to provide more evergreen trees and less deciduous trees to provide a 
year-round visual screen between the subject property and adjacent properties.  Conversely, the “code 
official” may require that all tree mitigation be met as specifically required by code.   

3. Parkway Trees (Street Trees): The Landscape Ordinance requires one 2.5” caliper overstory tree for every 
35 lineal feet where no overhead power lines exist.  The applicant intends to meet this requirement using 
a combination of existing and proposed overstory trees.   

  Required Street Trees Proposed Street Trees 
Route 30 13 13 
Windy Hill Drive 14 16 (10 of which in ROW) 
 

4. Buffer Landscaping: When a business use is adjacent to a residential zone, such use shall be screened from 
view (Article 6, Section C, Part 2, j).  As such, landscaping is required along the south property line shared 
with the existing Windy Hill townhome development.  This landscaping should offer year-round screening 
as much as possible, using mostly evergreen trees and shrubs.  This landscaping requirement is located in 
the Zoning Ordinance, not the Landscape Ordinance.  As such, it does not specify a specific amount of 
landscaping required, only that landscaping shall exist to provide screening.  Much of the preservation 
tree mitigation has been added along the west and south property lines to provide a visual screening.  The 
applicant is proposing more evergreens than is required but less overstory (canopy) trees than is required.  
 

5. Parking Lot Landscaping: Landscaping is required to screen the parking spaces as well as provide 
landscaping within parking lot islands and fingers.  A minimum 10’ wide landscape screen is required 
along the parking lot perimeter, consisting of 150 plant units for every 100 lineal feet.  At least 75% of this 
landscaping must be evergreen.  Each parking lot island and finger must contain one overstory tree.  The 
proposed landscaping meets these requirements.  
 

6. Mechanical unit screening: All mechanical units will be ground-mounted and located at various points on 
all sides of the building.  These units will be screened with 30” yews.  

 
Lighting 
 

1. Lighting for the property will be provided in the form of light poles and building-mounted lights.  The 
photometric plan illustrates 7 light poles and 7 building-mounted lights.  The light poles would be 
distributed on the site with four (4) light poles adjacent to the front row of parking along Route 30, two 
(2) light poles adjacent to the west row of parking along the west property line and one (1) light pole near 
the trash enclosure near the south property line.  The building-mounted lights would be distributed on 
the site with four (4) being placed on the south side of the building and three (3) on the west side of the 
building.  
 

2. The light poles measure 20’ tall and are fitted with non-cutoff fixtures.  Light poles would be 20’ tall, 
whereas 20’ is the maximum height permitted, complying with the Ordinance.  Building-mounted lights 
would be positioned 10’ above grade and have cut-off fixtures.  Details of the proposed light fixtures are 
illustrated on the Improvement Plans on Sheet 9.  
 



10 
 

3. Light levels shall not exceed 0.5 foot-candles along any property line.  The photometric plan illustrates 
that this requirement has been met.   
 

4. Certain zone districts, including the B-2 zone, require that new light poles be equipped with “decorative” 
bases.  Sheet 9 of the Improvement Plans illustrates a “bell-shaped”, decorative metal base for the light 
poles.  

 
Other 
 

1. The Fire District has reviewed the proposed site plan and does not have any additional comments at this 
time.  
 

2. Basements are not required for this type of development per the Zoning Ordinance or the International 
Building Code.  
 

3. Overhead powerlines exist within the road right-of-way of Route 30.  Since these lines exist within the 
right-of-way, they are not anticipated to affect the required street tree landscaping, which will be placed 
on private property.   
 

4. The project does not contain any accessory structures, other than a trash enclosure, located near the 
southwest corner of the property in the rear yard.   
 

5. Dumpster enclosure visibility must be minimized by locating them away from public rights-of-way and 
building entrances, using enclosure screening materials similar to the main structure and through the use 
of landscaping.  The proposed dumpster would be located near the southwest corner of the property, 
away from both public rights-of-way and is surrounded by trees and landscaping.  The dumpster detail 
illustrates a cultured stone wainscot with board and batten siding above it, matching the building.  The 
dumpster enclosure would measure 6’ tall.  All aspects of the dumpster enclosure (setbacks, materials, 
height) comply with the Zoning Ordinance.  
 

6. Mechanical units will be ground-mounted only and distributed on all sides of the building.  The landscape 
plan illustrates that they will all be screened with evergreen shrubs.  

 

Special Use Request 
 
The following findings of fact are used to judge the merit of a special use permit request.   
 
Findings of Fact: 
 
No special use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission, unless such Commission shall find: 
 
a. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or endanger, the 
public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.   
 
b. That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity 
for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within the 
neighborhood.   
 
c. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.  



11 
 

d. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at variance 
with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already constructed, or in the 
course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the applicable district, as to cause a 
substantial depreciation in the property values within the neighborhood.   
 
e. That the adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are being provided.   
 
f. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize 
traffic congestion in the public streets.   
 
g. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in which it is 
located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the Village Board, pursuant to the 
recommendations of the Plan Commission.   
 
Affirmative Motions 
 

1. Recommend to the Village Board to approve the Special Use Permit for an assisted living facility, in 
accordance with the reviewed plans, findings of fact, and public testimony, conditioned on final 
engineering approval, the replacement of any damaged sections of public sidewalk, and the base of any 
future ground sign shall be consistent with the materials of the wainscot on the building. 
 

2. Recommend the Village Board approve the Final Plat of Subdivision for Oasis Senior Living, in accordance 
with the reviewed plans and public testimony, subject to any technical revisions prior to recording and 
conditioned on final engineering approval.   
 

 



W LINCOLN HWY

WIN
DY H

ILL D
R

S 
PF

EI
FF

ER
 R

D

S 
84

TH
 A

VE

SADDLEBRED CT

B
R

ET
O

N
 R

D

EN
G

LI
SH

 D
R

W WOODVALE RD

8531 W. Lincoln Highway

µ

0 500 1,000250
Feet



W LINCOLN HWY

W
INDY HILL DR

SADDLEBRED CT

8531 W. Lincoln Highway

µ

0 250 500125
Feet



cgruba
Received







 
 

Application for Plan Commission / Zoning Board of Appeals Review 
Special Use Permit Findings of Fact 

 
Article 3, Section E, Part 6 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists “findings” or “standards” that 
the Plan Commission must use to evaluate every special use permit request. The Plan Commission must 
make the following seven findings based upon the evidence provided. To assist the Plan Commission in 
their review of the special use permit request(s), please provide responses to the following “Findings of 
Fact.” Please attach additional pages as necessary.  
 
1. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or 

endanger, the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare. 
 
 
 
 
 
2. That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 

immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair 
property values within the neighborhood. 

 
 
 
 
 
3. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 

improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district. 
  
 
 
 
 
4. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at 

variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already 
constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the 
applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the 
neighborhood. 

 
 
 
 
 

The facility will provide a residential living experience for seniors and will not 
adversely impact the surrounding areas or general welfare. 

Senior living facilities are generally self-contained operations with very little outside 
activities that would impact adjacent properties. 

The development of the parcel will not have a negative impact on future development 
of adjacent parcels. 

The building will be a single story structure consisting of cultured stone and board and 
batten style composite siding. The style is intended to be more of a residential feel 
and will not be in contrast with the existing residential subdivision to the south. 

cgruba
Received



5. That the adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are being 
provided. 

 
 
 
 
 
6. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so 

designed as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets. 
 

 

 

 

7. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district 
in which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the Village 
Board, pursuant to the recommendations of the Plan Commission. 

 
 

Village water main and sanitary sewer is adjacent to the as is a publicly dedicated 
roadway. Storm sewer has been provided to the parcel and will convey drainage to 
an existing detention basin in the Windy Hill Farm Subdivision. 

Access to the site will be provided from Windy Hill Drive, a publicly dedicated street. 
The residents of the facility typically do not drive, so traffic volume will generally be 
limited to employees and visitors sporadically throughout the day. Traffic will be fairly 
light compared to other residential or commercial uses. 

The request does not include any variations from applicable Village codes. 



cgruba
Received



 
 

 
 Oasis Senior Living 

GJN #21074 

Background 

The proposed development will disturb approximately 4.68 acres and will consist of an 
approximately 75,000 square foot assisted living and memory care facility with paved parking 
areas. Storm water management will be provided in accordance with the requirements of the 
Will County Storm Water Management Ordinance and the appropriate local ordinances. All 
calculations utilize updated rainfall data from the Illinois State Water Survey Bulletin 75 (March 
2020). 

Existing Conditions 

Copies of the applicable floodplain map, wetland map, soils map, and County GIS map for the 
property are provided in Appendix 1. Based on the available data, the property does contain 
some wetlands at the very southwest corner of the property.   
 
Detention Analysis 
 
Storm water detention has been provided off-site as part of the detention basins constructed 
with the Windy Hill Farm Subdivision. The basin provides storage for the site up to an 
impervious level of 85 percent. The proposed impervious level for the site, see below, is 
approximately 59%; therefore, additional storm water detention is not required for the site.   
 
 Total Site Area:  4.68 acres 
  
 Impervious Area: 
  Building  1.72 acres 
  Paving/Walks  1.02 acres 
  Total:  2.74 acres (58.6%) 
    
Storm Sewer 
 
Storm sewer will be provided to convey the runoff from the proposed improvements to the storm 
water detention facility for a 10-year rainfall event. Calculations may be seen in Appendix 2.  
 
Overland Flood Routes  
 
An overland flood route has been provided through the site to convey the 100-year flow to the 
proposed detention facilities. Calculations for weirs along the path are provided in Appendix 3 to 
demonstrate 1 foot of freeboard is provided for adjacent structures. Per the Will County 
Ordinance, the design flow at each weir will be 1 cfs per tributary acre.    
 
Off-Site Tributary Area 
 
An analysis was performed to determine the off-site flow tributary to our site. There are 
approximately 3.86 acres west of our site that are tributary to the Oasis site. A GIS contour map 
showing the tributary area can be found in Appendix 4 and a calculation of the tributary flow is 
shown below.  
 
Q = CiA; Q=0.3 x 7.44 (10 year) x 3.86; Q = 8.61 cfs 
 
 



 
 

 
 Oasis Senior Living 

GJN #21074 

Conclusion 

The proposed improvements will not adversely impact surface runoff on or adjacent to the site 
and proposed drainage facilities have been designed in accordance with the appropriate 
Ordinances.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 
 Oasis Senior Living 

GJN #21074 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1  

Maps 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



National Flood Hazard Layer FIRMette

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000250
Feet

Ü

SEE FIS REPORT FOR DETAILED LEGEND AND INDEX MAP FOR FIRM PANEL LAYOUT

SPECIAL FLOOD
HAZARD AREAS

Without Base Flood Elevation (BFE)
Zone A, V, A99

With BFE or DepthZone AE, AO, AH, VE, AR

Regulatory Floodway

0.2% Annual Chance Flood Hazard, Areas
of 1% annual chance flood with average
depth less than one foot or with drainage
areas of less than one square mileZone X

Future Conditions 1% Annual
Chance Flood HazardZone X

Area with Reduced Flood Risk due to
Levee. See Notes.Zone X

Area with Flood Risk due to LeveeZone D

NO SCREENArea of Minimal Flood HazardZone X

Area of Undetermined Flood HazardZone D

Channel, Culvert, or Storm Sewer

Levee, Dike, or Floodwall

Cross Sections with 1% Annual Chance
17.5 Water Surface Elevation

Coastal Transect

Coastal Transect Baseline
Profile Baseline
Hydrographic Feature

Base Flood Elevation Line (BFE)

Effective LOMRs

Limit of Study
Jurisdiction Boundary

Digital Data Available

No Digital Data Available

Unmapped

This map complies with FEMA's standards for the use of
digital flood maps if it is not void as described below.
The basemap shown complies with FEMA's basemap
accuracy standards

The flood hazard information is derived directly from the
authoritative NFHL web services provided by FEMA. This map
was exported on 8/26/2021 at 3:01 PM  and does not
reflect changes or amendments subsequent to this date and
time. The NFHL and effective information may change or
become superseded by new data over time.

This map image is void if the one or more of the following map
elements do not appear: basemap imagery, flood zone labels,
legend, scale bar, map creation date, community identifiers,
FIRM panel number, and FIRM effective date. Map images for
unmapped and unmodernized areas cannot be used for
regulatory purposes.

Legend

OTHER AREAS OF
FLOOD HAZARD

OTHER AREAS

GENERAL
STRUCTURES

OTHER
FEATURES

MAP PANELS

8

B
20.2

The pin displayed on the map is an approximate
point selected by the user and does not represent
an authoritative property location.

1:6,000

87°49'45"W 41°30'34"N

87°49'7"W 41°30'7"N

Basemap: USGS National Map: Orthoimagery: Data refreshed October, 2020



Disclaimer of Warranties and Accuracy of Data: Although the data developed by Will County for its maps, websites, and Geographic Information System has been produced and processed from sources believed to be reliable, no warranty, expressed or implied, is made 
regarding accuracy, adequacy, completeness, legality, reliability or usefulness of any information. This disclaimer applies to both isolated and aggregate uses of the information. The County and elected officials provide this information on an "as is" basis. All warranties of 
any kind, express or implied, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, freedom from contamination by computer viruses or hackers and non-infringement of proprietary rights are disclaimed. Changes may be 
periodically made to the information herein; these changes may or may not be incorporated in any new version of the publication. If you have obtained information from any of the County web pages from a source other than the County pages, be aware that electronic data 
can be altered subsequent to original distribution. Data can also quickly become out of date. It is recommended that careful attention be paid to the contents of any data, and that the originator of the data or information be contacted with any questions regarding appropriate 
use. Please direct any questions or issues via email to gis@willcountyillinois.com.

4,514

Legend

1:

WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

0 0.07

Notes

Miles0.1

Roadways

Federal

State

County

Local and Private

Parcels LY

Townships

ContourLines2014_2Ft



Soil Map—Will County, Illinois

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

8/26/2021
Page 1 of 3

45
95

17
0

45
95

19
0

45
95

21
0

45
95

23
0

45
95

25
0

45
95

27
0

45
95

29
0

45
95

31
0

45
95

15
0

45
95

17
0

45
95

19
0

45
95

21
0

45
95

23
0

45
95

25
0

45
95

27
0

45
95

29
0

45
95

31
0

431110 431130 431150 431170 431190 431210 431230 431250 431270 431290 431310 431330 431350

431110 431130 431150 431170 431190 431210 431230 431250 431270 431290 431310 431330 431350

41°  30' 23'' N
87

° 
 4

9'
 3

2'
' W

41°  30' 23'' N

87
° 
 4

9'
 2

1'
' W

41°  30' 18'' N

87
° 
 4

9'
 3

2'
' W

41°  30' 18'' N

87
° 
 4

9'
 2

1'
' W

N

Map projection: Web Mercator   Corner coordinates: WGS84   Edge tics: UTM Zone 16N WGS84
0 50 100 200 300

Feet
0 15 30 60 90

Meters
Map Scale: 1:1,170 if printed on A landscape (11" x 8.5") sheet.

Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.



Map Unit Legend

Map Unit Symbol Map Unit Name Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

149A Brenton silt loam, 0 to 2 
percent slopes

0.2 5.0%

232A Ashkum silty clay loam, 0 to 2 
percent slopes

0.2 4.7%

241D3 Chatsworth silty clay, 6 to 12 
percent slopes, severely 
eroded

0.1 2.7%

320C2 Frankfort silty clay loam, 4 to 6 
percent slopes, eroded

3.8 87.7%

Totals for Area of Interest 4.3 100.0%

Soil Map—Will County, Illinois

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

8/26/2021
Page 3 of 3



Wetland Map

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS,
USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

Wetlands

Estuarine and Marine Deepwater

Estuarine and Marine Wetland

Freshwater Emergent Wetland

Freshwater Forested/Shrub Wetland

Freshwater Pond

Lake

Other

Riverine

August 26, 2021

0 0.06 0.120.03 mi

0 0.1 0.20.05 km

1:3,642

This page was produced by the NWI mapper
National Wetlands Inventory (NWI)

This map is for general reference only. The US Fish and Wildlife 
Service is not responsible for the accuracy or currentness of the 
base data shown on this map. All wetlands related data should 
be used in accordance with the layer metadata found on the 
Wetlands Mapper web site.



 
 

 
 Oasis Senior Living 

GJN #21074 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 2 

Storm Sewer Calculations 

Proposed Site – 10 Year Event 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



AutoCAD SHX Text
LINCOLN HIGHWAY - U.S. ROUTE 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDY HILL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=705.27 N INV=701.97 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=709.24 N INV=705.34 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=702.16 N INV=798.11 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=693.06 N INV=691.26 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=697.93 N/S INV=690.78 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=691.99 E/W INV=687.89 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=692.53 S INV=688.88 (21" RCP) E INV=687.93 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" F.E.S. INV=689.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=692.00 E/W INV=686.80 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MANHOLE RIM=692.55 S/W INV=686.90 (30" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=700.49 E INV=693.39 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=700.55 E/W INV=691.80 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF=704.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
713

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
699

AutoCAD SHX Text
698

AutoCAD SHX Text
697

AutoCAD SHX Text
696

AutoCAD SHX Text
695

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
693

AutoCAD SHX Text
693

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
I2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.66 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 1 A=0.66 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 5 A=0.23 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 6 A=0.32 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
697.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
695.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
693.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
692.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH2.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.46 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH2.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.30 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH2.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.27 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB2.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.04 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
I1.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.61 CFS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH1.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.23 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH1.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.32 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.42 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH1.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.41 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH1.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.12 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
I1.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.09 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 2 A=0.46 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 3 A=0.30 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 4 A=0.41 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 7 A=0.42 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 8 A=0.41 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 9 A=0.12 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 10 A=0.09 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
699

AutoCAD SHX Text
699

AutoCAD SHX Text
698

AutoCAD SHX Text
698

AutoCAD SHX Text
697

AutoCAD SHX Text
697

AutoCAD SHX Text
696

AutoCAD SHX Text
696

AutoCAD SHX Text
695

AutoCAD SHX Text
695

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
693

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WALL=708.0 B/WALL=705.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WALL=707.0 B/WALL=704.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
708

AutoCAD SHX Text
712

AutoCAD SHX Text
711

AutoCAD SHX Text
710

AutoCAD SHX Text
709

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WALL=708.0 B/WALL=705.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WALL=707.0 B/WALL=VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
708

AutoCAD SHX Text
712

AutoCAD SHX Text
711

AutoCAD SHX Text
710

AutoCAD SHX Text
709

AutoCAD SHX Text
708

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
I1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.41 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
FES2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.21 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE        

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREST HILL, ILLINOIS  60403

AutoCAD SHX Text
815/730-1010

AutoCAD SHX Text
1207 CEDARWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS  -  LAND SURVEYORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTECH INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/14/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OASIS SENIOR LIVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM REV SUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-20-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER DIVIDES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: : 1. UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, ALL PROPOSED ELEVATIONS ARE EITHER FINISHED PAVEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, ALL PROPOSED ELEVATIONS ARE EITHER FINISHED PAVEMENT ELEVATIONS OR FINISHED LANDSCAPE ELEVATIONS. 2. ALL PROPOSED GRADES SHALL MATCH EXISTING GRADES AT PROPERTY LINES, EDGE OF  ALL PROPOSED GRADES SHALL MATCH EXISTING GRADES AT PROPERTY LINES, EDGE OF  PAVEMENT, CURB, OR SIDEWALKS. 3. RIM ELEVATIONS FOR STORM STRUCTURES LOCATED ALONG CURB AND GUTTER ARE  RIM ELEVATIONS FOR STORM STRUCTURES LOCATED ALONG CURB AND GUTTER ARE  EDGE OF PAVEMENT. RIM ELEVATIONS FOR ALL OTHER STRUCTURES ARE FINISHED  LANDSCAPE OR PAVEMENT ELEVATION. 4. ALL NON-PAVED AREAS TO BE RE-SPREAD WITH 6" TOPSOIL AND STABILIZED WITH  ALL NON-PAVED AREAS TO BE RE-SPREAD WITH 6" TOPSOIL AND STABILIZED WITH  VEGETATIVE COVER. 5. A.D.A. ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALLS SHALL NOT EXCEED A 2.0% SLOPE IN ANY  A.D.A. ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALLS SHALL NOT EXCEED A 2.0% SLOPE IN ANY  DIRECTION AND ALL A.D.A ACCESSIBLE ROUTES SHALL NOT EXCEED A  2% CROSS SLOPE 2% CROSS SLOPE AND 5% LONGITUDINAL SLOPE.  6. FINISHED LANDSCAPE ELEVATION ADJACENT TO PROPOSED BUILDINGS SHALL  BE  FINISHED LANDSCAPE ELEVATION ADJACENT TO PROPOSED BUILDINGS SHALL  BE  BE  6-INCHES BELOW FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION OR TOP OF FOUNDATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADING LEGEND: TC - TOP OF CURB - TOP OF CURB TOP OF CURB DC - TOP OF DEPRESSED CURB - TOP OF DEPRESSED CURB TOP OF DEPRESSED CURB EP - EDGE OF PAVEMENT - EDGE OF PAVEMENT EDGE OF PAVEMENT TW - TOP OF SIDEWALK - TOP OF SIDEWALK TOP OF SIDEWALK R - STRUCTURE RIM - STRUCTURE RIM STRUCTURE RIM GR - FIRE HYDRANT GRADE RING - FIRE HYDRANT GRADE RING FIRE HYDRANT GRADE RING I - INVERT - INVERT INVERT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD ROUTE FLOW DIRECTION SPOT ELEVATION CONTOUR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
     CONSTRUCTION NOTES: CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 1. XXX XXX 2. XXXXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE 1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
     ADA GRADES: : 1. EP=700.6 ; TDC=700.6 ; BW=700.7 EP=700.6 ; TDC=700.6 ; BW=700.7 2. EP=700.2 ; TDC=700.2 ; BW=700.3EP=700.2 ; TDC=700.2 ; BW=700.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
#









 
 

 
 Oasis Senior Living 

GJN #21074 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 3 

Overland Flood Route Calculations 
 

 



AutoCAD SHX Text
LINCOLN HIGHWAY - U.S. ROUTE 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDY HILL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=705.27 N INV=701.97 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=709.24 N INV=705.34 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=702.16 N INV=798.11 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=693.06 N INV=691.26 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=697.93 N/S INV=690.78 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=691.99 E/W INV=687.89 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=692.53 S INV=688.88 (21" RCP) E INV=687.93 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" F.E.S. INV=689.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=692.00 E/W INV=686.80 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MANHOLE RIM=692.55 S/W INV=686.90 (30" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=700.49 E INV=693.39 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=700.55 E/W INV=691.80 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF=704.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
713

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
699

AutoCAD SHX Text
698

AutoCAD SHX Text
697

AutoCAD SHX Text
696

AutoCAD SHX Text
695

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
693

AutoCAD SHX Text
693

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
I2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.66 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 1 A=0.66 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 5 A=0.23 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 6 A=0.32 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
697.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
695.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
693.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
692.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH2.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.46 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH2.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.30 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH2.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.27 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB2.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.04 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
I1.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.61 CFS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH1.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.23 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH1.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.32 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.42 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH1.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.41 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH1.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.12 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
I1.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.09 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 2 A=0.46 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 3 A=0.30 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 4 A=0.41 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 7 A=0.42 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 8 A=0.41 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 9 A=0.12 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEIR 10 A=0.09 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
699

AutoCAD SHX Text
699

AutoCAD SHX Text
698

AutoCAD SHX Text
698

AutoCAD SHX Text
697

AutoCAD SHX Text
697

AutoCAD SHX Text
696

AutoCAD SHX Text
696

AutoCAD SHX Text
695

AutoCAD SHX Text
695

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
693

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WALL=708.0 B/WALL=705.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WALL=707.0 B/WALL=704.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
708

AutoCAD SHX Text
712

AutoCAD SHX Text
711

AutoCAD SHX Text
710

AutoCAD SHX Text
709

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WALL=708.0 B/WALL=705.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WALL=707.0 B/WALL=VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
708

AutoCAD SHX Text
712

AutoCAD SHX Text
711

AutoCAD SHX Text
710

AutoCAD SHX Text
709

AutoCAD SHX Text
708

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
I1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.41 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
FES2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.21 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE        

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREST HILL, ILLINOIS  60403

AutoCAD SHX Text
815/730-1010

AutoCAD SHX Text
1207 CEDARWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS  -  LAND SURVEYORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTECH INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/14/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OASIS SENIOR LIVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM REV SUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-20-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER DIVIDES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: : 1. UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, ALL PROPOSED ELEVATIONS ARE EITHER FINISHED PAVEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, ALL PROPOSED ELEVATIONS ARE EITHER FINISHED PAVEMENT ELEVATIONS OR FINISHED LANDSCAPE ELEVATIONS. 2. ALL PROPOSED GRADES SHALL MATCH EXISTING GRADES AT PROPERTY LINES, EDGE OF  ALL PROPOSED GRADES SHALL MATCH EXISTING GRADES AT PROPERTY LINES, EDGE OF  PAVEMENT, CURB, OR SIDEWALKS. 3. RIM ELEVATIONS FOR STORM STRUCTURES LOCATED ALONG CURB AND GUTTER ARE  RIM ELEVATIONS FOR STORM STRUCTURES LOCATED ALONG CURB AND GUTTER ARE  EDGE OF PAVEMENT. RIM ELEVATIONS FOR ALL OTHER STRUCTURES ARE FINISHED  LANDSCAPE OR PAVEMENT ELEVATION. 4. ALL NON-PAVED AREAS TO BE RE-SPREAD WITH 6" TOPSOIL AND STABILIZED WITH  ALL NON-PAVED AREAS TO BE RE-SPREAD WITH 6" TOPSOIL AND STABILIZED WITH  VEGETATIVE COVER. 5. A.D.A. ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALLS SHALL NOT EXCEED A 2.0% SLOPE IN ANY  A.D.A. ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALLS SHALL NOT EXCEED A 2.0% SLOPE IN ANY  DIRECTION AND ALL A.D.A ACCESSIBLE ROUTES SHALL NOT EXCEED A  2% CROSS SLOPE 2% CROSS SLOPE AND 5% LONGITUDINAL SLOPE.  6. FINISHED LANDSCAPE ELEVATION ADJACENT TO PROPOSED BUILDINGS SHALL  BE  FINISHED LANDSCAPE ELEVATION ADJACENT TO PROPOSED BUILDINGS SHALL  BE  BE  6-INCHES BELOW FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION OR TOP OF FOUNDATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADING LEGEND: TC - TOP OF CURB - TOP OF CURB TOP OF CURB DC - TOP OF DEPRESSED CURB - TOP OF DEPRESSED CURB TOP OF DEPRESSED CURB EP - EDGE OF PAVEMENT - EDGE OF PAVEMENT EDGE OF PAVEMENT TW - TOP OF SIDEWALK - TOP OF SIDEWALK TOP OF SIDEWALK R - STRUCTURE RIM - STRUCTURE RIM STRUCTURE RIM GR - FIRE HYDRANT GRADE RING - FIRE HYDRANT GRADE RING FIRE HYDRANT GRADE RING I - INVERT - INVERT INVERT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD ROUTE FLOW DIRECTION SPOT ELEVATION CONTOUR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
     CONSTRUCTION NOTES: CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 1. XXX XXX 2. XXXXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE 1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
     ADA GRADES: : 1. EP=700.6 ; TDC=700.6 ; BW=700.7 EP=700.6 ; TDC=700.6 ; BW=700.7 2. EP=700.2 ; TDC=700.2 ; BW=700.3EP=700.2 ; TDC=700.2 ; BW=700.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
#



Weir Capacity, Q (ft3/sec): 2.6*L*H1.5

Weir Location
Trib. Area 

(acre)
Design Flow 
(1 cfs/acre)

Weir 
Length (ft)

Weir 
Elevation

Water 
Height 

Over Weir

Weir 
Capacity 

(cfs)

Lowest 
Adjacent 

Finished Floor
Freeboard 

(ft)
Weir 1 0.66 0.66 10 703.00 0.1 0.82 704.5 1.40
Weir 2 0.46 0.46 10 703.00 0.1 0.82 704.5 1.40
Weir 3 0.3 0.30 10 703.00 0.1 0.82 704.5 1.40
Weir 4 0.41 0.41 10 702.60 0.1 0.82 704.5 1.80
Weir 5 0.23 0.23 10 702.70 0.1 0.82 704.5 1.70
Weir 6 0.32 0.32 10 702.70 0.1 0.82 704.5 1.70
Weir 7 0.42 0.42 10 702.70 0.1 0.82 704.5 1.70
Weir 8 0.41 0.41 10 702.70 0.1 0.82 704.5 1.70
Weir 9 0.12 0.12 10 701.20 0.1 0.82 704.5 3.20

Weir 10 0.09 0.09 10 699.90 0.1 0.82 704.5 4.50

Weir Capacity



 
 

Memorandum 
 
 
To: Christopher Gruba 
 
From: Nicholas Whitmore 
 
Re: Oasis Senior Living Facility  
 
 

Per Robinson’s latest review letter for the Oasis Senior Living Facility, we performed an analysis of the 
existing storm sewer for the 100-year storm. The storm sewer information was based on the as-built plans 
for the overall subdivision. The following documents are enclosed: original tributary area map from 
original subdivision design, master utility plan for original subdivision design, and storm sewer 
calculations for existing storm sewer in the 100-year storm condition. In addition, a summary of the 
percentage of the 100-year storm that each run has the capacity for is provided below: 

ST9-1 to ST9-2:  79.2% 
ST9-2 to ST9-3:  79.1% 
ST9-3 to ST9-4:  73.2% 
ST9-4 to ST9-9:  61.5% 
ST9-9 to ST9-10: 121.0% 
ST9-10 to ST9-11: 74.7% 
ST9-11 to FES9-1: 62.4% 
 
ST9-6 to ST9-7:  122.3% 
ST9-7 to ST9-8:  122.3% 
ST9-8 to ST9-8B: 70.6% 
ST9-8B to ST9-11: 90.4% 
 
In summary, there are three (3) out of the eleven (11) existing storm sewer runs that have adequate 
capacity to handle the 100-year storm. Of the eight (8) runs that do not have adequate capacity, on 
average, they can handle 73.9% of the 100-year storm. Finally, this is all assuming full flow conditions 
and does not take any head pressure into account.  
 

 

Thank you      

 
 
 
 

cgruba
Received







8531 W. Lincoln - National Wetland Inventory

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS,
USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

Wetlands

Estuarine and Marine Deepwater

Estuarine and Marine Wetland

Freshwater Emergent Wetland

Freshwater Forested/Shrub Wetland

Freshwater Pond

Lake

Other

Riverine

April 27, 2022

0 0.06 0.120.03 mi

0 0.095 0.190.0475 km

1:3,519

This page was produced by the NWI mapper
National Wetlands Inventory (NWI)

This map is for general reference only. The US Fish and Wildlife 
Service is not responsible for the accuracy or currentness of the 
base data shown on this map. All wetlands related data should 
be used in accordance with the layer metadata found on the 
Wetlands Mapper web site.





 



cgruba
Received



cgruba
Received



Pisa™ 
1 - 8 00-UN ILOCK    |     UNILOCK.COM

cgruba
Received



Pisa™

GRANITE NEVADA SIERRA

Notes: *  XL WALL UNITS ARE SINGLE UNITS AND ARE SOLD IN FULL BUNDLES ONLY and are produced and sold on a required, refundable skid. Corner Units are produced and sold on a required, refundable skid. 12" Coping bundle has 16 units of closed-end coping (8 left 
and 8 right). Closed-end 12" coping not sold separately. Maximum height - 36" (under optimum conditions). Higher walls can be achieved using geogrid reinforcement. The set back on Pisa wall is ¾" every course or 1½" every 2 courses. Retaining wall engineering 
software is also available free of charge at www.unilock.com. Walls greater than 4' in height require professional engineering. All measurements are nominal. Contact Unilock for more information.

PSA AUR
Stocked at Aurora, Elkhorn & Tonganoxie

APPLICATIONS

CROSS SECTIONS
Cross  Sections are available on Unilock's 
Contractor web site  under Products: 
contractor.unilock.com

 APPEARANCE
Edge Detail - n/a
Surface Texture - Split & Standard (coping) 
Joint Spacing - n/a
Void - n/a

TECHNOLOGIES

CLASSIC™  
Budget-friendly traditional product mix

TECHNICAL INFORMATION

Conforms to ASTM C 1372 
Eligible for LEED  v4.1 credits 

CORNER DOUBLE
 SPLIT CLASSIC

XL TAPERED SPLIT
CLASSIC

COPING
CLASSIC

Bundle Type DOUBLE SINGLE DOUBLE

Plant Produced CHICAGO CHICAGO CHICAGO

Thickness (mm) 150MM 150MM 75MM

FCFT PER

Bundle  30.01  21.33  20.34 

Layer  10.00  5.33  2.91 

Stone  1.67  0.67  0.48 
 6.00  6.00  6.00 

PER BUNDLE
Layers  3.00  4.00  7.00 

Sections  6.00  -    2.00 
 129.50  89.94  89.94 

LNFT PER
Bundle  -    42.67  82.95 

Unit  -    1.33  1.97 
 1.37  0.78  0.78 

UNITS PER

SqFt  0.60  1.50  2.06 

Section  3.00  -    21.00 

Bundle  18.00  32.00  42.00 
 275  207  207 

LBS PER

Layer  547  629  411 

Section  274  -    1,437 

Bundle  1,641  2,514  2,875 

COLORS Stock Stock Stock

Granite SR.n/a   SRI n/a

Nevada SR.n/a   SRI n/a

Sierra SR.n/a   SRI n/a

Si
ng

le
 U

ni
s CORNER

200 x 150 x 300mm
7 ⅞ x 5 ⅞ x 11 ⅞"
18 units/Bundle   
1.67 Fc.Ft./Stone

COPING
300 x 75 x 300mm
11 ⅞ x 3 x 11 ⅞"
42 units/Bundle  
.48 Fc.Ft./Stone

XL UNIT
400 x 150 x 300mm
15 ¾x 5 ⅞ x 11 ⅞"
32 units/Bundle   
.67 Fc.Ft./Stone

* 32 Corner Units/Bundle

81



















cgruba
Received



P:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

GJ
N2

10
74

\E
ng

in
ee

rin
g\

DW
G\

21
07

4 
ba

se
.d

w
g

Pl
ot

Da
te

: 8
/1

7/
20

22
 2

:4
6 

PM
 , 

La
yo

ut
: S

IT
E 

PL
AN

RECEIVED 8.17.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINCOLN HIGHWAY - U.S. ROUTE 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDY HILL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
75,074 SF SENIOR ASSISTED LIVING  AND MEMORY CARE FACILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
59.19'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3,281 SF COURTYARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
3,281 SF COURTYARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,206 SF COURTYARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,206 SF COURTYARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
71.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
240.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
113.39'

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.78'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
56.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
54.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.66'

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.44'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
59.19'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE US ROUTE 30 CENTERLINE PER PLAT OF HIGHWAYS DOC. NO. R95-039615

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE US ROUTE 30 CENTERLINE PER PLAT OF HIGHWAYS DOC. NO. R95-039615

AutoCAD SHX Text
MECHANICAL UNITS (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
7' WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUBLIC & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUBLIC & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS, SEE GENERAL NOTE 8 SHEET 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS, SEE GENERAL NOTE 8 SHEET 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAVEMENT (4,000 PSI): 6" PCC, (8" ENTRANCE APRONS) 4" AGGREGATE BASE, TYPE B, CA-6 W/6"x6"-W2.9xW2.9 W.W.F. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
B6.12 CURB & GUTTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE        

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREST HILL, ILLINOIS  60403

AutoCAD SHX Text
815/730-1010

AutoCAD SHX Text
1207 CEDARWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS  -  LAND SURVEYORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTECH INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/14/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OASIS SENIOR LIVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM REV SUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-20-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-5-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6-2-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. MECHANICAL UNITS SHALL BE SCREENED FROM VIEW USING WALLS, FENCING, OR  MECHANICAL UNITS SHALL BE SCREENED FROM VIEW USING WALLS, FENCING, OR  LANDSCAPING.  2. LIGHT POLES SHALL HAVE A "DECORATIVE BASE." LIGHT POLES SHALL HAVE A "DECORATIVE BASE." 

AutoCAD SHX Text
B6.12 CURB & GUTTER (REVERSE PITCH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPRESSED CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DATA TABLE SITE AREA:   4.68 AC 4.68 AC IMPERVIOUS AREA:  2.73 AC (58.3%) 2.73 AC (58.3%) UNITS:    MEMORY CARE:  26 26 STUDIO:   33 33 ONE BED:   19 19 TWO BED:    4 WO BED:    4 4 TOTAL:    82 82 REQUIRED PARKING (0.5/UNIT + 12 EMPLOYEES): 53 53 STANDARD PARKING STALLS: 51 51 A.D.A. PARKING STALLS:  33

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE 1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCC SIDEWALK: 5" PCC, 4,000 PSI 3" AGGREGATE, CA7 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT: 1.5" HMA SURFACE, MIX D, N50 2.5" HMA BINDER, IL19, N50 8" AGGREGATE, TYPE B, CA-6



cgruba
Received



P:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

GJ
N2

10
74

\E
ng

in
ee

rin
g\

DW
G\

21
07

4 
Ti

tle
 S

he
et

.d
w

g
Pl

ot
Da

te
: 9

/1
4/

20
22

 2
:5

1 
PM

 , 
La

yo
ut

: T
IT

LE
 S

HE
ET

IMPROVEMENT PLANS
FOR

OASIS SENIOR LIVING FACILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY INFORMATION: ADDRESS:  8531 W. LINCOLN HIGHWAY 8531 W. LINCOLN HIGHWAY MUNICIPALITY: VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT COUNTY:  WILL WILL SECTION:  SEC. 23 T35N R12E SEC. 23 T35N R12E R12E P.I.N.(S):  09-23-300-03109-23-300-031

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL BEFORE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
YOU DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
WARNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND%%U

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLARED END SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARKS: : REFERENCE: WILL COUNTY MONUMENT 921, ELEV=712.24 (NAVD88/GEOID18). MONUMENT LOCATED NORTH OF INTERSECTION OF COLORADO AVE AND BANKVIEW DRIVE.    SITE: BONNET BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT AT THE NORTHEAST BONNET BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE PROPERTY, ELEV=695.31 (NAVD88/GEOID18).  

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE & ENGINEER CERTIFICATE I, THOMAS CARROLL, A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER OF ILLINOIS, HEREBY AFFIRM THAT THESE DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PREPARED BY OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND CONTROL AND TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF, THESE DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ENGINEERING STANDARDS AND PRACTICES AND COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE LAWS, CODES AND ORDINANCES.  FURTHERMORE, TO THE BEST OF OUR KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF, THE DRAINAGE OF SURFACE WATERS WILL NOT BE CHANGED BY THE CONSTRUCTION OF THESE IMPROVEMENTS OR ANY PART THEREOF, OR; THAT IF SUCH SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE WILL BE CHANGED, REASONABLE PROVISIONS HAVE BEEN MADE FOR THE COLLECTION AND DISCHARGE OF SURFACE WATERS INTO PUBLIC OR PRIVATE AREAS AND/OR DRAINS WHICH THE DEVELOPER HAS THE RIGHT TO USE AND THAT SUCH SURFACE WATERS WILL BE PLANNED FOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ENGINEERING PRACTICES SO AS TO REDUCE THE LIKELIHOOD OF DAMAGE TO THE ADJOINING PROPERTY BECAUSE OF THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE  IMPROVEMENTS. DATED THIS 17th DAY OF AUGUST, 2022 ________________________ THOMAS CARROLL, P.E. ILLINOIS P.E. #062-052783 LICENSE EXPIRES 11-30-2023 GEOTECH INCORPORATED PROFESSIONAL DESIGN FIRM NUMBER 184-000165

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: OASIS IL LAND HOLDINGS LLC OASIS IL LAND HOLDINGS LLC TAHIR KHAN 2575 MCLEON DRIVE SOUTH, SUITE C SAGINAW, MI 48604 989-992-4587

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE        

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREST HILL, ILLINOIS  60403

AutoCAD SHX Text
815/730-1010

AutoCAD SHX Text
1207 CEDARWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS  -  LAND SURVEYORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTECH INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/14/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OASIS SENIOR LIVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM REV SUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-20-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-5-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6-2-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TITLE SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDEX OF SHEETS 1. TITLE SHEET TITLE SHEET 2. EXISTING CONDITIONS  EXISTING CONDITIONS  3. GEOMETRIC PLAN GEOMETRIC PLAN 4. GRADING PLAN GRADING PLAN 5. UTILITY PLAN UTILITY PLAN 6. STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN  STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN  7. EROSION CONTROL PLAN EROSION CONTROL PLAN 8. CONSTRUCTION DETAILS  CONSTRUCTION DETAILS  9. CONSTRUCTION DETAILS - 2 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS - 2 10. SPECIFICATIONSSPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
62-052783

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT PUBLIC WORK & UTILITIES DEPARTMENTS AND BUILDING DEPARTMENT  SHALL BE NOTIFIED A MINIMUM OF 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE START OF OR RESUMPTION OF WORK ON THE PROJECT



P:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

GJ
N2

10
74

\E
ng

in
ee

rin
g\

DW
G\

21
07

4 
ba

se
.d

w
g

Pl
ot

Da
te

: 9
/1

4/
20

22
 2

:5
2 

PM
 , 

La
yo

ut
: E

XI
ST

IN
G 

CO
ND

IT
IO

NS
 P

LA
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINCOLN HIGHWAY - U.S. ROUTE 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDY HILL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY FRAME BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY FRAME BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE  OF TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=705.27 N INV=701.97 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=709.24 N INV=705.34 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=702.16 N INV=798.11 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=693.06 N INV=691.26 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=697.93 N/S INV=690.78 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=691.99 E/W INV=687.89 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=692.53 S INV=688.88 (21" RCP) E INV=687.93 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" F.E.S. INV=689.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=692.00 E/W INV=686.80 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MANHOLE RIM=692.55 S/W INV=686.90 (30" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=700.49 E INV=693.39 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=700.55 E/W INV=691.80 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY MH RIM=699.19 W/S/E INV=683.09 S INV=693.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MANHOLE RIM=692.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MANHOLE RIM=691.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP F.E.S. INV=686.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY MANHOLE RIM=690.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MANHOLE RIM=692.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY MANHOLE RIM=690.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT   PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
697.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
695.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
693.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
692.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUBLIC & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUBLIC & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS, SEE GENERAL NOTE 8 SHEET 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS, SEE GENERAL NOTE 8 SHEET 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE        

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREST HILL, ILLINOIS  60403

AutoCAD SHX Text
815/730-1010

AutoCAD SHX Text
1207 CEDARWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS  -  LAND SURVEYORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTECH INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/14/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OASIS SENIOR LIVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM REV SUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-20-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-5-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6-2-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. EXISTING CONDITIONS BASED ON TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY PERFORMED BY GEOTECH  EXISTING CONDITIONS BASED ON TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY PERFORMED BY GEOTECH  INCORPORATED. 2. LOCATION OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS HAVE BEEN  LOCATION OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS HAVE BEEN  DETERMINED FROM THE BEST AVAILABLE INFORMATION AND ARE PROVIDED FOR THE   CONVENIENCE OF THE CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO CONTACT  ALL UTILITY COMPANIES AND JULIE TO VERIFY LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO  STARTING ANY WORK.  3. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE NECESSARY PROTECTION TO ALL EXISTING UTILITIES AND  CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE NECESSARY PROTECTION TO ALL EXISTING UTILITIES AND  ROADWAYS. 4. THE VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT SHALL BE NOTIFIED WHEN EXISTING FIELD DRAINAGE TILES ARE   THE VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT SHALL BE NOTIFIED WHEN EXISTING FIELD DRAINAGE TILES ARE   ENCOUNTERED DURING CONSTRUCTION REGARDLESS OF CONDITION OR FUNCTIONALITY. THE VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT SHALL HAVE FINAL APPROVAL OF ANY REPAIR, CONNECTION, ABANDONMENT, OR OTHER  METHODS FOR MITIGATING EXISTING DRAINAGE TILES ENCOUNTERED ON SITE. 5. EXISTING TREES ON PARCEL TO BE REMOVED. SEE LANDSCAPE AND TREE PLANS FOR DETAILS.    EXISTING TREES ON PARCEL TO BE REMOVED. SEE LANDSCAPE AND TREE PLANS FOR DETAILS.    

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION NOTES EXISTING BUILDING/ASPHALT DRIVE TO BE REMOVED. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE 1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK



P:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

GJ
N2

10
74

\E
ng

in
ee

rin
g\

DW
G\

21
07

4 
ba

se
.d

w
g

Pl
ot

Da
te

: 9
/1

4/
20

22
 2

:5
2 

PM
 , 

La
yo

ut
: G

EO
M

ET
RI

C 
PL

AN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINCOLN HIGHWAY - U.S. ROUTE 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDY HILL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
75,074 SF SENIOR ASSISTED LIVING  AND MEMORY CARE FACILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
59.19'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3,281 SF COURTYARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
3,281 SF COURTYARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,206 SF COURTYARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,206 SF COURTYARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
71.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
240.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
113.39'

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.78'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
56.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
54.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.66'

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.44'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
59.19'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE US ROUTE 30 CENTERLINE PER PLAT OF HIGHWAYS DOC. NO. R95-039615

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE US ROUTE 30 CENTERLINE PER PLAT OF HIGHWAYS DOC. NO. R95-039615

AutoCAD SHX Text
MECHANICAL UNITS (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
7' WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUBLIC & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUBLIC & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS, SEE GENERAL NOTE 8 SHEET 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS, SEE GENERAL NOTE 8 SHEET 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAVEMENT (4,000 PSI): 6" PCC, (8" ENTRANCE APRONS) 4" AGGREGATE BASE, TYPE B, CA-6 W/6"x6"-W2.9xW2.9 W.W.F. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
B6.12 CURB & GUTTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE        

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREST HILL, ILLINOIS  60403

AutoCAD SHX Text
815/730-1010

AutoCAD SHX Text
1207 CEDARWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS  -  LAND SURVEYORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTECH INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/14/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OASIS SENIOR LIVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM REV SUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-20-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-5-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6-2-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOMETRIC PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL NOTES: 1. REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR PROPOSED BUILDING DETAILS AND DIMENSIONS.  REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR PROPOSED BUILDING DETAILS AND DIMENSIONS.  BUILDING FOOTPRINT(S) SHOWN FOR REFERENCE.  2. UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, ALL PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL BE 4-INCH WIDE  UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, ALL PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL BE 4-INCH WIDE  STANDARD IDOT PAINTED YELLOW. MARKINGS WITHIN A R.O.W. SHALL BE THERMOPLASTIC. DIAGONAL STRIPING SHALL BE 2-FOOT ON  CENTER. CENTER. 3. WHERE SHOWN ON PLANS, SIDEWALKS INTERSECTING CURB SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WHERE SHOWN ON PLANS, SIDEWALKS INTERSECTING CURB SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH DEPRESSED CURBS, A.D.A ACCESSIBLE RAMPS, AND DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACE PER STANDARD IDOT DETAILS.  4. CURB RAMPS FOR SIDEWALKS ADJACENT TO ACCESSIBLE STALLS SHALL BE PROVIDED  CURB RAMPS FOR SIDEWALKS ADJACENT TO ACCESSIBLE STALLS SHALL BE PROVIDED  AT LOCATIONS SHOWN ON PLANS, PER THE STANDARD IDOT DETAILS. CURB TRANSITIONS  FROM FULL HEIGHT TO DEPRESSED, ADJACENT TO THE RAMPS, SHALL BE MINIMUM OF 6 LF.   5. ALL CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING PAVEMENT SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH A BUTT JOINT. ALL CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING PAVEMENT SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH A BUTT JOINT. 6. PROVIDE FULL DEPTH SAWCUT FOR ALL CURB, PAVEMENT, OR SIDEWALK TO  BE  PROVIDE FULL DEPTH SAWCUT FOR ALL CURB, PAVEMENT, OR SIDEWALK TO  BE  BE  REMOVED.  7. ALL SIGNS SHALL COMPLY WITH THE U.S. DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION  MANUAL ON  ALL SIGNS SHALL COMPLY WITH THE U.S. DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION  MANUAL ON  MANUAL ON  UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES AND THE ILLINOIS ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, LATEST  EDITIONS.  8. WETLAND LIMITS BASED ON DELINEATION PERFORMED BY ECS MIDWEST, LLC AND  WETLAND LIMITS BASED ON DELINEATION PERFORMED BY ECS MIDWEST, LLC AND  SUMMARIZED IN THEIR WATERS OF THE U.S. DELINEATION REPORT DATED JULY 1,  2022. THE WETLANDS TOTAL APPROXIMATELY 0.06 ACRES. THE USACE WILL BE  CONSULTED TO VERIFY THE DELINEATION AND ASSESSMENT THAT THE WETLANDS FALL  UNDER THE JURISDICTION OF THE USACE. ALL NECESSARY USACE PERMITS WILL BE  OBTAINED FOR PROPOSED IMPACTS TO THE WETLAND AREAS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN/PAVEMENT MARKING LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
B6.12 CURB & GUTTER (REVERSE PITCH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPRESSED CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DATA TABLE SITE AREA:   4.68 AC 4.68 AC IMPERVIOUS AREA:  2.73 AC (58.3%) 2.73 AC (58.3%) UNITS:    MEMORY CARE:  26 26 STUDIO:   33 33 ONE BED:   19 19 TWO BED:    4 WO BED:    4 4 TOTAL:    82 82 REQUIRED PARKING (0.5/UNIT + 11 EMPLOYEES): 52 52 STANDARD PARKING STALLS: 52 52 A.D.A. PARKING STALLS:  33

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE 1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCC SIDEWALK: 5" PCC, 4,000 PSI 3" AGGREGATE, CA7 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT: 1.5" HMA SURFACE, MIX D, N50 2.5" HMA BINDER, IL19, N50 8" AGGREGATE, TYPE B, CA-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
     CONSTRUCTION NOTES: CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 1. ADA PARKING SPACE AND SIGNAGE (TYPICAL), SEE DETAIL. ADA PARKING SPACE AND SIGNAGE (TYPICAL), SEE DETAIL. 2. SAWCUT EXISTING B6.12 CURB AND GUTTER TO CREATE DEPRESSED CURB AND GUTTER  SAWCUT EXISTING B6.12 CURB AND GUTTER TO CREATE DEPRESSED CURB AND GUTTER  FOR ENTRANCE. SEE DETAIL FOR CONNECTING TO EXISTING CURB. 3. PROVIDE DEPRESSED CURB FOR ADA RAMP. PROVIDE WARNING PLATES. PROVIDE  PROVIDE DEPRESSED CURB FOR ADA RAMP. PROVIDE WARNING PLATES. PROVIDE  FLARES TO TRANSITION FROM FULL HEIGHT CURB TO DEPRESSED CURB. 4. 5' DEPRESSED CURB FOR OVERLAND FLOW. 5' DEPRESSED CURB FOR OVERLAND FLOW. 5. CONCRETE PAD FOR DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE, SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR DETAILS. CONCRETE PAD FOR DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE, SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR DETAILS. 6. PROPOSED VARIABLE HEIGHT RETAINING WALL, SEE DETAIL. PROPOSED VARIABLE HEIGHT RETAINING WALL, SEE DETAIL. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.	STOP SIGN, R1-1, 30" X 30" 	W/ 12" WHITE STOP BARSTOP SIGN, R1-1, 30" X 30" 	W/ 12" WHITE STOP BARW/ 12" WHITE STOP BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UTYPICAL RETAINING WALL SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEGMENTAL BLOCK RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPING UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED GRANULAR  BASE/LEVELING PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOGRID AS  REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:  1.WALL SECTION FOR REFERENCE. WALL MATERIAL, GEOGRID, DRAINS, BASE, AND CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE PER THE REQUIREMENTS OF WALL SYSTEM SELECTED BY CONTRACTOR 2. WALL EXCEEDING 2.5 FEET IN HEIGHT OR 50' IN LENGTH SHALL BE DESIGNED BY A STRUCTURAL ENGINEER.



AutoCAD SHX Text
LINCOLN HIGHWAY - U.S. ROUTE 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDY HILL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=705.27 N INV=701.97 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=709.24 N INV=705.34 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=702.16 N INV=798.11 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=693.06 N INV=691.26 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=697.93 N/S INV=690.78 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=691.99 E/W INV=687.89 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=692.53 S INV=688.88 (21" RCP) E INV=687.93 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" F.E.S. INV=689.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=692.00 E/W INV=686.80 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MANHOLE RIM=692.55 S/W INV=686.90 (30" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=700.49 E INV=693.39 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=700.55 E/W INV=691.80 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF=704.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
699

AutoCAD SHX Text
698

AutoCAD SHX Text
697

AutoCAD SHX Text
696

AutoCAD SHX Text
695

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
693

AutoCAD SHX Text
693

AutoCAD SHX Text
697.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
695.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
693.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
692.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
699

AutoCAD SHX Text
699

AutoCAD SHX Text
698

AutoCAD SHX Text
698

AutoCAD SHX Text
697

AutoCAD SHX Text
697

AutoCAD SHX Text
696

AutoCAD SHX Text
696

AutoCAD SHX Text
695

AutoCAD SHX Text
695

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
693

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WALL=707.0 B/WALL=704.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WALL=705.0 B/WALL=703.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WALL=706.0 B/WALL=703.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WALL=708.0 B/WALL=704.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WALL=709.0 B/WALL=704.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WALL=710.0 B/WALL=705.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WALL=710.0 B/WALL=707.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WALL=709.0 B/WALL=707.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WALL=708.0 B/WALL=707.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
713

AutoCAD SHX Text
712

AutoCAD SHX Text
711

AutoCAD SHX Text
711

AutoCAD SHX Text
710

AutoCAD SHX Text
709

AutoCAD SHX Text
708

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
712

AutoCAD SHX Text
711

AutoCAD SHX Text
710

AutoCAD SHX Text
709

AutoCAD SHX Text
708

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/WALL=710.0 B/WALL=706.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFF-SITE TRIBUTARY AREA = ±3.86 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFF-SITE TRIBUTARY AREA = ±0.79 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUBLIC & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUBLIC & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE        

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREST HILL, ILLINOIS  60403

AutoCAD SHX Text
815/730-1010

AutoCAD SHX Text
1207 CEDARWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS  -  LAND SURVEYORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTECH INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/14/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OASIS SENIOR LIVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM REV SUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-20-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-5-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6-2-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: : 1. UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, ALL PROPOSED ELEVATIONS ARE EITHER FINISHED PAVEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, ALL PROPOSED ELEVATIONS ARE EITHER FINISHED PAVEMENT ELEVATIONS OR FINISHED LANDSCAPE ELEVATIONS. 2. ALL PROPOSED GRADES SHALL MATCH EXISTING GRADES AT PROPERTY LINES, EDGE OF  ALL PROPOSED GRADES SHALL MATCH EXISTING GRADES AT PROPERTY LINES, EDGE OF  PAVEMENT, CURB, OR SIDEWALKS. 3. RIM ELEVATIONS FOR STORM STRUCTURES LOCATED ALONG CURB AND GUTTER ARE  RIM ELEVATIONS FOR STORM STRUCTURES LOCATED ALONG CURB AND GUTTER ARE  EDGE OF PAVEMENT. RIM ELEVATIONS FOR ALL OTHER STRUCTURES ARE FINISHED  LANDSCAPE OR PAVEMENT ELEVATION. 4. ALL NON-PAVED AREAS TO BE RE-SPREAD WITH 6" TOPSOIL AND STABILIZED WITH  ALL NON-PAVED AREAS TO BE RE-SPREAD WITH 6" TOPSOIL AND STABILIZED WITH  VEGETATIVE COVER. 5. A.D.A. ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALLS SHALL NOT EXCEED A 2.0% SLOPE IN ANY  A.D.A. ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALLS SHALL NOT EXCEED A 2.0% SLOPE IN ANY  DIRECTION AND ALL A.D.A ACCESSIBLE ROUTES SHALL NOT EXCEED A  2% CROSS SLOPE 2% CROSS SLOPE AND 5% LONGITUDINAL SLOPE.  6. FINISHED LANDSCAPE ELEVATION ADJACENT TO PROPOSED BUILDINGS SHALL  BE  FINISHED LANDSCAPE ELEVATION ADJACENT TO PROPOSED BUILDINGS SHALL  BE  BE  6-INCHES BELOW FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION OR TOP OF FOUNDATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADING LEGEND: TC - TOP OF CURB - TOP OF CURB TOP OF CURB DC - TOP OF DEPRESSED CURB - TOP OF DEPRESSED CURB TOP OF DEPRESSED CURB EP - EDGE OF PAVEMENT - EDGE OF PAVEMENT EDGE OF PAVEMENT TW - TOP OF SIDEWALK - TOP OF SIDEWALK TOP OF SIDEWALK R - STRUCTURE RIM - STRUCTURE RIM STRUCTURE RIM GR - FIRE HYDRANT GRADE RING - FIRE HYDRANT GRADE RING FIRE HYDRANT GRADE RING I - INVERT - INVERT INVERT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOOD ROUTE FLOW DIRECTION SPOT ELEVATION CONTOUR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
     CONSTRUCTION NOTES: CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 1. ADJUST EXISTING RIM TO 692.5. ADJUST EXISTING RIM TO 692.5. 2. EXISTING SIDEWALK TO BE REMOVED AND REPLACED TO MEET EXISTING GRADES SHOWN. EXISTING SIDEWALK TO BE REMOVED AND REPLACED TO MEET EXISTING GRADES SHOWN. PROVIDE DETECTABLE WARNING PLATE. 3. OVERLAND FLOOD ROUTING PER APPROVED PLANS FOR WINDY HILL FARM.  OVERLAND FLOOD ROUTING PER APPROVED PLANS FOR WINDY HILL FARM.  4. EXISTING TREE TO BE PRESERVED (TYPICAL). EXISTING TREE TO BE PRESERVED (TYPICAL). 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE 1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
     DETENTION SUMMARY: DETENTION SUMMARY: DETENTION PREVIOUSLY PROVIDED WITH ORIGINAL PLANS FOR WINDY HILL FARMS FOR AN ASSUMED IMPERVIOUS PERCENTAGE OF 85% SITE IMPERVIOUS AREA = 59% NO ADDITIONAL DETENTION REQUIRED. 



P:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

GJ
N2

10
74

\E
ng

in
ee

rin
g\

DW
G\

21
07

4 
ba

se
.d

w
g

Pl
ot

Da
te

: 9
/1

4/
20

22
 2

:5
2 

PM
 , 

La
yo

ut
: U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINCOLN HIGHWAY - U.S. ROUTE 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDY HILL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=705.27 N INV=701.97 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=709.24 N INV=705.34 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=702.16 N INV=798.11 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=693.06 N INV=691.26 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=697.93 N/S INV=690.78 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=691.99 E/W INV=687.89 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=692.53 S INV=688.88 (21" RCP) E INV=687.93 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" F.E.S. INV=689.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=692.00 E/W INV=686.80 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MANHOLE RIM=692.55 S/W INV=686.90 (30" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=700.49 E INV=693.39 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=700.55 E/W INV=691.80 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY MH RIM=699.19 W/S/E INV=683.09 S INV=693.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
699

AutoCAD SHX Text
698

AutoCAD SHX Text
697

AutoCAD SHX Text
696

AutoCAD SHX Text
695

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
693

AutoCAD SHX Text
693

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
697.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
695.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
693.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
692.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX STM R=706.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
204 LF 15" @ 1.43%

AutoCAD SHX Text
254 LF 21" @ 1.08%

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
699

AutoCAD SHX Text
699

AutoCAD SHX Text
698

AutoCAD SHX Text
698

AutoCAD SHX Text
697

AutoCAD SHX Text
697

AutoCAD SHX Text
696

AutoCAD SHX Text
696

AutoCAD SHX Text
695

AutoCAD SHX Text
695

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
693

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
713

AutoCAD SHX Text
712

AutoCAD SHX Text
711

AutoCAD SHX Text
711

AutoCAD SHX Text
710

AutoCAD SHX Text
709

AutoCAD SHX Text
708

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
712

AutoCAD SHX Text
711

AutoCAD SHX Text
710

AutoCAD SHX Text
709

AutoCAD SHX Text
708

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUBLIC & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUBLIC & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE        

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREST HILL, ILLINOIS  60403

AutoCAD SHX Text
815/730-1010

AutoCAD SHX Text
1207 CEDARWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS  -  LAND SURVEYORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTECH INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/14/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OASIS SENIOR LIVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM REV SUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-20-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-5-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6-2-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. EXISTING UTILITIES HAVE BEEN SHOWN SCHEMATICALLY FOR REFERENCE BASED ON EXISTING UTILITIES HAVE BEEN SHOWN SCHEMATICALLY FOR REFERENCE BASED ON BEST AVAILABLE DATA. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY LOCATION AND ELEVATION OF  ALL UTILITIES THAT MAY BE AFFECTED PRIOR TO BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION.    2. ALL UTILITY LENGTHS ARE TO CENTER OF STRUCTURE. ALL UTILITY LENGTHS ARE TO CENTER OF STRUCTURE. 3. ALL EXISTING AND PROPOSED UTILITY RIMS, GRADE RINGS, PEDESTALS, ETC. SHALL ALL EXISTING AND PROPOSED UTILITY RIMS, GRADE RINGS, PEDESTALS, ETC. SHALL BE ADJUSTED AS REQUIRED TO MEET PROPOSED GRADES. 4. SELECT GRANULAR TRENCH BACKFILL (CA-7) MATERIAL SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR ALL  SELECT GRANULAR TRENCH BACKFILL (CA-7) MATERIAL SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR ALL  TRENCHES LOCATED WITHIN TWO FEET OF PAVEMENT, CURB, DRIVEWAYS, AND SIDEWALKS.   5. WHERE INDICATED ON PLANS, PROPOSED WATER MAIN SHALL BE LOWERED TO ELEVATION  WHERE INDICATED ON PLANS, PROPOSED WATER MAIN SHALL BE LOWERED TO ELEVATION  SHOWN TO PROVIDE MINIMUM 18" VERTICAL SEPARATION FROM SEWER LINES. SEE  SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL DETAILS.  6. RIM ELEVATIONS PROVIDED FOR STORM STRUCTURES LOCATED IN CURB AND GUTTER ARE RIM ELEVATIONS PROVIDED FOR STORM STRUCTURES LOCATED IN CURB AND GUTTER ARE EDGE  OF PAVEMENT ELEVATIONS.  OF PAVEMENT ELEVATIONS.  7. LIGHT POLES LOCATIONS SHOWN FOR REFERENCE. DESIGN OF POWER SYSTEM TO LIGHT POLES LOCATIONS SHOWN FOR REFERENCE. DESIGN OF POWER SYSTEM TO SERVE PROPOSED POLES WILL BE BY OTHERS.  8. UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, SANITARY SEWER PIPE SHALL BE PVC, STORM  UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, SANITARY SEWER PIPE SHALL BE PVC, STORM  SEWER PIPE SHALL BE RCP, AND WATER MAIN SHALL BE PVC (C900). SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL DETAILS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURE/PIPE LEGEND: IN - INLET - INLET INLET CB - CATCH BASIN - CATCH BASIN CATCH BASIN MH - STORM MANHOLE (TYPE A) - STORM MANHOLE (TYPE A) STORM MANHOLE (TYPE A) E - FLARED END SECTION WITH GRATE - FLARED END SECTION WITH GRATE FLARED END SECTION WITH GRATE TD - TRENCH DRAIN - TRENCH DRAIN TRENCH DRAIN Vv - VALVE VAULT - VALVE VAULT VALVE VAULT VB - VALVE BOX - VALVE BOX VALVE BOX FH - FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY - FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY PC - PRESSURE CONNECTION - PRESSURE CONNECTION PRESSURE CONNECTION SN - SANITARY MANHOLE - SANITARY MANHOLE SANITARY MANHOLE RCP - REINFORCED CONRETE PIPE - REINFORCED CONRETE PIPE REINFORCED CONRETE PIPE PVC - POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PIPE - POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PIPE POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PIPE HDP - HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE PIPE - HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE PIPE HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE PIPE FRAME AND GRATE/LID LEGEND: CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY MANUFACTURER & MODEL NUMBERS WITH PERMITTING  ENTITY. EQUIVALENT CASTINGS MAY BE SUBSTITUTED FOR EJIW MODELS WITH APPROVAL OF THE PERMITTING ENTITY. ALL LIDS SHALL BE EMBROSSED WITH  "STORM", "WATER", OR "SANITARY" AS APPLICABLE AND THE NAME OF THE  MUNICIPALITY.  STORM: UNPAVED AREAS/PARKING AREAS: EJIW 1020, TY. M2 GRATE EJIW 1020, TY. M2 GRATE ROLLED CURB & GUTTER:   EJIW 7525 EJIW 7525 B6.12 CURB & GUTTER:    EJIW 7210, TY. M1 GRATE & T1 BACK EJIW 7210, TY. M1 GRATE & T1 BACK DEPRESSED CURB & GUTTER:  EJIW 7210, TY. M3 GRATE EJIW 7210, TY. M3 GRATE SANITARY: EJIW 1020 TY. A SOLID COVER WATER: EJIW 1020 TY. A SOLID COVER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
     CONSTRUCTION NOTES: CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 1. 6" PVC SANITARY SEWER STUB. STUB 5' FROM BUILDING, STUB INV=699.0. 6" PVC SANITARY SEWER STUB. STUB 5' FROM BUILDING, STUB INV=699.0. 2. CONNECT TO EXISTING 8" SANITARY STUB. APPROXIMATE INV=684.0, VERIFY LOCATION  CONNECT TO EXISTING 8" SANITARY STUB. APPROXIMATE INV=684.0, VERIFY LOCATION  AND ELEVATION OF EXISTING STUB IN FIELD.  3. APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF EXISTING WATERMAIN. VERIFY LOCATION AND ELEVATION IN APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF EXISTING WATERMAIN. VERIFY LOCATION AND ELEVATION IN FIELD.  4. PROVIDE PRESSURE CONNECTION WITH VAULT TO EXISTING WATERMAIN, SEE DETAIL. PROVIDE PRESSURE CONNECTION WITH VAULT TO EXISTING WATERMAIN, SEE DETAIL. 5. CONNECT TO EXISTING MANHOLE WITH CORE DRILL AND BOOT, INV=688.5. CONNECT TO EXISTING MANHOLE WITH CORE DRILL AND BOOT, INV=688.5. 6. APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF EXISTING STORM MANHOLE PER ORIGINAL WINDY HILL FARM  APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF EXISTING STORM MANHOLE PER ORIGINAL WINDY HILL FARM  IMPROVEMENT PLANS BY SDI CONSULTANTS DATED 2-3-2000. VERIFY IN FIELD.  7. REMOVE EXISTING 18" STORM SEWER STUB. CONNECT PROPOSED 21" STORM SEWER TO  REMOVE EXISTING 18" STORM SEWER STUB. CONNECT PROPOSED 21" STORM SEWER TO  EXISTING MANHOLE WITH CORE DRILL AND BOOT. PROPOSED INV=696.4, VERIFY IN FIELD.  8. EXISTING UTILITY INFORMATION PER WINDY HILL FARM AS-BUILT PLANS. EXISTING UTILITY INFORMATION PER WINDY HILL FARM AS-BUILT PLANS. 9. 8" DUCTILE IRON WATERMAIN STUB WITH TEMPORARY PLUG. STUB WATERMAIN 5' FROM  8" DUCTILE IRON WATERMAIN STUB WITH TEMPORARY PLUG. STUB WATERMAIN 5' FROM  BUILDING. PROP INV=699.0. 10. FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION. SEE MEP PLANS FOR DETAILS.  FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION. SEE MEP PLANS FOR DETAILS.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
     CONFLICT TABLE: CONFLICT TABLE: 1. I/STM=694.6 ; DIP WM TO 693.0 ; SEE NOTE 5 I/STM=694.6 ; DIP WM TO 693.0 ; SEE NOTE 5 2. I/SAN=698.8 ; DIP WM TO 697.3 ; SEE NOTE 5 I/SAN=698.8 ; DIP WM TO 697.3 ; SEE NOTE 5 3. I/STM=698.3 ; DIP WM TO 698.6 ; SEE NOTE 5 I/STM=698.3 ; DIP WM TO 698.6 ; SEE NOTE 5 4. I/STM=692.1 ; T/WM=688.0 I/STM=692.1 ; T/WM=688.0 5. I/STM=696.1 ; T/WM=693.7 I/STM=696.1 ; T/WM=693.7 6. B/WM=693.3 ; T/SAN=686.5B/WM=693.3 ; T/SAN=686.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
X#

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE 1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60



AUTOCAD2006
AUTOCAD2006

REFERENCE STANDARD DWG. NO.

SHEET  1  OF  1

DATE   3-16-12

Project  
Designed
Checked
Approved

Date
Date
Date

IUM-620

SILT FENCE PLAN

NOTES:
1. Temporary sediment fence shall be installed prior to any grading work

in the area to be protected. They shall be maintained throughout the
construction period and removed in conjunction with the final grading 

2. Filter fabric shall meet the requirements of material specification
592 Geotextile Table 1 or 2, Class   with equivalent opening size of 
at least 30 for nonwoven and 40 for woven.

3. Fence posts shall be either standard steel post or wood post with a
minimum cross-sectional area of 3.0 sq. in. 

5' Max

2
' M

in

(Typ)

1
8

"M
in

(T
yp

)

Fastener - Min. No. 10 Gage Wire 
4 Per Post Required. (Typ.)

Filter Fabric

Filter Fabric 

6
"

M
in

Direction Of Flow 

Undisturbed Ground Line

Compacted Backfill

6"
Min

FABRIC ANCHOR DETAIL

ELEVATION

I

and site stabilization.

REFERENCE STANDARD DWG. NO.

SHEET  1  OF  2

DATE   8-18-94

Project  
Designed
Checked
Approved

Date
Date
Date

IL-630

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE PLAN

NOTES:
1.Filter fabric shall meet the requirements of material specification

592 GEOTEXTILE, Table I or 2, Class  ,    or    and shall be placed 
over the cleared area prior to the placing of rock.

2.Rock or reclaimed concrete shall meet one of the following IDOT coarse
aggregate gradation, CA-1, CA-2, CA-3 or CA-4 and be placed according 
to construction specification 25 ROCKFILL using placement Method 1
and Class     compaction.

3.Any drainage facilities required because of washing shall be 
constructed according to manufacturers specifications.

4.If wash racks are used they shall be installed according to the
manufacturer's specifications.

6
" 

M
in

A

A

SIDE ELEVATION

Filter Fabric

Existing Ground

3' Existing 
  pavement

Mountable Berm
(Optional)

L = 5:1 Slope

B

B

Wash Rack
(Optional)

1
0
' M

in
1
0
' M

in

L = 

1
4

'

Existing
Pavement

Existing 
Ground

Coarse Aggregate

M
in

*

* Must Extend Full Width
Of Ingress And Egress
Operation.

Positive Drainage
To Sediment
Trapping Device.

PLAN VIEW

10' Min

I  II    IV

III

20'

20'

REFERENCE STANDARD DWG. NO.

SHEET  2  OF  2

DATE   8-18-94

Project  
Designed
Checked
Approved

Date
Date
Date

IL-630

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE PLAN

3
" 

M
in

3
" 

M
in

14' Min

Filter Fabric

SECTION A-A

6'- 7"

Reinforced Concrete Drain Space

SECTION B-B

PLAN VIEW

Endwall

Toe Of Fill

Toe Of Fill

Fl
ow

Silt Fence

Post

Top Of Fill

Culvert

Cross Bracing

6' Min.

   The silt fence shall meet the requirements as shown on standard drawing IL-620 SILT
   FENCE except the maximum post spacing shall be 3 feet and the tops of posts
   shall be cross braced.
   Sediment shall be removed when the sediment has accumulated to one-half the height
   of the silt fence.
   The maximum drainage area to the culvert being protected is 1 acre.

Checked

Approved

REFERENCE

Project  

Designed Date

Date

Date

STANDARD DWG. NO.

SHEET  1  OF  1

DATE   1-29-99

NOTES:
1.

2.

3.

L

Y

PLAN

SECTION A-A

PIPE OUTLET TO FLAT AREA

GEOTEXTILE

W
2W

1

NOTES:
1. FILTER FABRIC SHALL MEET REQUIREMENTS OF MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS 592

GEOTEXTILE TABLE 1 OR 2, CLASS I, II, OR III.
2. APRON DIMENSIONS PER NRCS ILLINOIS URBAN MANUAL CODE 910 - ROCK OUTLET

PROTECTION. SEE RIP RAP DIMENSION TABLE FOR DETAILS.
3. RIPRAP SHALL BE IDOT GRADATION AS SHOWN AND PLACED ACCORDING TO

CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATION 61 LOOSE ROCK RIPRAP. ROCK MAY BE EQUIPMENT
PLACED.

INLET
STRUCTURE

CASTING

GRATE

SEDIMENT
BAG/FILTER

COVER

STORM
SEWER

SUPPORT SYSTEM
WITH LIFT HANDLES

INLET
STRUCTURE

GRATE

SEDIMENT
BAG/FILTER

SUPPORT SYSTEM
WITH LIFT HANDLES

CASTING

SEE DETAIL
ABOVE

OVERFLOW AREA

OVERFLOW
AREA

REFERENCE STANDARD DWG. NO.

SHEET  1  OF  1

DATE   01-11-11

Project  
Designed
Checked
Approved

Date
Date
Date

IUM-561D

INLET PROTECTION
DROP-IN PROTECTION

DETAIL

RIP-RAP DIMENSION TABLE

PIPE
DIAMATER

D (IN)

IDOT ROCK
GRADATIO

N

APRON
WIDTH,
W1(FT)

3D

APRON
WIDTH,
W2(FT)
3D+L

APRON
LENGTH,

L(FT)

DEPTH OF
RIP RAP

Y (IN)

12 RR3 3.00 13.00 10 15

15 RR3 3.75 15.75 12 15

18 RR3 4.50 18.50 14 15

21 RR3 5.25 20.25 15 15

24 RR3 6.00 22.00 16 15

27 RR3 6.75 23.75 17 15

30 RR3 7.50 25.50 18 15

36 RR4 9.00 29.00 20 20

42 RR4 10.50 32.50 22 20

48 RR4 12.00 36.00 24 20

54 RR5 13.50 41.50 28 28

60 RR5 15.00 47.00 32 28

72 RR6 18.00 58.00 40 32

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE        

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREST HILL, ILLINOIS  60403

AutoCAD SHX Text
815/730-1010

AutoCAD SHX Text
1207 CEDARWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS  -  LAND SURVEYORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTECH INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/14/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OASIS SENIOR LIVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM REV SUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-20-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-5-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6-2-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
**  IRRIGATION NEEDED FOR 2 TO 3 WEEKS AFTER APPLYING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.  STRAW MULCH 2 TONS/ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.  WHEAT OR CEREAL RYE 150 LBS/ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
*** MOW LAWNS AS NECESSARY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uSOIL PROTECTION CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
*  IRRIGATION NEEDED DURING JUNE AND JULY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
   45 LBS/ACRE + 2 TONS STRAW MULCH/ACRE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
   MIXED W/ PERENNIAL RYE GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.  KENTUCKY BLUEGRASS 135 LBS/ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
   MIXED W/ PERENNIAL RYE GRASS 30 LBS/ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.  KENTUCKY BLUEGRASS 90 LBS/ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCHING

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.  SPRING OATS 100 LBS/ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SODDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEEDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEEDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DORMANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEEDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
E**

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.  SOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STABILIZATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
JULY

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5. NON-STORM WATER DISCHARGES. NON-STORM WATER DISCHARGES. EXCEPT FOR FLOWS FROM FIRE-FIGHTING ACTIVITIES, SOURCES OF NON-STORM WATER THAT MAY BE COMBINED WITH STORM WATER DISCHARGES ASSOCIATED WITH THE ACTIVITY ADDRESSED IN THIS PLAN ARE AS FOLLOWS: A. WATER MAIN FLUSHING WATER MAIN FLUSHING B. FIRE HYDRANT FLUSHING FIRE HYDRANT FLUSHING C. WATERING FOR DUST CONTROL WATERING FOR DUST CONTROL D. IRRIGATION DRAINAGE FOR VEGETATIVE GROWTH FOR SEEDING, ETC.. IRRIGATION DRAINAGE FOR VEGETATIVE GROWTH FOR SEEDING, ETC.. E. UNCONTAMINATED GROUNDWATER (FROM DE-WATERING ACTIVITIES) UNCONTAMINATED GROUNDWATER (FROM DE-WATERING ACTIVITIES) THE POLLUTION MEASURES SPECIFIED IN THE PLAN SHALL BE IMPLEMENTED FOR NON-STORM WATER COMPONENTS OF THE DISCHARGE EXCEPT THAT EROSION DUE TO IRRIGATION OF SEEDING SHALL BE CONSIDERED MINOR. 6. GENERAL NOTES GENERAL NOTES A. ALL ACCESS TO AND FROM THE CONSTRUCTION SITE IS TO BE RESTRICTED TO THE CONSTRUCTION ALL ACCESS TO AND FROM THE CONSTRUCTION SITE IS TO BE RESTRICTED TO THE CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE.  B. ALL TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES MUST BE ALL TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES MUST BE MAINTAINED AND REPAIRED AS NEEDED TO ASSURE EFFECTIVE PERFORMANCE OF THEIR INTENDED FUNCTION. C. MAJOR AMENDMENTS OF THE SITE DEVELOPMENT OR EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL PLANS MAJOR AMENDMENTS OF THE SITE DEVELOPMENT OR EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL PLANS SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT TO BE APPROVED IN THE SAME MANNER AS THE ORIGINAL PLANS. D. ANY SEDIMENT REACHING A PUBLIC OR PRIVATE ROAD SHALL BE REMOVED BY SHOVELING OR ANY SEDIMENT REACHING A PUBLIC OR PRIVATE ROAD SHALL BE REMOVED BY SHOVELING OR STREET CLEANING (NOT FLUSHING) BEFORE THE END OF EACH WORKDAY AND TRANSPORTED TO A CONTROLLED SEDIMENT DISPOSAL. E. ALL TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE DISPOSED OF WITHIN 30 ALL TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE DISPOSED OF WITHIN 30 DAYS AFTER THE FINAL SITE STABILIZATION IS ACHIEVED WITH PERMANENT SOIL STABILIZATION MEASURES.  F. DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE STABILIZED WITH TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT MEASURES WITHIN 7 DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE STABILIZED WITH TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT MEASURES WITHIN 7 CALENDAR DAYS FOLLOWING THE END OF ACTIVE DISTURBANCE OR REDISTURBANCE.  G. IF DEWATERING DEVICES ARE USED, DISCHARGE LOCATIONS SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM EROSION. IF DEWATERING DEVICES ARE USED, DISCHARGE LOCATIONS SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM EROSION. ALL PUMPED DISCHARGES SHALL BE ROUTED THROUGH APPROPRIATELY DESIGNED SEDIMENT TRAPS OR BASINS.  H. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE THE NECESSARY STEPS TO CONTROL WASTE SUCH AS BUILDING THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE THE NECESSARY STEPS TO CONTROL WASTE SUCH AS BUILDING MATERIALS, CONCRETE TRUCK WASHOUT, CHEMICALS, LITTER AND SANITARY WASTE AT THE CONSTRUCTION SITE THAT MAY CAUSE ADVERSE IMPACTS TO WATER QUALITY.  I. ALL STORM SEWER FRAMES AND GRATES/LIDS SHALL BE MARKED WITH "DUMP NO WASTE" AND ALL STORM SEWER FRAMES AND GRATES/LIDS SHALL BE MARKED WITH "DUMP NO WASTE" AND "DRAINS TO CREEK".  J. A NOTICE OF INTENT (NOI) MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE NPDES PERMITTING AUTHORITY AND A NOTICE OF INTENT (NOI) MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE NPDES PERMITTING AUTHORITY AND POSTMARKED AT LEAST 30 DAYS BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK ON-SITE FOR ALL CONSTRUCTION SITES OVER ONE ACRE. INCLUDED IN THE NOI SHALL BE THE STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP), WHICH INCLUDES THE APPROPRIATE BMP'S TO MINIMIZE THE DISCHARGE OF POLLUTANTS FROM THE CONSTRUCTION SITE.  K. AN INCIDENT OF NON-COMPLIANCE (ION) MUST BE COMPLETED AN SUBMITTED TO THE IEPA IF, AT AN INCIDENT OF NON-COMPLIANCE (ION) MUST BE COMPLETED AN SUBMITTED TO THE IEPA IF, AT ANY TIME, AN EROSION OR SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE FAILS. L. A NOTICE OF TERMINATION (NOT) MUST BE COMPLETED AND SUBMITTED TO THE IEPA WHEN ALL A NOTICE OF TERMINATION (NOT) MUST BE COMPLETED AND SUBMITTED TO THE IEPA WHEN ALL PERMANENT EROSION CONTROL MEASURES ARE IN PLACE WITH A 70% ESTABLISHMENT OF VEGETATION. M. DUST CONTROL SHALL BE PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 107.36 OF THE STANDARD DUST CONTROL SHALL BE PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 107.36 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION. APPROPRIATE MEASURES INCLUDE SPRINKLING/IRRIGATION, VEGETATIVE COVER, OR MULCH. 7. SITE SPECIFIC INFORMATION SITE SPECIFIC INFORMATION SITE AREA = 4.68 ACRES DISTURBED AREA = 4.68 ACRES RECEIVING WATERS = HICKORY CREEK 8. SEQUENCE OF EVENTS AND ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE: SEQUENCE OF EVENTS AND ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE: 1. INSTALL TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL: JUNE 1, 2022 JUNE 1, 2022 2. EARTH EXCAVATION/ROUGH GRADING:  JUNE 2, 2022 JUNE 2, 2022 3. INSTALL CURB AND AGGREGATE BASE  JULY 1, 2022 JULY 1, 2022 4. PAVING        JULY 15, 2022 JULY 15, 2022 5. SEEDING & LANDSCAPING    AUGUST 1, 2022 AUGUST 1, 2022 6. 70% ESTABLISHMENT OF VEGETATION  SEPTEMBER 1, 2022 SEPTEMBER 1, 2022 6. REMOVE TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL SEPTEMBER 1, 2022 SEPTEMBER 1, 2022 ESTIMATED SCHEDULE SHOWN FOR REFERENCE ONLY. ACTUAL DATES WILL BE DETERMINED BY CONTRACTOR BASED UPON MULTIPLE FACTORS. ESTIMATED THAT CLEARED AREAS MAY BE EXPOSED FOR APPROXIMATELY 45 DAYS.  9. LONG TERM (POST CONSTRUCTION) MAINTENANCE LONG TERM (POST CONSTRUCTION) MAINTENANCE COMPONENTS OF THE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES, STORMWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM, AND LANDSCAPED/VEGETATED AREAS SHALL BE INSPECTED PERIODICALLY BETWEEN MARCH AND NOVEMBER, AS NECESSARY, TO ENSURE PROPER PERFORMANCE. AT A MINIMUM THE FOLLOWING MEASURES SHALL BE TAKEN TO ENSURE THE SYSTEMS OPERATE AS DESIGNED AND THE DESIGN VOLUME OF ANY DETENTION FACILITIES ARE MAINTAINED: A. LITTER AND DEBRIS SHALL BE CONTROLLED THROUGHOUT THE SITE. LITTER AND DEBRIS SHALL BE CONTROLLED THROUGHOUT THE SITE. B. LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE MAINTAINED WITH REGULAR MOWING AND RESTORED WITH LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE MAINTAINED WITH REGULAR MOWING AND RESTORED WITH APPROPRIATE SEEDING/VEGETATION AS NECESSARY.  C. RIPRAP AREAS SHALL BE REPAIRED WITH THE ADDITION OF NEW RIPRAP, AS NECESSARY, OF RIPRAP AREAS SHALL BE REPAIRED WITH THE ADDITION OF NEW RIPRAP, AS NECESSARY, OF SIMILAR SIZE AND SHAPE. D. INSPECT ANY SIDE SLOPE/EMBANKMENTS IN DETENTION BASIN OR ALONG FLOW ROUTE FOR INSPECT ANY SIDE SLOPE/EMBANKMENTS IN DETENTION BASIN OR ALONG FLOW ROUTE FOR SETTLEMENT AND EROSION AND REPAIR AS NECESSARY.  E. ENSURE NO OBSTRUCTIONS ARE BLOCKING THE EMERGENCY OVERFLOW WEIR.  ENSURE NO OBSTRUCTIONS ARE BLOCKING THE EMERGENCY OVERFLOW WEIR.  F. INSPECT THE RESTRICTOR MANHOLE TO ENSURE SEDIMENT OR DEBRIS IS NOT BLOCKING INSPECT THE RESTRICTOR MANHOLE TO ENSURE SEDIMENT OR DEBRIS IS NOT BLOCKING RESTRICTORS AND OUTLET PIPES.  G. INSPECT ALL DETENTION AND VOLUME CONTROL FACILITIES TO ENSURE THE CONSTRUCTED VOLUME INSPECT ALL DETENTION AND VOLUME CONTROL FACILITIES TO ENSURE THE CONSTRUCTED VOLUME IS MAINTAINED. NO SEDIMENT, TOPSOIL, OR OTHER DUMPING INTO THE FACILITY SHALL BE ALLOWED. ANY ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT SHALL BE DREDGED AS NECESSARY TO RESTORE THE REQUIRED STORAGE VOLUME.  H. INSPECT STORM INLETS/CATCH BASINS/MANHOLES/CULVERTS FOR ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT AND INSPECT STORM INLETS/CATCH BASINS/MANHOLES/CULVERTS FOR ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT AND REMOVE SEDIMENT AS NECESSARY.  I. REMOVE ACCUMULATED LEAVES AND OTHER DEBRIS FROM STORM SEWER INLET GRATES, AS REMOVE ACCUMULATED LEAVES AND OTHER DEBRIS FROM STORM SEWER INLET GRATES, AS NECESSARY.  J. NATIVE PLANTING AREAS OR STORM WATER SEED MIX AREAS SHALL BE MAINTAINED PER THE NATIVE PLANTING AREAS OR STORM WATER SEED MIX AREAS SHALL BE MAINTAINED PER THE APPROVED PLANTING PLAN.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
   NOTES: NOTES: THE STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP) HAS BEEN PREPARED TO COMPLY WITH THE PROVISIONS OF NPDES ILR10 CONSTRUCTION GENERAL PERMIT ISSUED BY THE ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY FOR STORMWATER DISCHARGES FROM CONSTRUCTION SITE ACTIVITIES. 1. SITE DECLARATION THE FOLLOWING IS A DESCRIPTION OF THE CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY THAT IS THE SUBJECT OF THIS PLAN A. THE CONSTRUCTION SITE ACTIVITIES FOR THE SITE IMPROVEMENTS WILL INCLUDE, AS NECESSARY: TOPSOIL THE CONSTRUCTION SITE ACTIVITIES FOR THE SITE IMPROVEMENTS WILL INCLUDE, AS NECESSARY: TOPSOIL EXCAVATION AND STOCKPILING, EARTH EXCAVATION AND THE PLACEMENT OF EMBANKMENT MATERIAL. INSTALLATION OF WATER AND SEWER UTILITIES, STORM SEWERS, AND OTHER MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE SUCH AS TELECOMMUNICATIONS, GAS AND ELECTRIC SERVICES, CURB AND GUTTER, PAVEMENT, RESPREAD OF TOPSOIL OVER ALL DISTURBED PERVIOUS AREAS, STABILIZATION OF PERVIOUS AREAS WITH SEED AND/OR OTHER LANDSCAPING MATERIALS, SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION MEASURES AND OTHER ACTIVITIES THAT MAY BE NECESSARY TO PROTECT ADJACENT AND DOWNSTREAM WATER COURSE FROM DAMAGE. B. THE EXPECTED SEQUENCE OF ACTIVITIES THAT WILL CAUSE SIGNIFICANT DISTURBANCE AND DISRUPTION ARE THE EXPECTED SEQUENCE OF ACTIVITIES THAT WILL CAUSE SIGNIFICANT DISTURBANCE AND DISRUPTION ARE AS FOLLOWS: SITE CLEARING, TOPSOIL EXCAVATION AND STOCKPILING, EARTH EXCAVATION AND RESTORATION OF DISTURBED AREAS. PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY SITE DISTURBANCE ACTIVITY, SILT FENCE,  CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE AND ANY REQUIRED DOWN-SLOPE PROTECTION MUST BE INSTALLED.  ADDITIONAL SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE INSTALLED, AS NOTED ON THE PLANS, AS CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY PROGRESS.  C.  THE ESTIMATED STORMWATER RUNOFF COEFFICIENT ARE CONTAINED IN THE PROJECT DESIGN NARRATIVE ON FILE WITH THE LOCAL AGENCY HAVING JURISDICTION OVER THIS PROJECT. INFORMATION REGARDING SOIL CLASSIFICATIONS, ESTIMATED RUNOFF AND DETAILED COMPUTATIONS FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF STORMWATER RUNOFF ARE CONTAINED IN THE PROJECT DESIGN NARRATIVE, WHICH IS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE AND MADE A PART OF THIS PLAN. 2. CONTROLS. THE PLAN ADDRESSES VARIOUS CONTROLS THAT MUST BE IMPLEMENTED FOR EACH OF THE MAJOR  CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES DESCRIBED ABOVE. FOR EACH OF THE CONTROL DEVICES BELOW, THE  CONTRACTOR(S) SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ITS IMPLEMENTATION. EACH CONTRACTOR HAS SIGNED THIS PLAN ACKNOWLEDGING RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION AND ONGOING MAINTENANCE OF THIS PLAN.  A.  SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROLS: 1. STABILIZATION PRACTICES: EXISTING VEGETATION SHOULD BE PRESERVED AS LONG AS POSSIBLE. DISTURBED STABILIZATION PRACTICES: EXISTING VEGETATION SHOULD BE PRESERVED AS LONG AS POSSIBLE. DISTURBED AREAS SHOULD BE STABILIZED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE. STABILIZATION MEASURES SHALL BE IMPLEMENTED AS SOON AS PRACTICAL IN PORTIONS OF THE SITE WHERE CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES HAVE TEMPORARILY OR PERMANENTLY CEASED, BUT IN NO CASE LONGER THAN 14 DAYS IN AREAS WHERE CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY WILL NOT RESUME FOR 21 DAYS OR MORE. WHERE SNOW COVER PRECLUDES STABILIZATION ACTIVITIES OR OTHER CONDITIONS PREVENT IMPLEMENTATION, STABILIZATION MEASURES SHALL BE IMPLEMENTED AS SOON AS CONDITIONS PERMIT. THE FOLLOWING INTERIM AND PERMANENT STABILIZATION PRACTICES, AS A MINIMUM, SHALL BE  EMPLOYED TO STABILIZE DISTURBED AREAS: PERMANENT SEEDING, VEGETATIVE FILTERS,  STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCES, AND BARRIER FILTERS. 2. STRUCTURAL PRACTICES: THE FOLLOWING STRUCTURAL PRACTICES SHALL BE IMPLEMENTED TO THE EXTENT STRUCTURAL PRACTICES: THE FOLLOWING STRUCTURAL PRACTICES SHALL BE IMPLEMENTED TO THE EXTENT POSSIBLE TO DIVERT FLOWS FROM EXPOSED SOILS, STORE FLOWS OR OTHERWISE LIMIT RUNOFF AND THE DISCHARGE OF POLLUTANTS FROM THE EXPOSED: STORM SEWER, STORM WATER CONVEYANCE CHANNELS AND PERMANENT SEEDING.   B.  STORM WATER MANAGEMENT 1.  THE FOLLOWING MEASURES WILL BE INSTALLED DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PROCESS TO     CONTROL POLLUTANTS IN STORM WATER DISCHARGE THAT MAY OCCUR AFTER CONSTRUCTION      OPERATIONS HAVE BEEN COMPLETED. THE INSTALLATION OF SOME OF THESE DEVICES MAY BE     SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 404 OF THE CLEAN WATER ACT. THE PRACTICES      BEING IMPLEMENTED BY THIS PLAN WERE SELECTED ON THE BASIS OF THE TECHNICAL     GUIDANCE CONTAINED IN THE IEPA'S STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR SOIL EROSION AND     SEDIMENT CONTROL, AS WELL AS OTHER DOCUMENTS AND ORDINANCES LISTED IN THE      SPECIFICATIONS.      THE STORM WATER POLLUTANTS CONTROL MEASURES INCLUDE: SILT FILTER FENCE, BARRIER     FILTERS, AND STORM SEWER SYSTEMS.  2.  VELOCITY DISSIPATION DEVICES SHALL BE PLACED AT DISCHARGE LOCATIONS AND ALONG THE      LENGTH OF ANY OUTFALL CHANNELS, AS NECESSARY, TO ASSURE A NON-EROSIVE VELOCITY     FLOW FROM ANY STRUCTURE TO A WATERCOURSE SO THAT THE NATURAL, PHYSICAL, AND     BIOLOGICAL CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTIONS OF THE WATERCOURSE ARE MAINTAINED AND     PROTECTED. STORM WATER MANAGEMENT CONTROL INCLUDES: RIP-RAP FOR OUTLET PROTECTION AND  DITCH/CHANNEL CHECK SYSTEMS. C.   OTHER CONTROLS.  1.  WASTE DISPOSAL. SOLID WASTE MATERIALS INCLUDING TRASH, CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS, EXCESS    CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS, MACHINERY, TOOLS AND OTHER ITEMS SHALL BE COLLECTED AND DISPOSED OFF-SITE BY THE CONTRACTOR IN AN APPROVED MANNER. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO ACQUIRE ANY PERMIT REQUIRED FOR SUCH DISPOSAL. BURNING ON THE SITE WILL NOT BE PERMITTED.  NO SOLID MATERIALS, INCLUDING BUILDING MATERIALS, SHALL BE DISCHARGED INTO WATERS OF THE STATE, EXCEPT AS AUTHORIZED BY APPROPRIATE PERMITS. THIS PLAN SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE STATE AND/OR LOCAL WASTE DISPOSAL, SANITARY SEWER AND/OR SEPTIC SYSTEM REGULATIONS. 2. SANITARY WASTE SHALL BE COLLECTED FROM PORTABLE UNITS PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR A MINIMUM SANITARY WASTE SHALL BE COLLECTED FROM PORTABLE UNITS PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR A MINIMUM OF TWO TIMES PER WEEK TO AVOID OVERFLOWING AND MAINTAIN SANITARY CONDITIONS AROUND THE UNIT. 3. ALL PETROLEUM PRODUCTS STORED ON-SITE SHALL BE STORED IN APPROVED CONTAINERS. ALL FUELING ALL PETROLEUM PRODUCTS STORED ON-SITE SHALL BE STORED IN APPROVED CONTAINERS. ALL FUELING SOURCES SHALL HAVE SPILL KITS IMMEDIATELY AVAILABLE. 4. CONCRETE TRUCKS SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED TO WASH OUT OR DISCHARGE SURPLUS CONCRETE OR DRUM CONCRETE TRUCKS SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED TO WASH OUT OR DISCHARGE SURPLUS CONCRETE OR DRUM WASH WATER ON THE SITE. SPECIFIC AREAS FOR THIS ACTIVITY SHALL BE DESIGNATED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND PROVIDED WITH ADEQUATE FILTRATION BASINS AND OTHER FACILITIES TO ASSURE THAT DISCHARGE IS CONTAINED AND CLEANSED BEFORE ENTERING THE SITE STORM WATER SYSTEM.  5. DE-WATERING OF EXCAVATIONS AND OTHER SPACES, USING PUMPS OR OTHER MEANS, AND ALL DISCHARGES DE-WATERING OF EXCAVATIONS AND OTHER SPACES, USING PUMPS OR OTHER MEANS, AND ALL DISCHARGES OF WATER CONTAMINATED WITH SILT OR SEDIMENT SHALL BE MOVED TO A PORTABLE OR PERMANENT SEDIMENT BASIN TO ASSURE ALL SUSPENDED SOLIDS ARE REMOVED PRIOR TO FLOWS LEAVING THE CONSTRUCTION SITE.  B. APPROVED STATE OR LOCAL PLANS. APPROVED STATE OR LOCAL PLANS.      THE MANAGEMENT PRACTICES, CONTROLS, AND OTHER PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN THIS PLAN ARE AT LEAST AS PROTECTIVE AS THE REQUIREMENTS CONTAINED IN THE ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY'S STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL, CURRENT EDITION, ILLINOIS PROCEDURES AND STANDARDS FOR URBAN SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION PLAN, AND ANY GOVERNING LOCAL ORDINANCES. REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN SEDIMENT AND EROSION CONTROL SITE PLANS, SITE PERMITS, STORM WATER MANAGEMENT SITE PLANS OR SITE PERMITS APPROVED BY LOCAL OFFICIALS THAT ARE APPLICABLE TO PROTECTING SURFACE WATER RESOURCES ARE, UPON SUBMITTAL OF AN NOI TO BE AUTHORIZED TO DISCHARGE UNDER THIS PERMIT, INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE AND ARE ENFORCEABLE UNDER THIS PERMIT EVEN IF THEY ARE NOT SPECIFICALLY INCLUDED IN THE PLAN. 3.  MAINTENANCE: THE FOLLOWING PROCEDURES SHALL BE USED TO MAINTAIN, IN GOOD CONDITION, VEGETATION, EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL MEASURES, AND OTHER PROTECTIVE MEASURES IDENTIFIED IN THIS PLAN AND THE STANDARD SPECIFICATION. a. STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE:THE ENTRANCE SHALL BE MAINTAINED TO PREVENT TRACKING OF STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE:THE ENTRANCE SHALL BE MAINTAINED TO PREVENT TRACKING OF SEDIMENT ONTO PUBLIC STREETS. THIS WILL BE DONE BY TOP DRESSING WITH ADDITIONAL STONES, REMOVE AND REPLACE TOP LAYER OF STONES OR WASHING THE ENTRANCE. ADJACENT PUBLIC STREETS SHALL BE SWEPT FREQUENTLY, IF NOT DAILY, TO ELIMINATE DUST AND SEDIMENTS. b. VEGETATIVE EROSION CONTROL MEASURES: THE VEGETATIVE GROWTH OF TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT VEGETATIVE EROSION CONTROL MEASURES: THE VEGETATIVE GROWTH OF TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT SEEDING, SODDING, VEGETATIVE CHANNELS, VEGETATIVE FILTER, ETC. SHALL BE MAINTAINED PERIODICALLY AND SUPPLY ADEQUATE WATERING AND FERTILIZER.  THE VEGETATIVE COVER SHALL BE REMOVED AND RESEEDED AS NECESSARY. c. INLET FILTERS: THE SEDIMENTS SHALL BE REMOVED WHEN 50 PERCENT OF THE TOTAL ORIGINAL INLET FILTERS: THE SEDIMENTS SHALL BE REMOVED WHEN 50 PERCENT OF THE TOTAL ORIGINAL CAPACITY IS OCCUPIED BY THE SEDIMENT.   d. SILT FILTER FENCE AND STRAW BALE BARRIER FILTERS: ANY DAMAGED AREAS SHALL BE REPAIRED TO SILT FILTER FENCE AND STRAW BALE BARRIER FILTERS: ANY DAMAGED AREAS SHALL BE REPAIRED TO MEET THE ORIGINAL DESIGN INTENT OR REMOVED AND REPLACED AS  NECESSARY.  e. RIP-RAP OUTLET PROTECTION: IT SHALL BE INSPECTED AFTER HIGH FLOWS FOR ANY SCOUR BENEATH RIP-RAP OUTLET PROTECTION: IT SHALL BE INSPECTED AFTER HIGH FLOWS FOR ANY SCOUR BENEATH THE RIP-RAP OR FOR STONES THAT HAVE BEEN DISLODGED. IT SHALL BE REPAIRED IMMEDIATELY. 4. INSPECTIONS. INSPECTIONS. UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY THE OWNER, THE CONTRACTOR, OR CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVE SHALL  PROVIDE QUALIFIED PERSONNEL TO INSPECT DISTURBED AREAS OF THE CONSTRUCTION SITE WHICH HAVE NOT  BEEN FINALLY STABILIZED, STRUCTURAL CONTROL MEASURES, AND LOCATION WHERE VEHICLES ENTER OR EXIT THE SITE.  SUCH INSPECTIONS SHALL BE CONDUCTED AT LEAST ONCE EVERY SEVEN (7) CALENDAR DAYS AND WITHIN 24 HOURS OF THE END OF A STORM THAT IS 0.5 INCHES OR GREATER OR EQUIVALENT SNOWFALL. A. DISTURBED AREAS AND AREAS USED FOR STORAGE OF MATERIALS THAT ARE EXPOSED TO PRECIPITATION DISTURBED AREAS AND AREAS USED FOR STORAGE OF MATERIALS THAT ARE EXPOSED TO PRECIPITATION SHALL BE INSPECTED FOR EVIDENCE OF, OR THE POTENTIAL FOR, POLLUTANTS ENTERING THE DRAINAGE SYSTEM.  EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES IDENTIFIED IN THE PLAN SHALL BE OBSERVED TO ENSURE THAT THEY ARE OPERATING CORRECTLY.  WHERE DISCHARGE LOCATIONS OR POINTS ARE ACCESSIBLE, THEY SHALL BE INSPECTED TO ASCERTAIN WHETHER EROSION CONTROL MEASURES ARE EFFECTIVE IN PREVENTING SIGNIFICANT IMPACTS TO RECEIVING WATERS AND ADJACENT PROPERTIES. LOCATIONS WHERE VEHICLES ENTER OR EXIT THE SITE SHALL BE INSPECTED FOR EVIDENCE OF OFF SITE SEDIMENT TRACKING. B. BASED ON THE RESULTS OF THE INSPECTION, THE DESCRIPTION OF POTENTIAL POLLUTANT SOURCES BASED ON THE RESULTS OF THE INSPECTION, THE DESCRIPTION OF POTENTIAL POLLUTANT SOURCES IDENTIFIED IN SECTION 1 ABOVE AND POLLUTION PREVENTION MEASURES IDENTIFIED IN SECTION 2 ABOVE SHALL BE REVISED AS APPROPRIATE AS SOON AS PRACTICABLE AFTER SUCH INSPECTION.  ANY CHANGES TO THIS PLAN RESULTING FROM THE REQUIRED INSPECTIONS SHALL BE IMPLEMENTED WITHIN 7 CALENDAR DAYS FOLLOWING THE INSPECTION. C. A REPORT SUMMARIZING THE SCOPE OF THE INSPECTION, NAME(S) AND QUALIFICATIONS OF PERSONNEL A REPORT SUMMARIZING THE SCOPE OF THE INSPECTION, NAME(S) AND QUALIFICATIONS OF PERSONNEL MAKING THE INSPECTION, THE DATE(S) OF THE INSPECTION, MAJOR OBSERVATIONS RELATING TO THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THIS PLAN, AND ACTIONS TAKEN IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 4.b SHALL BE MADE AND RETAINED AS PART OF THE PLAN FOR AT LEAST THREE (3) YEARS AFTER THE DATE OF THE INSPECTION.  THE REPORT SHALL BE SIGNED BY THE CONTRACTORS DESIGNATED "QUALIFIED INDIVIDUAL" AND COPIES FORWARDED TO THE ENGINEER AND OWNER.  D. IF ANY VIOLATION OF THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PLAN IS IDENTIFIED DURING THE CONDUCT OF THE IF ANY VIOLATION OF THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PLAN IS IDENTIFIED DURING THE CONDUCT OF THE CONSTRUCTION WORK COVERED BY THIS PLAN, THE CONTRACTOR OR CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVE SHALL COMPLETE AND FILE AN "INCIDENCE OF NONCOMPLIANCE" (ION) REPORT FOR THE IDENTIFIED VIOLATION. THE CONTRACTOR OR CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVE SHALL USE FORMS PROVIDED BY THE ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY AND SHALL INCLUDE SPECIFIC INFORMATION ON THE CAUSE OF NONCOMPLIANCE, ACTIONS WHICH WERE TAKEN TO PREVENT ANY FURTHER CAUSES OF NONCOMPLIANCE, AND A STATEMENT DETAILING ANY ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT WHICH MAY HAVE RESULTED FROM THE NONCOMPLIANCE. ALL REPORTS OF NONCOMPLIANCE SHALL BE SIGNED BY A RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY       IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE GENERAL PERMIT. THE REPORT SHALL BE MAILED TO THE FOLLOWING ADDRESS,      WITH COPIES SENT TO THE OWNER AND ENGINEER: IEPA - DIVISION OF WATER POLLUTION CONTROL IEPA - DIVISION OF WATER POLLUTION CONTROL COMPLIANCE ASSURANCE SECTION POST OFFICE BOX 19276 SPRINGFIELD, IL  62794-9276

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plywood or Aluminum   48" X 24" Min.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Letters 6" Min. Height

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USIGN DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USTRAW BALE ANCHOR SECTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULiner Anchor

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" Wire Staple or Sandbag

AutoCAD SHX Text
30-MIL POLYETHYLENE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRAW BALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Straw Bale

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' Min

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' Min

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' Min

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
Native Soil

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' Max

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5' Min.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30-Mil Polyethylene 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Entrench 3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"x4"x6' Wood Post or 6' Steel Post Min.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WIRE STAPLE OR SANDBAG  (ANCHOR EVERY 2')

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHOUT FACILITY - STRAW BALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1.   Maintaining temporary concrete washout facilities shall include removing and disposing of hardend concrete and/or slurry and returning the faciliities to a functional condition. 2.   Facility shall be cleaned or reconstructed in a new area once washout becomes two-thirds full. 3.   Each straw bale is to be staked in place using (2) 2"x2"x4'    wooden stakes.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
File No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text
Designed

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text
Approved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet  1  of   3

AutoCAD SHX Text
B. JOHNSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
IUM-654SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
6/08

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
EROSION CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLANKET INSTALLATION DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Staples

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USingle Joint

AutoCAD SHX Text
Staples

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tamp Soil

AutoCAD SHX Text
Firmly

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UAnchor Slot

AutoCAD SHX Text
Staple

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USTAPLE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UParallel Overlaps

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDETAIL 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" Min

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDETAIL 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDETAIL 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" Min

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" Min

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAP END OF UPSLOPE BLANKET 4" OVER DOWNSLOPE BLANKET AND SECURE WITH STAPLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAP BLANKETS SIDE BY SIDE USING A 4" OVERLAP WITH UPSLOPE BLANKET LAID OVER DOWNSLOPE BLANKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURY UPSLOPE END OF BLANKET IN TRENCH 6" WIDE BY 6" DEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURY TOE OF BLANKET IN TRENCH 6" WIDE BY 6" DEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPUSH PIN DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"-9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"-9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5" Min

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1.   Staples shall be placed in a diamond pattern at 2 per s.y. for stiched blankets.  Non-stiched shall use 4 staples per s.y. of material.  This equates to 200 staples with stiched blanket and 400 stapels with non-stiched blanket per 100 s.y. of material.  2. Staple or push pin lengths shall be selected based on soil type and conditions. (minimum staple Staple or push pin lengths shall be selected based on soil type and conditions. (minimum staple length is 6") 3.   Erosion control material shall be placed in contact with the soil over a prepared seedbed. 4.   All anchor slots shall be stapled at approximately 12" intervals.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
File No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text
Designed

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text
Approved

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet  1  of   1

AutoCAD SHX Text
B. JOHNSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
IUM-530

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/08

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Natural Resources Conservation Service

AutoCAD SHX Text
Natural Resources Conservation Service

AutoCAD SHX Text
CULVERT INLET PROTECTION - SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IL-508SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
Natural Resources Conservation Service



AutoCAD SHX Text
LINCOLN HIGHWAY - U.S. ROUTE 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDY HILL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=705.27 N INV=701.97 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=709.24 N INV=705.34 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=702.16 N INV=798.11 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=693.06 N INV=691.26 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=697.93 N/S INV=690.78 (12" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=691.99 E/W INV=687.89 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=692.53 S INV=688.88 (21" RCP) E INV=687.93 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" F.E.S. INV=689.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=692.00 E/W INV=686.80 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MANHOLE RIM=692.55 S/W INV=686.90 (30" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=700.49 E INV=693.39 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN RIM=700.55 E/W INV=691.80 (24" RCP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY MH RIM=699.19 W/S/E INV=683.09 S INV=693.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
699

AutoCAD SHX Text
698

AutoCAD SHX Text
697

AutoCAD SHX Text
696

AutoCAD SHX Text
695

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
693

AutoCAD SHX Text
693

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
697.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
695.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
693.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
692.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
699

AutoCAD SHX Text
699

AutoCAD SHX Text
698

AutoCAD SHX Text
698

AutoCAD SHX Text
697

AutoCAD SHX Text
697

AutoCAD SHX Text
696

AutoCAD SHX Text
696

AutoCAD SHX Text
695

AutoCAD SHX Text
695

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
694

AutoCAD SHX Text
693

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
703

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
713

AutoCAD SHX Text
712

AutoCAD SHX Text
711

AutoCAD SHX Text
711

AutoCAD SHX Text
710

AutoCAD SHX Text
709

AutoCAD SHX Text
708

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
712

AutoCAD SHX Text
711

AutoCAD SHX Text
710

AutoCAD SHX Text
709

AutoCAD SHX Text
708

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
705

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUBLIC & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUBLIC & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS, SEE GENERAL NOTE 8 SHEET 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS, SEE GENERAL NOTE 8 SHEET 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CULVERT INLET PROTECTION - SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND%%U

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET PROTECTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE OUTLET TO FLAT AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK CHECK DAM - RIPRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH CHECK - COIR LOG

AutoCAD SHX Text
EROSION CERTIFICATE THIS EROSION CONTROL PLAN WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND COMPLIES WITH THE URBAN SOIL EROSION CONTROL AND STANDARDS IN ILLINOIS MANUAL (LATEST EDITION) AND THE GENERALLY RECOGNIZED METHODS IN USE IN THE AREA.  ___________________________ THOMAS CARROLL, P.E. ILLINOIS PE #062-052783 EXPIRES 11-30-2021 ___________________________ DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE        

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREST HILL, ILLINOIS  60403

AutoCAD SHX Text
815/730-1010

AutoCAD SHX Text
1207 CEDARWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS  -  LAND SURVEYORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTECH INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/14/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OASIS SENIOR LIVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM REV SUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-20-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-5-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6-2-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EROSION CONTROL PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. APPROPRIATE EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE IN PLACE PRIOR TO APPROPRIATE EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE IN PLACE PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION. 2. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN PROPER SITE DRAINAGE DURING CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN PROPER SITE DRAINAGE DURING CONSTRUCTION. 3. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR DUST CONTROL AND MAINTAINING CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR DUST CONTROL AND MAINTAINING ADJACENT ROADWAYS TO BE CLEAN AND FREE OF DIRT AND DEBRIS AT ALL  TIMES.  4. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTENANCE, INSPECTION, AND REMOVAL  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTENANCE, INSPECTION, AND REMOVAL  OF ALL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES.  5. REFER TO THE STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN FOR DETAILS AND  REFER TO THE STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN FOR DETAILS AND  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. 6. LOCATION OF TEMPORARY CONCRETE WASHOUT FACILITY, IF NECESSARY, TO BE LOCATION OF TEMPORARY CONCRETE WASHOUT FACILITY, IF NECESSARY, TO BE DETERMINED BY CONTRACTOR PER DETAIL ON STORMWATER POLLUTION  PREVENTION PLAN. 7. LOCATION OF TEMPORARY TOPSOIL OR MATERIAL STOCKPILE, IF  NECESSARY, TO LOCATION OF TEMPORARY TOPSOIL OR MATERIAL STOCKPILE, IF  NECESSARY, TO NECESSARY, TO BE DETERMINED BY CONTRACTOR. SILT FENCING TO BE  PROVIDED AROUND  PROVIDED AROUND  PERIMETER OF ANY STOCKPILES, SEE DETAIL.  8. UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY THE CLIENT, CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH  UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY THE CLIENT, CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH  OWNER/DEVELOPER REGARDING  INSPECTIONS AND RECORD KEEPING REQUIRED AS PART INSPECTIONS AND RECORD KEEPING REQUIRED AS PART OF THE NPDES PERMIT FOR RUNOFF ASSOCIATED WITH CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE 1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/14/2021



 

 

INITIAL
BACKFILL

HAUNCHING

BEDDING

FINAL BACKFILL

INITIAL
BACKFILL

HAUNCHING

BEDDING

FINAL BACKFILL

SELECT GRANULAR  TRENCH BACKFILL
SHALL BE REQUIRED FOR ALL TRENCHES
CONSTRUCTED OR WITHIN TWO FEET
HORIZONTALLY OF THE EDGE OF THE
PROPOSED ROADWAY, CURB & GUTTER,
DRIVEWAYS, OR SIDEWALKS AND AT ALL
LOCATIONS SHOWN ON PLANS. BACKFILL
GRADATION SHALL BE IDOT CA-7

SELECT GRANULAR  TRENCH BACKFILL
SHALL BE REQUIRED FOR ALL TRENCHES
CONSTRUCTED OR WITHIN TWO FEET
HORIZONTALLY OF THE EDGE OF THE
PROPOSED ROADWAY, CURB & GUTTER,
DRIVEWAYS, OR SIDEWALKS AND AT ALL
LOCATIONS SHOWN ON PLANS. BACKFILL
GRADATION SHALL BE IDOT CA-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE        

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREST HILL, ILLINOIS  60403

AutoCAD SHX Text
815/730-1010

AutoCAD SHX Text
1207 CEDARWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS  -  LAND SURVEYORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTECH INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/14/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OASIS SENIOR LIVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM REV SUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-20-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-5-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6-2-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAILS - 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGID

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2 O.D. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2 O.D. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR SURFACE RESTORATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIDTH OF PERMANENT PAVEMENT REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT FOR PAYMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUNDATION WHERE SOIL CONDITIONS WARRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSIDE WALL OF TRENCH OR BRACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIFIED TRENCH WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGID PIPE INSTALLATION DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD DRAWING NO.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL COVER MINIMUM 12" TRAFFICKED AREAS MEASURED TO TOP OF SUBGRADE  GREEN AREAS  MEASURES TO TOP OF GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLEXIBLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2 O.D. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2 O.D. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR SURFACE RESTORATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHERE SOIL CONDITIONS WARRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIDTH OF PERMANENT PAVEMENT REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT FOR PAYMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUNDATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSIDE WALL OF TRENCH OR BRACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIFIED TRENCH WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLEXIBLE PIPE INSTALLATION DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD DRAWING NO.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM COVER 12" FOR PIPE UP TO 48" 18" FOR PIPE GREATER THAN 48" TRAFFICKED AREAS MEASURED TO TOP OF SUBGRADE GREEN AREAS  MEASURED TO TOP OF GROUND



P:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

GJ
N2

10
74

\E
ng

in
ee

rin
g\

DW
G\

21
07

4 
De

ta
ils

.d
w

g
Pl

ot
Da

te
: 9

/1
4/

20
22

 2
:5

3 
PM

 , 
La

yo
ut

: D
ET

AI
LS

 - 
2

SIDEWALK

NOTES

1. HIGH QUALITY YELLOW PAINT RECOMMENDED BY THE PAINT
MANUFACTURER FOR PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE USED.

2. HANDICAP LOGO SHALL BE INSTALLED USING HIGH QUALITY
YELLOW PAINT.

3. PLATE R7-I101P TO BE MOUNTED DIRECTLY BELOW THE R7-8
SIGN OR COMBINED WITH THAT SIGN ON A SINGLE 12" BY 24"
PANEL. 60" MOUNTING HEIGHT AS MEASURED TO BOTTOM OF FINE
SIGN

4. SIGN SHALL BE CENTERED ON THE 8' WIDE STALL, NOT MORE
THAN 6' IN FRONT OF THE SPACE. SIGN SHALL BE 5' HIGH AS
MEASURED FROM THE BOTTOM OF THE FINE SIGN.

5. DOLLAR AMOUNT FOR ILL STANDARD R7-I101 TO BE VERIFIED
WITH MUNICIPALITY.

6. HANDICAP STALL AND SIGNAGE SHALL COMPLY WITH THE NEW
ILLINOIS ACCESSIBILITY CODE (71 ILL ADM. CODE 400) ACCEPTED
OCTOBER 16, 2018.

SEE CASTING 
ADJUSTMENT DETAIL

PRECAST CONC.
ADJUSTING RINGS

   FOR WATER MAIN SIZES 10" OR LESS,

FOR WATER MAIN SIZES 12" THRU 20",

(NO MORE THAN 2 RINGS
OR 12" OF ADJUSTMENT)

PRECAST CONCRETE
MANHOLE SECTIONS:
ASTM C478

CONC. BOTTOM
6" MIN. CAST-IN-PLACE
PRECAST CONC. OR

THRUST BLOCK
CONCRETE

MAIN
EXIST. WATER

BEDDING MATERIAL: CA-7
GRANULAR PIPE

CONCRETE SUPPORT

FINISHED GRADE

WATER MAIN

NOTES:
1. ECCENTRIC CONE REQUIRED
2. USE 4'-0" DIAMETER

   USE 6'-0" DIAMETER

NOTE:
TAPPING OF WATER MAINS SHALL BE DONE
ONLY IN THE PRESENCE OF AN AUTHORIZED
VILLAGE REPRESENTATIVE.

EXTRUDIBLE PREFORMED
PLASTIC GASKET
(TYPICAL ALL
SECTION JOINTS)

 GATE VALVE PER
AWWA C-509

EXTRUDIBLE PREFORMED
PLASTIC GASKET

RUBBER BOOT

MANHOLE STEPS @ 16" C.
TO C.

STAINLESS STEEL
TAPPING SLEEVE

(MINIMUM 8" X 8" BLOCK)

4"

STANDARD DETAIL
FOR

PRESSURE CONNECTION
VALVE VAULT

NO SCALE

8" M
IN

5'
-6

" M
IN

. C
O

VE
R

6"
MIN

10.5" BY 8" ROUND DECORATIVE LIGHT BASE

DECORATIVE LIGHT BASE SHOWN FOR REFERENCE. CONTRACTOR
TO COORDINATE/VERIFY WITH VILLAGE DURING CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE        

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREST HILL, ILLINOIS  60403

AutoCAD SHX Text
815/730-1010

AutoCAD SHX Text
1207 CEDARWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS  -  LAND SURVEYORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTECH INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/14/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OASIS SENIOR LIVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM REV SUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-20-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-5-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6-2-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAILS - 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. ALL CURB AND GUTTER SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH IDOT CLASS SI CONCRETE WITH A ALL CURB AND GUTTER SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH IDOT CLASS SI CONCRETE WITH A MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 3500 PSI  2. CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL BE SAW-CUT AT MAXIMUM 20 FOOT INTERVALS AND CAULKED. CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL BE SAW-CUT AT MAXIMUM 20 FOOT INTERVALS AND CAULKED. 3. PREFORMED EXPANSION JOINTS, " THICK, SHALL BE PLACED 10 FEET EITHER SIDE OF STORM PREFORMED EXPANSION JOINTS, " THICK, SHALL BE PLACED 10 FEET EITHER SIDE OF STORM 34" THICK, SHALL BE PLACED 10 FEET EITHER SIDE OF STORM STRUCTURES IN CURB AND GUTTER, AT CURB RETURNS AND AT POINTS OF CURVATURE, AT ALL CONNECTIONS BETWEEN NEW AND EXISTING CURB AND GUTTER, AND AT 100' INTERVALS ON TANGENTS. 4. CURB AND GUTTER AT STORM STRUCTURES SHALL BE BOXED-OUT A MINIMUM OF 10' ON EACH SIDE CURB AND GUTTER AT STORM STRUCTURES SHALL BE BOXED-OUT A MINIMUM OF 10' ON EACH SIDE OF STRUCTURE AND HAND-FORMED BETWEEN EXPANSION JOINTS.  FORMS SHALL BE PLACED AND INSPECTED BY VILLAGE PRIOR TO POURING CONCRETE.  STRUCTURE FRAMES SHALL BE PLACED AND ADJUSTED PRIOR TO THIS INSPECTION. 5. CURB TO BE DEPRESSED AT A.D.A. SIDEWALK RAMPS AND WHERE SHOWN ON PLANS. CURB TO BE DEPRESSED AT A.D.A. SIDEWALK RAMPS AND WHERE SHOWN ON PLANS. 6. INSTALL 2 - #4 DEFORMED BARS AT EXPANSION JOINTS, CONNECTION TO EXISTING CURBS, AND OVER INSTALL 2 - #4 DEFORMED BARS AT EXPANSION JOINTS, CONNECTION TO EXISTING CURBS, AND OVER ALL TRENCHES. 7. APPLICABLE IDOT STANDARD 606001-06APPLICABLE IDOT STANDARD 606001-06

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB DETAIL (NOT TO SCALE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINTAIN ASPHALT SURFACE 1/4"  ABOVE GUTTER FLAG

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"PER FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" MIN.  AGGREGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UB-6.12 SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINTAIN ASPHALT SURFACE AT FLAG

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" PER FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UB-6.12 REVERSE SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/C=EOP + 0.42' T/DC=EOP + 0.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/C=EOP + 0.56' T/DC=EOP + 0.19'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINTAIN ASPHALT SURFACE 1/4"  ABOVE GUTTER FLAG

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" PER FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" MIN.  AGGREGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDEPRESSED CURB - OVERFLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/DC=EOP - 0.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/C=EOP + 0.50' T/DC=EOP + 0.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U6" BARRIER CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-1/2"-DEPRESSED CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
R 1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINTAIN ASPHALT SURFACE 1/4"  ABOVE GUTTER FLAG

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" PER FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
T/C=EOP + 0.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UROLLED CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PAVEMENT TO BE REMOVED  & REPLACED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CURB PER  PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL DEPTH SAWCUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UCURB ADJACENT TO EX. PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
R 3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
R 2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
R 3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
R 4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-1/2"-DEPRESSED CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-1/2"-DEPRESSED CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" MIN.  AGGREGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" MIN.  AGGREGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" MIN.  AGGREGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(B6.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" (BARRIER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' OR 5' (SEE PLANS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CA-7 STONE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" (6" AT DRIVEWAYS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' OR 5' (SEE PLANS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. ALL SIDEWALK SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH IDOT CLASS "SI" CONCRETE WITH A MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 3,500 PSI AT 14 DAYS 2. PREFORMED EXPANSION JOINTS (1/2" THICK) SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN SIDEWALK EVERY 50 FEET AND AT ALL ABUTTING DRIVEWAYS AND CURB AND GUTTER. 3. TOOLED CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN SIDEWALK EVERY FIVE FEET. 4. SIDEWALK SHALL HAVE MAXIMUM 1/4" (1:50) PER FOOT CROSS-SLOPE. 5. W1.4xW1.4 WELDED WIIRE MESH SHALL BE INSTALLED AT ALL DRIVEWAY CROSSINGS. 6. INSTALL #4 BARS (12" LONG) AT ALL CONNECTIONS BETWEEN NEW AND EXISTING SIDEWALKS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CA-7 STONE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" (6" AT DRIVEWAYS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CA-7 STONE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 DOWEL BARS @ 30" CENTERS IF CURB IS  POURED SEPARATELY

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMBINATION SIDEWALK & CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANDICAP  PARKING STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" YELLOW  DIAGONALS @  45°

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" YELLOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANDICAP PARKING SIGN. SEE NOTE 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
$250 FINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
R7-8

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILL STANDARD R7-I101P

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" YELLOW  DIAGONALS @  45°

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" YELLOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANDICAP PARKING SIGN. SEE NOTE 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'



AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS: 1. DEFINITION OF TERMS: DEFINITION OF TERMS: A. "CLIENT" SHALL MEAN THE PERSON OR ENTITY WITH WHOM GEOTECH INCORPORATED HAS CONTRACTED WITH "CLIENT" SHALL MEAN THE PERSON OR ENTITY WITH WHOM GEOTECH INCORPORATED HAS CONTRACTED WITH TO PREPARE CIVIL ENGINEERING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS. B. "ENGINEER" SHALL MEAN GEOTECH INCORPORATED "ENGINEER" SHALL MEAN GEOTECH INCORPORATED C. "PLANS" SHALL MEAN THE CIVIL ENGINEERING PLANS AND SPECIFICATION PREPARED BY THE ENGINEER. "PLANS" SHALL MEAN THE CIVIL ENGINEERING PLANS AND SPECIFICATION PREPARED BY THE ENGINEER. D. "CONTRACTOR" SHALL MEAN ANY PERSON OR ENTITY PERFORMING ANY WORK DESCRIBED IN THE PLANS. "CONTRACTOR" SHALL MEAN ANY PERSON OR ENTITY PERFORMING ANY WORK DESCRIBED IN THE PLANS. E. "JURISDICTIONAL ENTITY" SHALL MEAN ANY MUNICIPAL, COUNTY, STATE, OR FEDERAL UNIT OF GOVERNMENT  "JURISDICTIONAL ENTITY" SHALL MEAN ANY MUNICIPAL, COUNTY, STATE, OR FEDERAL UNIT OF GOVERNMENT  FROM WHOM AN APPROVAL, PERMIT, AND/OR REVIEW IS REQUIRED FOR ANY ASPECT OF THE PROJECT.  2. CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE PLANS IS SUFFICIENT   CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE PLANS IS SUFFICIENT   CONSIDERATION FOR CONTRACTOR'S COVENANTS STATED HEREIN.  3. NO CONSTRUCTION PLAN SHALL BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION UNLESS SPECIFICALLY MARKED "FOR CONSTRUCTION". NO CONSTRUCTION PLAN SHALL BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION UNLESS SPECIFICALLY MARKED "FOR CONSTRUCTION". PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND CONDITIONS  AFFECTING THE WORK WITH THE ACTUAL CONDITIONS AT THE JOB SITE. IN ADDITION, THE CONTRACTOR MUST  VERIFY THE ENGINEER'S LINE AND GRADE STAKES. IF THERE ARE ANY DISCREPANCIES WITH WHAT IS SHOWN ON THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS, THE CONTRACTOR MUST IMMEDIATELY REPORT SAME TO ENGINEER BEFORE DOING ANY  WORK, OTHERWISE THE CONTRACTOR ASSUMES FULL RESPONSIBILITY. IN THE EVENT OF DISAGREEMENT BETWEEN  THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND/OR DETAILS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SECURE WRITTEN  INSTRUCTION FROM THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO PROCEEDING WITH ANY PART OF THE WORK AFFECTED BY OMISSIONS OR DISCREPANCIES. FAILING TO SECURE SUCH INSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR WILL BE CONSIDERED TO HAVE  PROCEEDED AT THEIR OWN RISK AND EXPENSE. IN THE EVENT OF ANY DOUBT OR QUESTIONS ARISING WITH  RESPECT TO THE TRUE MEANING OF THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS OR SPECIFICATIONS, THE DECISION OF THE  ENGINEER SHALL BE FINAL AND CONCLUSIVE.  4. ALL WORK HEREIN PROPOSED SHALL BE COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL REQUIREMENTS OF ANY   ALL WORK HEREIN PROPOSED SHALL BE COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL REQUIREMENTS OF ANY   JURISDICTIONAL ENTITY, AND ALL SUCH PERTINENT LAWS, DIRECTIVES, ORDINANCES AND THE LIKE SHALL BE  CONSIDERED TO BE A PART OF THESE PLANS. IF A DISCREPANCY IS NOTED BETWEEN THE PLANS AND   REQUIREMENTS OF ANY JURISDICTIONAL ENTITY, THE CLIENT AND/OR CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE  ENGINEER.  5. CONSTRUCTION OF WORK PROPOSED BY THE PLANS SHALL BE COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, AND MATERIALS  CONSTRUCTION OF WORK PROPOSED BY THE PLANS SHALL BE COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, AND MATERIALS  USED SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH, THE METHODS AND MATERIALS REQUIRED IN THE APPROPRIATE SECTIONS OF THE LATEST EDITIONS OF THE "STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION , DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, STATE OF ILLINOIS" AND "STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR WATER AND SEWER MAIN CONSTRUCTION IN ILLINOIS".  6. WHEN THE PLANS INCLUDE INFORMATION PERTAINING TO THE LOCATION OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND FACILITIES AND WHEN THE PLANS INCLUDE INFORMATION PERTAINING TO THE LOCATION OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND FACILITIES AND UTILITIES, SUCH INFORMATION REPRESENTS ONLY THE OPINION OF THE ENGINEER AS TO THE APPROXIMATE   LOCATION AND ELEVATION OF SUCH FACILITIES AND UTILITIES. AT THE LOCATIONS WHEREIN DETAILED POSITIONS OF THESE FACILITIES AND UTILITIES BECOME NECESSARY FOR NEW CONSTRUCTION, INCLUDING ALL POINTS OF   CONNECTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FURNISH ALL LABOR AND TOOLS TO VERIFY OR DEFINITELY ESTABLISH THE  HORIZONTAL LOCATION, ELEVATION, SIZE, AND MATERIAL OF THE FACILITIES AND UTILITIES. CONTRACTOR SHALL  NOTIFY THE ENGINEER AT LEAST 48 HOURS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION IF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN EXISTING   INFORMATION OR CONFLICTS WITH EXISTING UTILITIES EXIST. ENGINEER ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY WHATEVER WITH RESPECT TO THE SUFFICIENCY OR ACCURACY OF THE INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE PLANS RELATIVE TO THE  LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND FACILITIES AND UTILITIES, NOR THE MANNER IN WHICH THEY ARE REMOVED OR  ADJUSTED. IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION TO NOTIFY ALL UTILITY  COMPANIES OF THE INTENT TO BEGIN CONSTRUCTION AND TO VERIFY THE ACTUAL LOCATION OF ALL SUCH  FACILITIES AND UTILITIES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO OBTAIN FROM THE RESPECTIVE UTILITY COMPANIES THE  WORKING SCHEDULE FOR REMOVING OR ADJUSTING THESE FACILITIES.  7. THE PLANS HAVE BEEN PREPARED BY THE ENGINEER BASED ON THE ASSUMPTION THAT EXISTING OR MODIFIED  THE PLANS HAVE BEEN PREPARED BY THE ENGINEER BASED ON THE ASSUMPTION THAT EXISTING OR MODIFIED  SOIL CONDITIONS ARE SUITABLE TO SUPPORT THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN. THE CLIENT AND/OR   CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE ENGINEER IF ANY OBSTRUCTIONS OR UNSUITABLE MATERIAL ARE  DISCOVERED THAT PREVENTS THE INSTALLATION OF THE IMPROVEMENTS AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS. THE CLIENT, AT THEIR DISCRETION SHALL RETAIN A GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER, TO ENSURE THE SOIL CONDITIONS ARE SUITABLE TO SUPPORT THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS.  8. DUE TO THE UNCERTAINTY OF SEASONAL GROUND WATER TABLES AND THE GEOPHYSICAL CONDITIONS AFFECTING  DUE TO THE UNCERTAINTY OF SEASONAL GROUND WATER TABLES AND THE GEOPHYSICAL CONDITIONS AFFECTING  GROUND WATER MOVEMENT, THE ENGINEER ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF GROUND WATER ASSOCIATED WITH SUBGRADE CONSTRUCTION. UNDERGROUND UTILITIES, BASEMENTS, OR OTHER SIMILAR FACILITIES  CONSTRUCTED BELOW FINISHED GRADE ARE AT THE RISK OF THE CLIENT. CLIENT SHALL COORDINATE WITH   CONTRACTOR, ARCHITECT, AND/OR SOILS ENGINEER TO MITIGATE THE POTENTIAL IMPACT OF GROUND WATER ON THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS.    9. TREES NOT SCHEDULED TO BE REMOVED SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM DAMAGE. TREES SHALL NOT BE REMOVED  TREES NOT SCHEDULED TO BE REMOVED SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM DAMAGE. TREES SHALL NOT BE REMOVED  UNLESS REQUESTED BY THE CLIENT.  10. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ALL SIGNS, EQUIPMENT, AND PERSONNEL NECESSARY TO PROVIDE FOR SAFE AND THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ALL SIGNS, EQUIPMENT, AND PERSONNEL NECESSARY TO PROVIDE FOR SAFE AND EFFICIENT TRAFFIC FLOW IN ALL AREAS WHERE WORK WILL INTERRUPT, INTERFERE OR CAUSE TO CHANGE IN ANY  FORM THE CONDITIONS OF TRAFFIC FLOW THAT EXISTED PRIOR TO THE START OF WORK. EMERGENCY VEHICLE  ACCESS SHALL BE MAINTAINED AT ALL TIMES.  11. THE CONTRACTOR, HIS AGENTS AN EMPLOYEES, AND ALL EQUIPMENT, MACHINERY AND VEHICLES SHALL CONFINE  THE CONTRACTOR, HIS AGENTS AN EMPLOYEES, AND ALL EQUIPMENT, MACHINERY AND VEHICLES SHALL CONFINE  THEIR WORK WITH THE BOUNDARIES OF THE PROJECT OR WORK AREA. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE SOLELY LIABLE FOR DAMAGE CAUSED BY THEIR AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, EQUIPMENT, MACHINERY, AND VEHICLES ON ADJACENT   PROPERTIES OR AREAS OUTSIDE DESIGNATED WORK AREAS. 12. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO ARRANGE FOR THE RELOCATION OR BRACING OF EXISTING UTILITY  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO ARRANGE FOR THE RELOCATION OR BRACING OF EXISTING UTILITY  POLES THAT MAY BE WITHIN THE WORKING LIMITS OF THE CONTRACT. ALL WORK AND COSTS CONNECTED WITH THE RELOCATION OR MAINTENANCE SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CLIENT OR CONTRACTOR. 13. RESTORATION OF DAMAGE TO PUBLIC OR PRIVATE PROPERTY OUTSIDE THE LIMITS OF THE PROJECT SHALL BE  RESTORATION OF DAMAGE TO PUBLIC OR PRIVATE PROPERTY OUTSIDE THE LIMITS OF THE PROJECT SHALL BE  PERFORMED IMMEDIATELY UPON COMPLETION OF THE WORK. AREAS SHALL BE RESTORED AS NEARLY AS POSSIBLE TO THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION OR BETTER AND SHALL INCLUDE BUT NOT LIMITED TO: MAINTAINED LAWNS AND  RIGHT-OF-WAYS, ROADWAYS, DITCHES, SIDEWALKS, PAVEMENTS, LANDSCAPING, TREES, FENCES, MAILBOXES, SEWERS, WATER MAINS, ETC.  14. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE SOLELY AND COMPLETELY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CONDITIONS OF THE JOB SITE, INCLUDING CONTRACTOR SHALL BE SOLELY AND COMPLETELY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CONDITIONS OF THE JOB SITE, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS AND PROPERTY DURING THE PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK. THE REQUIREMENT SHALL  APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH  ALL APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO THE SAFETY OF PERSONS OR PROPERTY, OR TO THE  PROTECTION OF PERSONS OR PROPERTY FROM DAMAGE, INJURY, OR LOSS, AND SHALL ERECT AND MAINTAIN ALL  NECESSARY SAFEGUARDS FOR SUCH SAFETY AND PROTECTION. THE DUTIES OF THE ENGINEER DO NOT INCLUDE  REVIEW OF THE ADEQUACY OF EITHER THE CONTRACTOR'S OR THE GENERAL PUBLIC'S SAFETY IN, ON, OR NEAR  THE CONSTRUCTION SITE.  15. CONTRACTOR SHALL AT ALL TIMES KEEP THE SITE FREE FROM ACCUMULATION OF CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS, WASTE  CONTRACTOR SHALL AT ALL TIMES KEEP THE SITE FREE FROM ACCUMULATION OF CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS, WASTE  MATERIAL, TRASH, OILS, AND OTHER MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS. ADJACENT ROADWAYS SHALL BE KEPT FREE OF MUD  AND DEBRIS AT ALL TIMES. UTILITY STRUCTURES AND CURB FLOW LINES SHALL BE CLEANED OF DEBRIS.  16. FOR DISTURBANCES EXCEEDING ONE ACRE, A NOTICE OF INTENT SHALL BE SUBMITTED BY THE ENGINEER    FOR DISTURBANCES EXCEEDING ONE ACRE, A NOTICE OF INTENT SHALL BE SUBMITTED BY THE ENGINEER    TO OBTAIN THE IEPA'S GENERAL NPDES PERMIT FOR STORM WATER DISCHARGE FROM CONSTRUCTION SITE   ACTIVITIES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF ALL EROSION  CONTROL MEASURES. CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL INSPECTIONS AND RECORD KEEPING  REQUIRED AS PART OF THE NPDES PERMIT.   17. CONTRACTOR SHALL ADJUST ALL STRUCTURES TO EITHER EXISTING OR PROPOSED ELEVATIONS. ADJUSTMENTS SHALL CONTRACTOR SHALL ADJUST ALL STRUCTURES TO EITHER EXISTING OR PROPOSED ELEVATIONS. ADJUSTMENTS SHALL BE CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL. ADJUSTMENTS TO FINISHED GRADE WILL NOT ALLEVIATE THE CONTRACTOR FROM AANY ADDITIONAL ADJUSTMENTS AS REQUIRED DURING FINAL INSPECTION.   18. THE VILLAGE/CITY SHALL BE NOTIFIED WHEN EXISTING FIELD DRAINAGE TILES ARE ENCOUNTERED  THE VILLAGE/CITY SHALL BE NOTIFIED WHEN EXISTING FIELD DRAINAGE TILES ARE ENCOUNTERED  DURING CONSTRUCTION REGARDLESS OF CONDITION OR FUNCTIONALITY. THE VILLAGE/CITY SHALL HAVE  FINAL APPROVAL OF ANY REPAIR, CONNECTION, ABANDONMENT, OR OTHER METHODS FOR MITIGATING EXISTING DRAINAGE TILES ENCOUNTERED ON SITE. CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP A RECORD OF ALL SIZES AND  LOCATIONS OF ENCOUNTERED FIELD DRAINAGE TILES.  19. ALL PROPOSED ELEVATIONS SHOWN ON THE PLANS ARE FINISHED SURFACE ELEVATIONS, UNLESS OTHERWISE  ALL PROPOSED ELEVATIONS SHOWN ON THE PLANS ARE FINISHED SURFACE ELEVATIONS, UNLESS OTHERWISE  SPECIFIED. 20. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PRESERVE ALL CONSTRUCTION STAKES UNTIL THEY ARE NO LONGER NEEDED. ANY STAKES THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PRESERVE ALL CONSTRUCTION STAKES UNTIL THEY ARE NO LONGER NEEDED. ANY STAKES DESTROYED OR DISTURBED BY THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO THEIR USE SHALL BE RESET BY THE ENGINEER AT  CONTRACTOR'S COST. 21. ANY EXISTING SIGNS, LIGHT STANDARDS, AND/OR UTILITY POLES WHICH INTERFERE WITH CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS ANY EXISTING SIGNS, LIGHT STANDARDS, AND/OR UTILITY POLES WHICH INTERFERE WITH CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS AND NOT NOTED FOR DISPOSAL SHALL BE REMOVED AND RESET BY THE CONTRACTOR, WHICH SHALL BE   CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL. ANY DAMAGE TO THESE ITEMS SHALL BE REPAIRED OR REPLACED BY THE CONTRACTOR  AT THEIR EXPENSE. ANY SIGNS NOT REQUIRED TO BE RESET SHALL BE DELIVERED TO THE RESPECTIVE OWNERS. 22. ANY DEWATERING OF SEWER AND WATER TRENCHES AS WELL AS TEMPORARY SHEETING OR BRACING THAT MAY BE ANY DEWATERING OF SEWER AND WATER TRENCHES AS WELL AS TEMPORARY SHEETING OR BRACING THAT MAY BE REQUIRED SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR AND SHALL NOT BE CONSIDERED EXTRA WORK.  IN THE EVENT THAT SOFT MATERIALS WITH UNCONFINED COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH LESS THAN 0.5 TSF ARE   ENCOUNTERED IN SEWER AND WATER MAIN CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL (UPON APPROVAL OF THE  CLIENT AND/OR ENGINEER) OVER-EXCAVATE TO A DEPTH OF ONE (1) FOOT BELOW THE BOTTOM OF THE PIPE AND BACKFILL WITH COMPACTED CRUSHED STONE, PROPERLY FORMED TO FIT THE BOTTOM OF THE PIPE. 23. CONTRACTOR SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS THE ENGINEER FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS, DAMAGES,  CONTRACTOR SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS THE ENGINEER FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS, DAMAGES,  LOSSES, AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING ATTORNEY'S FEES ARISING OUT OF OR RESULTING FROM THE PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTRACTOR'S WORK. IN ANY AND ALL CLAIMS AGAINST THE ENGINEER BY ANY EMPLOYEE OF THE  CONTRACTOR, OR ANYONE DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY THE CONTRACTOR, OR ANYONE WHOSE ACTS THE CONTRACTOR MAY BE LIABLE, THE INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATION SHALL NOT BE LIMITED IN ANY WAY BY ANY  LIMITATION ON THE AMOUNT OF DAMAGES, COMPENSATION OR BENEFITS PAYABLE BY  OR FOR THE CONTRACTOR UNDER WORKER'S COMPENSATION ACTS, DISABILITY BENEFIT ACTS OR OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT ACTS.  24. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE, WORKER'S COMPENSATION AND  CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE, WORKER'S COMPENSATION AND  EMPLOYER'S  LIABILITY INSURANCE, AND COMPREHENSIVE AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE TO PROVIDE  LIABILITY INSURANCE, AND COMPREHENSIVE AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE TO PROVIDE  PROTECTION FROM CLAIMS WHICH MAY ARISE OUT OF OR RESULTING FROM THE PERFORMANCE OF WORK BY  ANYONE DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY THE CONTRACTOR OR BY ANYONE FOR WHOSE ACTS THE  CONTRACTOR MAY BE LIABLE. THE ENGINEER SHALL BE NAMES AS ADDITIONAL INSURED ON THE POLICIES.  25. THE ENGINEER SHALL NOT SUPERVISE, DIRECT, OR HAVE CONTROL OVER THE CONTRACTOR'S WORK. NOR SHALL  THE ENGINEER SHALL NOT SUPERVISE, DIRECT, OR HAVE CONTROL OVER THE CONTRACTOR'S WORK. NOR SHALL  THE ENGINEER HAVE THE AUTHORITY OVER THE RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE MEANS, METHODS, TECHNIQUES,  SEQUENCES, OR PROCEDURES SELECTED BY THE CONTRACTOR TO COMPLETE THE WORK. ENGINEER SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS INCIDENTAL TO THE WORK OF THE CONTRACTOR OR FOR ANY FAILURE OF THE CONTRACTOR TO COMPLY WITH THE LAWS, RULES, REGULATIONS, ORDINANCES,  CODES, OR ORDERS APPLICABLE TO THE CONTRACTOR FURNISHING AND PERFORMING THEIR WORK.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMOLITION: 1. CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY PERMITS FOR THE DEMOLITION WORK AND DISPOSAL OF WASTE   CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY PERMITS FOR THE DEMOLITION WORK AND DISPOSAL OF WASTE   MATERIAL. ALL WORK SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL REQUIREMENTS.   2. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR DEMOLITION, REMOVAL, AND DISPOSAL OF ALL STRUCTURES, PADS, WALLS,  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR DEMOLITION, REMOVAL, AND DISPOSAL OF ALL STRUCTURES, PADS, WALLS,  FLUMES, FOUNDATIONS, ROAD, PARKING LOTS, DRIVES, DRAINAGE STRUCTURES, UTILITIES, ETC. SUCH THAT THE  IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN ON THE PLANS CAN BE CONSTRUCTED. ALL FACILITIES TO BE REMOVED SHALL BE   UNDERCUT TO SUITABLE MATERIAL AND BROUGHT TO THE PROPOSED SUB-GRADE ELEVATION WITH SUITABLE  COMPACTED MATERIAL.  3. ALL EXISTING UTILITY LINES AND CONDUITS LOCATED UNDER PROPOSED BUILDINGS, ROADWAYS, DRIVES, PAVEMENT  ALL EXISTING UTILITY LINES AND CONDUITS LOCATED UNDER PROPOSED BUILDINGS, ROADWAYS, DRIVES, PAVEMENT  AREAS, OR SIDEWALKS SHALL BE REMOVED AND PROPERLY BACKFILLED WITH SUITABLE COMPACTED MATERIAL. ALL  EXISTING UTILITY LINES UNDER PROPOSED LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE LEFT IN PLACE AND PLUGGED AT ALL  STRUCTURES. ALL EXISTING STRUCTURES SHALL BE REMOVED AND BACKFILLED WITH SUITABLE COMPACTED   MATERIAL. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ACTIVITIES WITH THE APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANY. 4. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH JURISDICTIONAL ENTITY AND UTILITY COMPANIES REGARDING THE REMOVAL OF CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH JURISDICTIONAL ENTITY AND UTILITY COMPANIES REGARDING THE REMOVAL OF SERVICE LINES. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL FEES AND CHARGES ASSOCIATED WITH DISCONNECTION OF  EXISTING SERVICES.  5. REMOVAL AND/OR ABANDONMENT OF ANY WELLS, SEPTIC TANKS AND/OR FIELDS, AND GREASE TRAPS SHALL BE  REMOVAL AND/OR ABANDONMENT OF ANY WELLS, SEPTIC TANKS AND/OR FIELDS, AND GREASE TRAPS SHALL BE  DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE APPROPRIATE JURISDICTIONAL ENTITY.  6. CONTRACTOR SHALL DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A DUST CONTROL PLAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH JURISDICTIONAL ENTITY  CONTRACTOR SHALL DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A DUST CONTROL PLAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH JURISDICTIONAL ENTITY  REQUIREMENTS.  6. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH JURISDICTIONAL ENTITY AND CLIENT TO ENSURE PROTECTION AND   CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH JURISDICTIONAL ENTITY AND CLIENT TO ENSURE PROTECTION AND   MAINTENANCE OF SANITARY AND WATER UTILITIES AS NECESSARY AND PROVIDE STORM WATER CONVEYANCE   UNTIL NEW FACILITIES ARE CONSTRUCTED, TESTED, AND PLACED IN OPERATION. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EARTHWORK: 1. COPIES OF SOIL BORINGS AND REPORTS, IF SUCH BORINGS WERE TAKEN BY THE CLIENT, SHOULD BE MADE  COPIES OF SOIL BORINGS AND REPORTS, IF SUCH BORINGS WERE TAKEN BY THE CLIENT, SHOULD BE MADE  AVAILABLE BY THE CLIENT TO THE ENGINEER AND CONTRACTOR. THESE BORINGS ARE PRESENTED FOR WHATEVER  PURPOSE THE CONTRACTOR CHOOSES TO MAKE OF THEM. THE ENGINEER MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR   WARRANTY REGARDING THE NUMBER, LOCATION, SPACING, OR DEPTH OF BORINGS TAKEN, NOR OF THE ACCURACY  OR RELIABILITY OF THE INFORMATION GIVEN IN THE RESULTS THEREOF.   FURTHER, THE ENGINEER DOES NOT ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE POSSIBILITY THAT DURING CONSTRUCTION,  THE SOIL AND GROUNDWATER CONDITIONS MAY BE DIFFERENT THAN INDICATED. NEITHER DOES THE ENGINEER  ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR VARIATIONS OF SOIL AND GROUNDWATER AT LOCATIONS BETWEEN BORINGS. THE  CONTRACTOR MAY AT THEIR DISCRETION AND COST OBTAIN ITS OWN BORINGS, EXPLORATIONS, AND OBSERVATIONS  TO DETERMINE SOIL AND GROUND WATER CONDITIONS.  2. THE SITE SHALL BE CLEARED, GRUBBED, AND TREES AND STUMPS REMOVED WHERE DESIGNATED ON THE PLANS  THE SITE SHALL BE CLEARED, GRUBBED, AND TREES AND STUMPS REMOVED WHERE DESIGNATED ON THE PLANS  OR SPECIFIED BY THE CLIENT. TREES DESIGNATED TO REMAIN SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM DAMAGE.   3. UPON COMPLETION OF DEMOLITION AND SITE CLEARING, ALL TOPSOIL, ORGANIC MATERIAL, OR OTHER UNSUITABLE  UPON COMPLETION OF DEMOLITION AND SITE CLEARING, ALL TOPSOIL, ORGANIC MATERIAL, OR OTHER UNSUITABLE  MATERIAL SHALL BE STRIPPED FROM AREAS REQUIRING STRUCTURAL FILL. STRIPPED MATERIAL SHALL BE PLACED IN STOCKPILES IN CLIENT DESIGNATED AREAS FOR FUTURE USE WITHIN AREAS TO BE LANDSCAPED AND FILL IN AREAS NOT REQUIRING STRUCTURAL FILL. EXCESS STRIPPED MATERIAL SHALL BE COMPLETELY REMOVED FROM THE SITE  AND DISPOSED OF OFF-SITE BY THE CONTRACTOR.   4. ALL SUITABLE EXCAVATED MATERIALS SHALL BE HAULED, PLACED (MOISTURE CONDITIONED IF NECESSARY) AND  ALL SUITABLE EXCAVATED MATERIALS SHALL BE HAULED, PLACED (MOISTURE CONDITIONED IF NECESSARY) AND  COMPACTED IN FILL AREAS. CONTRACTOR SHALL INCLUDE ALL DEWATERING, TEMPORARY DITCHES AND CULVERTS  NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE EXCAVATION AND FILL WORK.  5. EXCAVATION AND PLACEMENT OF SUITABLE FILL MATERIAL SHALL BE WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS AND TO THE  EXCAVATION AND PLACEMENT OF SUITABLE FILL MATERIAL SHALL BE WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS AND TO THE  SUBGRADE ELEVATIONS PROVIDED ON THE PLANS. FILL MATERIAL SHALL BE PLACED IN LOOSE LIFTS NOT   EXCEEDING EIGHT (8) INCHES IN THICKNESS AND THE WATER CONTENT SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO ACHIEVE REQUIRED COMPACTION. IN AREAS REQUIRING STRUCTURAL FILL, FILL MATERIAL SHALL NOT BE PLACED OVER TOPSOIL OR  OTHER UNSUITABLE MATERIAL.  6. COMPACTION OF EXCAVATED MATERIAL AND OTHER SUITABLE MATERIAL SHALL BE AT LEAST 95% OF THE STANDARD COMPACTION OF EXCAVATED MATERIAL AND OTHER SUITABLE MATERIAL SHALL BE AT LEAST 95% OF THE STANDARD PROCTOR DRY DENSITY WITHIN STRUCTURAL FILL AREAS (BUILDING PAD, PAVEMENT, SIDEWALK, ETC.) AND 90% OF  THE STANDARD PROCTOR DRY DENSITY FOR NON-STRUCTURAL AREAS (GRASS, LANDSCAPE, YARDS, ETC.).   7. UNSUITABLE MATERIAL SHALL BE CONSIDERED AS MATERIAL WHICH IS NOT SUITABLE FOR THE SUPPORT OF   UNSUITABLE MATERIAL SHALL BE CONSIDERED AS MATERIAL WHICH IS NOT SUITABLE FOR THE SUPPORT OF   PAVEMENT AND BUILDING CONSTRUCTION. IF ENCOUNTERED BELOW NORMAL TOPSOIL DEPTHS AND/OR PROPOSED  SUBGRADE ELEVATIONS IT SHALL BE REMOVED AND REPLACED WITH MATERIAL APPROVED BY THE SOILS   CONSULTANT. THE DECISION TO REMOVE SAID MATERIAL AND TO WHAT EXTENT SHALL BE MADE BY A SOILS   CONSULTANT AND THE CLIENT.  8. THE CLIENT SHALL, AT THEIR DISCRETION, EMPLOY A SOILS CONSULTANT AND TESTING FIRM TO ENSURE THE  THE CLIENT SHALL, AT THEIR DISCRETION, EMPLOY A SOILS CONSULTANT AND TESTING FIRM TO ENSURE THE  EXCAVATED AND FILL MATERIALS ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED TO SUPPORT THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS. THE  ENGINEER DOES NOT ASSUME ANY RESPONSIBILITY REGARDING THE SUITABILITY OF THE SOIL TO SUPPORT THE  PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS.  9. UPON COMPLETION OF EXCAVATION AND SHAPING OF STORM WATER DETENTION AREAS INTENDED TO MAINTAIN A  UPON COMPLETION OF EXCAVATION AND SHAPING OF STORM WATER DETENTION AREAS INTENDED TO MAINTAIN A  PERMANENT POOL OF WATER, ALL SILT SEAMS AND GRANULAR OR SANDY SOILS SHALL BE REMOVED TO A MINIMUM DEPTH OF THREE FEET BELOW THE SUBGRADE AND REPLACED WITH AN IMPERMEABLE CLAY LINER, INCLUDING  ADJACENT TO AND UNDER STORM SEWER INLETS AND OUTLETS. IT IS THE INTENT OF THESE PLANS THAT THE  CONTRACTOR SHALL PREPARE THE POND BOTTOMS, SIDE SLOPES, AND COMPACTION THEREOF SUCH THAT THE  PONDS WILL MAINTAIN THE PROPOSED NORMAL WATER LEVELS. 10. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL: THE CONTRACTOR SHALL: A. MAINTAIN POSITIVE SITE DRAINAGE AT ALL TIMES DURING CONSTRUCTION AND PREVENT STORM WATER FROM  MAINTAIN POSITIVE SITE DRAINAGE AT ALL TIMES DURING CONSTRUCTION AND PREVENT STORM WATER FROM  RUNNING INTO OR STANDING IN EXCAVATED AREAS.  B. SPREAD AND COMPACT UNIFORMLY ALL EXCESS TRENCH SPOILS AFTER COMPLETION OF THE UNDERGROUND  SPREAD AND COMPACT UNIFORMLY ALL EXCESS TRENCH SPOILS AFTER COMPLETION OF THE UNDERGROUND  UTILITIES. C. SCARIFY AND COMPACT THE UPPER TWELVE (12) INCHES OF THE SUITABLE SUBGRADE MATERIAL IN ALL  SCARIFY AND COMPACT THE UPPER TWELVE (12) INCHES OF THE SUITABLE SUBGRADE MATERIAL IN ALL  AREAS (EXCAVATED AND FILL) THAT MAY BE SOFT DUE TO EXCESS MOISTURE CONTENT.  D. PROVIDE WATER TO ADD TO DRY MATERIAL IN ORDER TO ADJUST MOISTURE CONTENT FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDE WATER TO ADD TO DRY MATERIAL IN ORDER TO ADJUST MOISTURE CONTENT FOR THE PURPOSE OF ACHIEVING THE SPECIFIED COMPACTION. E. BACKFILL THE CURB AND GUTTER AFTER ITS CONSTRUCTION AND PRIOR TO THE PLACEMENT OF BASE  BACKFILL THE CURB AND GUTTER AFTER ITS CONSTRUCTION AND PRIOR TO THE PLACEMENT OF BASE  COURSE MATERIAL.  F. IMPLEMENT AND MAINTAIN SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES PROVIDED ON THE PLANS.  IMPLEMENT AND MAINTAIN SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES PROVIDED ON THE PLANS.  G. LIME STABILIZE THE SUBGRADE MATERIAL IF REQUIRED BY THE SOILS CONSULTANT AND CLIENT.  LIME STABILIZE THE SUBGRADE MATERIAL IF REQUIRED BY THE SOILS CONSULTANT AND CLIENT.  11. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TESTING AND PROOF-ROLLING AS REQUIRED BY THE CLIENT AND JURISDICTIONAL  CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TESTING AND PROOF-ROLLING AS REQUIRED BY THE CLIENT AND JURISDICTIONAL  ENTITY. ANY UNSUITABLE AREAS ENCOUNTERED DURING TESTING SHALL BE REMOVED AND REPLACED WITH SUITABLE MATERIAL APPROVED BY THE SOILS CONSULTANT AND RETESTED. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT, CURB & GUTTER, AND WALKS: 1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL SUBGRADE COMPACTION AND PREPARATION TO THE PROPOSED THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL SUBGRADE COMPACTION AND PREPARATION TO THE PROPOSED SUBGRADE ELEVATIONS SHOWN ON THE PLANS.   2. CURB AND GUTTER SHALL BE AS SPECIFIED ON THE PLANS AND SHALL BE BACKFILLED AFTER ITS    CURB AND GUTTER SHALL BE AS SPECIFIED ON THE PLANS AND SHALL BE BACKFILLED AFTER ITS    CONSTRUCTION AND PRIOR TO THE PLACEMENT OF THE BASE COURSE. COMPACTED AGGREGATE UNDER THE CURB  SHALL BE CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL. DEPRESSIONS FOR DRIVEWAYS AND A.D.A. RAMPS SHALL BE INSTALLED PER  PLANS AND IDOT STANDARDS.  3. BITUMINOUS BINDER AND SURFACE COURSE SHALL BE HOT-MIX ASPHALT (HMA) OF TYPE AND COMPACTED  BITUMINOUS BINDER AND SURFACE COURSE SHALL BE HOT-MIX ASPHALT (HMA) OF TYPE AND COMPACTED  THICKNESS AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 406 OF THE IDOT SPECIFICATIONS. ALL  PAVING MATERIALS AND MIXES SHALL BE IDOT CERTIFIED.  4. PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE (PCC) PAVEMENT SHALL BE CLASS PV WITH 6x6-W2.9xW2.9 WELDED WIRE FABRIC  PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE (PCC) PAVEMENT SHALL BE CLASS PV WITH 6x6-W2.9xW2.9 WELDED WIRE FABRIC  AND CONSTRUCTED PER SECTION 420 OF THE IDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. ALL CONCRETE WORK SHALL BE  FINISHED WITH A BROOM FINISH.  5. CONTRACTOR SHALL SAW-CUT THE EXPOSED EDGES OF ALL EXISTING PAVEMENT ADJACENT TO ANY PROPOSED  CONTRACTOR SHALL SAW-CUT THE EXPOSED EDGES OF ALL EXISTING PAVEMENT ADJACENT TO ANY PROPOSED  PAVEMENT, APRON, SIDEWALK, CURB AND GUTTER, OR SIMILAR TO PROVIDE A SMOOTH, CLEAN EDGE THAT IS FREE OF LOOSE MATERIAL. A PROPER TRANSITION BUTT JOINT AND/OR TAPER SHALL BE PROVIDED.  6. THE TESTING OF THE SUBGRADE, AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, BITUMINOUS BASE COURSE, BINDER COURSE, SURFACE THE TESTING OF THE SUBGRADE, AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, BITUMINOUS BASE COURSE, BINDER COURSE, SURFACE COURSE, AND CONCRETE WORK SHALL BE REQUIRED AND PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE IDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE JURISDICTIONAL ENTITY.  7. PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY PAVING ACTIVITIES, A PROOF-ROLL OF THE SUB-GRAD SHALL BE  PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY PAVING ACTIVITIES, A PROOF-ROLL OF THE SUB-GRAD SHALL BE  PERFORMED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND APPROVED BY THE APPLICABLE JURISIDICTIONAL ENTITY. ALL AREAS NOT  PASSING THE PROOF-ROLL SHALL BE REMEDIATED AS RECOMMENDED BY THE SOILS/GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER AND APPROVED BY THE OWNER. ANY REMEDIATED AREAS SHALL BE RE-TESTED.  8. PRIOR TO THE INSTALLATION OF THE AGGREGATE BASE COURSE THE SUBGRADE SHALL BE PREPARED PER SECTION PRIOR TO THE INSTALLATION OF THE AGGREGATE BASE COURSE THE SUBGRADE SHALL BE PREPARED PER SECTION 301 OF THE IDOT SPECIFICATIONS. SUBGRADE SHALL BE COMPACTED AND PREPARED TO WITHIN 0.1-FT OF THE  PROPOSED SUBGRADE ELEVATION. SUBGRADE SHALL BE COMPACTED TO A MINIMUM OF 95% OF THE STANDARDPROCTOR DENSITY PER ASTM D1557.  9. PRIOR TO THE INSTALLATION OF THE BINDER COURSE, THE AGGREGATE BASE COURSE SHALL BE PREPARED IN  PRIOR TO THE INSTALLATION OF THE BINDER COURSE, THE AGGREGATE BASE COURSE SHALL BE PREPARED IN  ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 351 OF THE IDOT SPECIFICATIONS. AGGREGATE SHALL BE CLEAN AND DRY. BITUMINOUS  PRIMING MATERIAL SHALL BE APPLIED PER SECTION 403 OF THE IDOT SPECIFICATIONS AT A RATE OF 0.25  GALLONS PER SQUARE YARD.  10. PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF SURFACE COURSE, CONTRACTOR SHALL PATCH AND REPAIR ALL DAMAGED AND FAILED PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF SURFACE COURSE, CONTRACTOR SHALL PATCH AND REPAIR ALL DAMAGED AND FAILED AREAS IN THE BINDER COURSE, CURB AND GUTTER, AND CONCRETE PAVEMENT TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE  JURISDICTIONAL ENTITY AND OWNER. STRUCTURES WITHIN THE PAVEMENT SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO FINAL SURFACE  GRADE. CONTRACTOR SHALL CLEAN AND PRIME THE BINDER COURSE AT A RATE OF 0.05 GALLONS PER SQUARE  YARD.   11. CONCRETE SIDEWALK SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED TO THE WIDTH AND THICKNESS SHOWN ON THE PLANS. SIDEWALK  CONCRETE SIDEWALK SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED TO THE WIDTH AND THICKNESS SHOWN ON THE PLANS. SIDEWALK  SHALL BE THICKENED TO A MINIMUM OF 6" AT ALL DRIVEWAYS. ALL SIDEWALKS SHALL BE IDOT CLASS SI   CONCRETE ON AN AGGREGATE BASE AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS. SCORED CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL BE PROVIDED  AT FIVE FOOT INTERVALS AND EXPANSION JOINTS ( " PRE-MOLDED FIBER JOINT FILLER) SHALL BE PROVIDED AT  12" PRE-MOLDED FIBER JOINT FILLER) SHALL BE PROVIDED AT  MAXIMUM 50 FOOT INTERVALS AND ADJACENT TO CONCRETE CURBS, DRIVES, FOUNDATIONS, RAMPS, ETC. AS WELL AS WHEN MEETING EXISTING WALKS.   12. PAVEMENT MARKING SHALL BE FURNISHED AND INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 780 OF THE IDOT  PAVEMENT MARKING SHALL BE FURNISHED AND INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 780 OF THE IDOT  STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND MUTCD.  13. HANDICAP STALLS SHALL BE STRIPED AND SIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ILLINOIS ACCESSIBILITY CODE, LATEST HANDICAP STALLS SHALL BE STRIPED AND SIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ILLINOIS ACCESSIBILITY CODE, LATEST EDITION, AND OTHER APPLICABLE ADA GUIDELINES. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER AND WATER MAIN GENERAL NOTES: 1. ALL SANITARY SEWERS, STORM SEWERS, WATER MAINS AS WELL AS THEIR SERVICES AND OTHER RELATED ALL SANITARY SEWERS, STORM SEWERS, WATER MAINS AS WELL AS THEIR SERVICES AND OTHER RELATED APPURTENANCES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED AND TESTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LATEST EDITIONS OF THE   "STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR WATER AND SEWER CONSTRUCTION IN ILLINOIS" AND "IDOT'S STANDARD  SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION" IN ADDITION TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE APPLICABLE JURISDICTIONAL ENTITY. 2. SELECT GRANULAR TRENCH BACKFILL (IDOT CA-7) SHALL BE REQUIRED FOR ALL SEWER AND WATER MAIN  SELECT GRANULAR TRENCH BACKFILL (IDOT CA-7) SHALL BE REQUIRED FOR ALL SEWER AND WATER MAIN  TRENCHES LYING UNDER EXISTING OR PROPOSED STREETS, DRIVEWAYS, PARKING LOTS, CURB AND GUTTER,  SIDEWALKS, AND WITHIN FIVE FEET THEREOF, AND WHERE NOTED ON PLANS.  3. TRENCH EXCAVATION, BEDDING, HAUNCHING, AND INITIAL BACKFILL (IDOT CA-7) FOR TRENCHES SHALL BE PROVIDED TRENCH EXCAVATION, BEDDING, HAUNCHING, AND INITIAL BACKFILL (IDOT CA-7) FOR TRENCHES SHALL BE PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE TRENCH SECTION DETAIL AND SHALL BE CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL TO THE COST OF THE PIPE.  4. UNSUITABLE SOIL CONDITIONS BELOW THE DEPTH OF THE TRENCH BEDDING, AS DETERMINED BY THE SOILS/  UNSUITABLE SOIL CONDITIONS BELOW THE DEPTH OF THE TRENCH BEDDING, AS DETERMINED BY THE SOILS/  GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER, ENCOUNTERED DURING TRENCH EXCAVATION SHALL BE REMOVED AND REPLACED WITH  GRANULAR COMPACTED BEDDING MATERIAL AS DIRECTED BY THE SOILS/GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER OR  JURISDICATIONAL ENTITY.  5. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR DEWATERING ANY TRENCH EXCAVATIONS FOR THE INSTALLATION OF  CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR DEWATERING ANY TRENCH EXCAVATIONS FOR THE INSTALLATION OF  UNDERGROUND MAINS AND APPURTENANCES. DEWATERING SHALL BE CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL.  6. NON-SHEAR "BAND-SEAL" OR SIMILAR FLEXIBLE TYPE COUPLINGS SHALL BE USED WHEN CONNECTING SEWER  NON-SHEAR "BAND-SEAL" OR SIMILAR FLEXIBLE TYPE COUPLINGS SHALL BE USED WHEN CONNECTING SEWER  PIPES OF DISSIMILAR MATERIAL.  7. CONTRACTOR SHALL MARK THE LOCATIONS OF THE ENDS OF SERVICE STUBS WITH 4"x4" WOOD POSTS EXTENDING CONTRACTOR SHALL MARK THE LOCATIONS OF THE ENDS OF SERVICE STUBS WITH 4"x4" WOOD POSTS EXTENDING A MINIMUM OF THREE FEET ABOVE THE GROUND. THE TOP OF THE POSTS SHALL BE PAINTED GREEN FOR  SANITARY, WHITE FOR STORM, AND BLUE FOR WATER. CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP ACCURATE RECORDS OF SERVICE  CONNECTION LOCATIONS, INCLUDING DISTANCES FROM DOWNSTREAM MANHOLES FOR SANITARY SERVICES. ALL STUBS SHALL BE PROPERLY PLUGGED.   8. ALL STRUCTURES INCLUDING BUT LIMITED TO FRAMES AND GRATES/LIDS, CLEANOUTS, ETC. SHALL BE ADJUSTED ALL STRUCTURES INCLUDING BUT LIMITED TO FRAMES AND GRATES/LIDS, CLEANOUTS, ETC. SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO THE FINAL FINISHED GRADE ELEVATIONS. CONCRETE ADJUSTING RINGS, WHERE NECESSARY, SHALL  BE LIMITED BE LIMITED TO TWO(2) TOTALING NOT MORE THAN EIGHT (8) INCHES IN HEIGHT.   9. ALL SANITARY SEWERS, STORM SEWERS, WATER MAIN AS WELL AS THEIR SERVICES AND OTHER RELATED  ALL SANITARY SEWERS, STORM SEWERS, WATER MAIN AS WELL AS THEIR SERVICES AND OTHER RELATED  APPURTENANCES SHALL BE THOROUGHLY CLEANED PRIOR TO INSPECTION AND TESTING AND AT THE END OF THE PROJECT.  10. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE INSPECTIONS, TESTING, AND TELEVISING WITH THE APPLICABLE JURISDICTIONAL  CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE INSPECTIONS, TESTING, AND TELEVISING WITH THE APPLICABLE JURISDICTIONAL  ENTITY. THE COST OF CLEANING, TESTING, AND TELEVISING SHALL BE CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL.  11. ALL DEFICIENCIES AND DEFECTS OBSERVED AS WELL AS ANY NECESSARY CORRECTIVE WORK REQUIRED AS A  ALL DEFICIENCIES AND DEFECTS OBSERVED AS WELL AS ANY NECESSARY CORRECTIVE WORK REQUIRED AS A  RESULT OF TESTING OR TELEVISION INSPECTION SHALL BE PERFORMED BY THE CONTRACTOR AT NO ADDITIONAL  COST AND WITHOUT DELAY. ALL DIPS, CRACKS, LEAKS, IMPROPERLY SEALED JOINTS AND DEPARTURES FROM THE APPROVED GRADES AND ALIGNMENTS SHALL BE REPAIRED BY REMOVING AND REPLACING THE INVOLVED SECTIONS OF PIPE. UPON COMPLETION THEREOF, THE SEWER SHALL BE RETESTED AND/OR RE-TELEVISED. 12. MANHOLE STEPS SHALL BE GREY CAST IRON ASTM A48 OR POLYPROPYLENE COATED STEEL REINFORCING RODS MANHOLE STEPS SHALL BE GREY CAST IRON ASTM A48 OR POLYPROPYLENE COATED STEEL REINFORCING RODS WITH SLIP, LOAD, AND PULLOUT RATES PER OSHA REQUIREMENTS.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER MAIN PROTECTION REQUIREMENTS: WATER MAINS AND WATER SERVICE LINES SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM SANITARY SEWERS, STORM SEWERS,    COMBINED SEWERS, HOUSE SEWER CONNECTIONS AND DRAINS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 41 OF THE    STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR WATER AND SEWER CONSTRUCTION IN ILLINOIS AS FOLLOWS: VERTICAL SEPARATION:    1.  A WATER MAIN SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM A SEWER SO THAT  ITS INVERT IS A MINIMUM OF 1.  A WATER MAIN SHALL BE SEPARATED FROM A SEWER SO THAT  ITS INVERT IS A MINIMUM OF ITS INVERT IS A MINIMUM OF EIGHTEEN (18) INCHES ABOVE THE CROWN OF THE DRAIN OR SEWER WHENEVER WATER   MAINS CROSS STORM SEWERS, SANITARY SEWERS OR SEWER SERVICE CONNECTIONS. THE   VERTICAL SEPARATION SHALL BE MAINTAINED FOR THAT PORTION OF THE WATER MAIN LOCATED  WITHIN TEN (10) FEET HORIZONTALLY OF ANY SEWER OR DRAIN CROSSED. A  LENGTH OF  WATER MAIN PIPE SHALL BE CENTERED OVER THE  SEWER TO BE CROSSED WITH JOINTS   SEWER TO BE CROSSED WITH JOINTS   EQUIDISTANT FROM THE SEWER OF DRAIN.  2. BOTH THE WATER MAIN AND SEWER SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF SLIP-ON OR MECHANICAL  JOINT CAST OR  DUCTILE IRON PIPE. PRE-STRESSED CONCRETE PIPE, OR PVC PIPE EQUIVALENT TO WATER MAIN STANDARDS OF CONSTRUCTION WHEN:  (A)  IT IS IMPOSSIBLE TO OBTAIN THE PROPER VERTICAL SEPERATION AS DESCRIBED IN (1)  ABOVE; OR (B) THE WATER MAIN PASSES UNDER A SEWER OR DRAIN.        NOTES:  NOTES:        (1)   CASING OF EITHER THE WATER MAIN OR SEWER PIPE IS ACCEPTABLE IN LIEU OF PLACING (1)   CASING OF EITHER THE WATER MAIN OR SEWER PIPE IS ACCEPTABLE IN LIEU OF PLACING CASING OF EITHER THE WATER MAIN OR SEWER PIPE IS ACCEPTABLE IN LIEU OF PLACING THE SEWER IN WATER MAIN EQUIVALENT PIPE. (2)  THE STORM SEWER CAN BE CONSTRUCTED WITH REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE USING   FLEXIBLE GASKETS JOINTS, (ASTM C361, C443) INSTEAD OF CONSTRUCTING THE STORM  SEWER WITH WATER MAIN EQUIVALENT PIPE OR CASING PIPE.      3.  A VERTICAL SEPARATION OF EIGHTEEN (18) INCHES BETWEEN THE INVERT OF THE SEWER OR 3.  A VERTICAL SEPARATION OF EIGHTEEN (18) INCHES BETWEEN THE INVERT OF THE SEWER OR DRAIN AND THE CROWN OF THE WATER MAIN SHALL BE MAINTAINED WHERE A WATER MAIN  CROSSES UNDER A SEWER. SUPPORT THE SEWER OR DRAIN LINES TO PREVENT SETTLING AND  BREAKING THE MAIN, AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS OR AS APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.    4.  CONSTRUCTION OF WATER MAIN QUALITY PIPE SHALL EXTEND ON EACH SIDE OF THE   4.  CONSTRUCTION OF WATER MAIN QUALITY PIPE SHALL EXTEND ON EACH SIDE OF THE   CROSSING UNTIL THE PERPENDICULAR DISTANCE FROM THE WATER MAIN TO THE SEWER OR  DRAIN LINE IS AT LEAST TEN (10) FEET.    HORIZONTAL SEPARATION: 1. WATER MAINS SHALL BE LOCATED AT LEAST TEN (10) FEET HORIZONTALLY FROM ANY   EXISTING OR PROPOSED DRAIN, STORM SEWER, SANITARY SEWER, COMBINED SEWER OR SEWER  SERVICE CONNECTION.  2. WATER MAINS MAY BE LOCATED CLOSER THAN TEN (10) FEET TO A SEWER LINE WHEN:  (A)  LOCAL CONDITIONS PREVENT A LATERAL SEPARATION OF  TEN (10) FEET;  AND       TEN (10) FEET;  AND       (B)  THE WATER MAIN INVERT IS AT LEAST EIGHTEEN (18) INCHES ABOVE THE CROWN OF THE  SEWER; AND  (C)  THE WATER MAIN IS EITHER IN A SEPARATE TRENCH OR IN THE SAME TRENCH ON AN  UNDISTURBED EARTH SHELF LOCATED TO ONE SIDE OF THE SEWER. 3. WHEN IT IS IMPOSSIBLE TO MEET (1) OR (2) ABOVE, BOTH THE WATER MAIN AND DRAIN OR SEWER SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF SLIP-ON OR MECHANICAL JOINT CAST OR DUCTILE IRON  PIPE, PRE-STRESSED CONCRETE PIPE, OR PVC PIPE EQUIVALENT TO WATER MAIN STANDARDS OF             CONSTRUCTION. THE DRAIN OR SEWER SHALL BE PRESSURE TESTED TO THE MAXIMUM EXPECTED CONSTRUCTION. THE DRAIN OR SEWER SHALL BE PRESSURE TESTED TO THE MAXIMUM EXPECTED SURCHARGE HEAD BEFORE BACKFILLING. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHTING: 1. ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM WITH THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE, COMMONWEALTH EDISON POLICIES, AND THE  ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM WITH THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE, COMMONWEALTH EDISON POLICIES, AND THE  APPLICABLE REGULATIONS OF THE JURISDICTIONAL ENTITY.   2. PLANS SHOW LOCATION OF LIGHT POLES ONLY. THE DESIGN OF THE ELECTRIC SYSTEM REQUIRED TO POWER THE  PLANS SHOW LOCATION OF LIGHT POLES ONLY. THE DESIGN OF THE ELECTRIC SYSTEM REQUIRED TO POWER THE  LIGHTS SHALL BY OTHERS.   3. CLIENT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE DESIGN, PERMITTING, AND   CLIENT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE DESIGN, PERMITTING, AND   INSTALLATION OF THE COMPLETE LIGHTING SYSTEM (POWER, POLES, LIGHTS, ETC.). 4. CLIENT AND/OR CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH COMMONWEALTH EDISON, AS NECESSARY, REGARDING  CLIENT AND/OR CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH COMMONWEALTH EDISON, AS NECESSARY, REGARDING  EXISTING OR PROPOSED POWER TO THE SITE. CLIENT WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH COMMONWEALTH EDISON SUPPLYING POWER TO THE SITE.  5. IF LIGHTING SYSTEM IS CONSIDERED A PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT, CLIENT AND/OR CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE  IF LIGHTING SYSTEM IS CONSIDERED A PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT, CLIENT AND/OR CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE  WITH COMMONWEALTH EDISON AND THE JURISDICTIONAL ENTITY REGARDING TRANSFER OF STREET LIGHT SYSTEM TO3 JURISDICTIONAL ENTITY.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 9 FOR VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT SPECIFIC WATER, SANITARY, AND STORM SEWER SPECIFICATIONS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE        

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREST HILL, ILLINOIS  60403

AutoCAD SHX Text
815/730-1010

AutoCAD SHX Text
1207 CEDARWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS  -  LAND SURVEYORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTECH INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/14/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OASIS SENIOR LIVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
21074

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-15-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIM REV SUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-20-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-5-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6-2-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-15-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
10



AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)
AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)
AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand130)

1-800-892-0123

48 HOURS
JULIE

CALL

TP-1

EXISTING
TREE
PLAN

PROJECT NO.: JOB NO.:

DATE:
SCALE:
PLANNER:
DRAWN BY:
CHECKED:

SHEET

REVISIONS

L1721    9317

IRG Ives/Ryan
Group, Inc.

www.ivesryangroup.com

Landscape Architecture
Park & Recreation Design

Site & Community Planning

 c  2021 Ives/Ryan Group, Inc.
The drawings, specifications, design ideas, and
other information contained within as prepared
by the Landscape Architect and/or Land
Planner for this project are instruments of the
Landscape Architect's and/or Land Planner's
service, for use solely with respects to this
project and, unless otherwise provided, the
Landscape Architect and/or Land Planner shall
be deemed the author of these documents and
shall retain all common law, statutory, and
other rights, including copyright.  This drawing
is not to be reproduced without the expressed
written consent of IVES/RYAN GROUP, INC.

OASIS SENIOR
LIVING

FRANKFORT, IL

1" = 30'-0"

RTP
RTP/JMR

12/15/21

JMR

LEGEND

EXISTING DECIDUOUS TREE -
TO BE PRESERVED

EXISTING DECIDUOUS TREE  -
TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING EVERGREEN TREE -
TO BE REMOVED

#1 PRE.

#2 PRE. #3 PRE. #4 PRE. #5 PRE.

#6

#7

#8
#9

#10

#12

#11

#13

#14
#15

#16

#18

#17

#19

#20

#21
#22

#23 #24

#26
#25

#27
#28

#29

#30
#31

#32
#33

#34

#35

#36

#37
#38

#39

#40 #41
#42

#43
#44

#45
#46

#47

#48

#49

#50#51#52 #53

#54

#55#56

#57

#58#59

#60

#61 #62 #63

#64

#65

#68

#66#67

#70

#69
#71

#72

#73

#74
#75

#76

#77

#78

#79

#80

#81#82

#83

#84

#85

#86
#87

#88

#89

#90

#91

#93

#92

#94

#95

#96

#97 #98 PRE.

#99 PRE.

#100

#101

#102 PRE.

#103 PRE.

#104 PRE.

#105 PRE.

#106 PRE.

#107

#108

#98 PRE.

#97

#95

TREE PRESERVATION DETAIL
NTS

4' TALL DRIVEN STEEL POSTS @ 8' O.C. MAX.

ORANGE POLYETHYLENE SAFETY FENCING
PLACED AT OR BEYOND DRIP-LINE

ALL EXISTING LANDSCAPING NOTED FOR PRESERVATION, SHALL BE 
PROTECTED DURING CONSTRUCTION VIA PLASTIC SAFETY FENCING. 
FENCING SHALL BE 4' HIGH AND ATTACHED TO STEEL DRIVEN 
POSTS SET NO FARTHER THAN 8' O.C. IT SHALL BE INSTALLED AT 
THE PERIPHERY OF THE DRIP LINE OF EXISTING PLANT MATERIAL 
OR BEYOND TO PREVENT  STORAGE OF VEHICLES OR MATERIALS 
AND THE ENCROACHMENT OF GRADING AND CONSTRUCTION 

EQUIPMENT.

CONSTRUCTION FENCING SHALL BE ERECTED PRIOR TO ANY GRADING 
OR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITES-PREVENTING COMPACTION OF ROOT 
SYSTEMS OF EXISTING TREES AND SHRUBS.  THE FENCING SHALL 
ENCLOSE THE AREA BENEATH THE DRIP LINE OF THE TREE CANOPY 
AND SHALL REMAIN IN PLACE UNTIL ALL CONSTRUCTION IS 
COMPLETED. NO PARKING, MATERIAL STORAGE OR CONSTRUCTION 
ACTIVITIES SHALL BE PERMITTED WITHIN THE FENCED AREA.

0 30

SCALE  1" =30'-0"

6015 45

1741 S. Wiesbrook Road
Wheaton, IL 60189
PHONE: 630.7380725

1/11/22Per City Review1

25'

25'

25'

23'

23'
23'

1

2/15/22Per City Review2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEFORE YOU DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Every Day

AutoCAD SHX Text
Operates 24 Hours

cgruba
Received



1-800-892-0123

48 HOURS
JULIE

CALL

0 30

SCALE  1" =30'-0"

60 L-1

PRELIMINARY
LANDSCAPE

PLAN

PROJECT NO.: JOB NO.:

DATE:
SCALE:
PLANNER:
DRAWN BY:
CHECKED:

SHEET

REVISIONS

L1721    9317

IRG Ives/Ryan
Group, Inc.

www.ivesryangroup.com

Landscape Architecture
Park & Recreation Design

Site & Community Planning

1741 S. Wiesbrook Road
Wheaton, IL 60189
PHONE: 630.7380725

 c  2021 Ives/Ryan Group, Inc.
The drawings, specifications, design ideas, and
other information contained within as prepared
by the Landscape Architect and/or Land
Planner for this project are instruments of the
Landscape Architect's and/or Land Planner's
service, for use solely with respects to this
project and, unless otherwise provided, the
Landscape Architect and/or Land Planner shall
be deemed the author of these documents and
shall retain all common law, statutory, and
other rights, including copyright.  This drawing
is not to be reproduced without the expressed
written consent of IVES/RYAN GROUP, INC.

15 45

1" = 30'-0"

RTP
RTP/JMR

12/15/21

JMR

4- UF

LEGEND
DECIDUOUS STREET TREE - 2.5"

DECIDUOUS SITE TREE - 2.5"

DECIDUOUS PRES. REPLACEMENT TREE- 3.0"

ORNAMENTAL TREE - 2.5"/6' cl.

EVERGREEN TREE - 6'

EVERGREEN PRES. REPLACEMENT TREET 6'

EVERGREEN SHRUB - 24"/5 Gal.

LARGE DECIDUOUS SHRUB 36" BB/Cont..

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN

GENERAL SITE NOTES:

1. DECIDUOUS AND EVERGREEN TREE SPACING
SHALL BE AS SHOWN.

2. SELECTIVE PRUNING SHALL BE PERFORMED ON
TREES AND SHRUBS AS NECESSARY.

3. ALL TREES SHALL RECEIVE A 4' MULCH RING
FOLLOWING INSTALLATION.

OASIS SENIOR
LIVING

FRANKFORT, IL

Ex. Linden - 5"

Ex. Tree Lilcac - 3.5"

Ex. Crabapple - 8.5"

Ex. Hackberry - 5"

Ex. Hackberry - 5"

Ex. Tree Lilcac - 3"

Ex. Hackberry - 5"

Proposed Foundation Planting Beds TBD
Upon Completion Of project Architecture

Proposed Foundation Planting Beds TBD
Upon Completion Of project Architecture

1- POE

1- POE

1- CO

3- UF7- AFM

Ex. Serviceberry - 9'
Ex. Crabapple - 4"

3- PO
Ex. Crabapple - 4.5"

2- PGD
Ex. Crabapple - 4.5"

2- PO

1- PGD
Ex. Crabapple - 5"

13+16- JSG 1- QI
19- JGL1- CO 2- CO

1- PS
18- JGL

1- QI

1- P0

2- PS
13- JSG

1- P0

18- JSG
1- QI

2- P0
2- PGD

1- CO

2- PS
13- VLM

1- PO

1- PGD
1- GD

1- GD
13- JGL

1- POE
1- PGD

9- VLM 1- GD

1- AFM (Street Trees
On Private Propoerty)

4. ALL LAWN AREAS AND OFF-SITE AREAS DISTURBED
BY GRADING SHALL BE SEEDED AND COVERED WITH
NORTH AMERICAN GREEN S75 BLANKET OR AN APPROVED
EQUAL.

5. PLANT LOCATION MAY VARY PENDING FIELD
VERIFICATION OF GRADING AND UTILITIES.

6. SEE ENGINEERING PLANS FOR GRADING, UTILITIES,
EASEMENTS, RETAINING WALLS, ETC.

Proposed Foundation Planting Beds TBD
Upon Completion Of project Architecture

Proposed Foundation Planting Beds TBD
Upon Completion Of project Architecture

1- CO

6- TAR + 3- POE + 3- QB (Mixed)
(Replacement Deciduous Trees)

6- PA + 3- PS + 5- PO (Replacement Evergreen
Trees)

3- TAR + 4- GD + 2- QB (Mixed)
(Replacement Deciduous Trees)

3- PA + 6- PO + 5- PS (mixed)
(Replacement Evergreen Trees)

* NOTE: Street Trees on private property along
Lincoln Highway shall be adjusted as necessary
to avoid future conflict with existing overhead
utility lines.

1/11/22Per City Review1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Proposed Foundation Planting Beds TBD
Upon Completion Of project Architecture

9- TMD

9 + 6- TMD

6- TMD

15- POS

8+8- POS

4- PM + 3- PA (Mixed)
(Replacement Evergreen Trees)

4- PM + 2- PA (mixed)
(Replacement Evergreen Trees)

1- PM (Replacement Evergreen Tree)

1- PA + 2- PM (mixed)
Replacement Evergreen Trees)

8- JVC + 5- JVG (mixed)
(Replacement Evergreen
Trees)

6- JVC + 9- JVG (mixed)
(Replacement Evergreen
Trees)

3- QI (Replacement Shade Trees)

3- QI (Replacement Shade Trees)

3- POE + 2- TAR (mixed)
(Replacement Evergreen Trees)

2

2

2

2

2

2 2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2/15/22Per City Review2

1- CO

1- CO

#101

1- AFM (Street Trees
On Private Propoerty)

1

2- AFM (Street Trees
On Private Propoerty)

1

TREE REPLACEMENTS:

Deciduous Tree Caliper Removed: 283.0"
Deciduous Tree Caliper Replaced:   96.0"
                  (32 Replacement Trees @ 3")

Evergreen Tree Height Removed:       144'
Evergreen Tree Height Replaced:       438'
                    (73 Replacement Trees @ 6')

See Sheet TP-1 for tree removals and
preservation.

Existing Signage Plantings
To Remain

3

3

3

3

4/14/22Per City Review3

3

3

3

Decorative Fencing To Match
Subdivision Entrance Fencing (Typ.)

Decorative Fencing To Match
Subdivision Entrance Fencing (Typ.)

5/4/22Per City Review4

5

5

5

5

5

4

4

4

4

4
4

4

4

4

Add Fence & Wall5 6/2/22
Per City Review6 8/12/22

6

6

6

6

6

6

RECEIVED 8.17.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
S00°13'37"E 402.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°50'49"E 469.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°04'17"W 153.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
S79°52'54"W 292.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
S13°42'51"E 38.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
S20°03'07"E 64.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=567.00; A=216.49 CB=N02°52'00"W CHD=215.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
S08°04'56"W 124.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
693.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANI MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
699.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST LT W/ARM

AutoCAD SHX Text
131

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
139

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-6.12-BK

AutoCAD SHX Text
165

AutoCAD SHX Text
694.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
VV

AutoCAD SHX Text
231

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
232

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP 

AutoCAD SHX Text
289

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP 

AutoCAD SHX Text
294

AutoCAD SHX Text
FNC END

AutoCAD SHX Text
306

AutoCAD SHX Text
697.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
695.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
693.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
692.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEFORE YOU DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Every Day

AutoCAD SHX Text
Operates 24 Hours

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANT LIST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE/

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTANICAL NAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON NAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECIDUOUS SHADE TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
AFM

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
Acer f. 'Marmo'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Marmo Freeman Maple

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
GD

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gymnocladu d. 'Exspresso'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Exspresso Kentucky Coffee Tree

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
QB

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
Quercus bicolor

AutoCAD SHX Text
Swamp White Oak

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
UF

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ulmus 'Frontier'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Frontier Elm

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5" BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text
Picea omorika

AutoCAD SHX Text
Serbian Spruce

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
PS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Pinus strobus

AutoCAD SHX Text
Eastern White Pine

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECIDUOUS SHRUBS & SHRUB ROSES

AutoCAD SHX Text
POS

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
Physocarpus o. 'Seward'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Summer Wine Ninebark

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' BB/Cont.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'- O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VLM

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
Viburnum l. 'Mohican'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Mohican Nannyberry Viburnum

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'- O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN SHRUBS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JGL

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
Juniperus c. 'Gold Lace'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gold Lace Juniper

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" BB/Cont.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'- O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'- O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL & LABOR LIST:

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ITEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.Y.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Erosion Control- Straw

AutoCAD SHX Text
S75 Straw Erosion Control Blanket

AutoCAD SHX Text
10 Month Degradability

AutoCAD SHX Text
Available From: North American Green

AutoCAD SHX Text
PH: 1-800-772-2040

AutoCAD SHX Text
SY

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sod

AutoCAD SHX Text
Kentucky Bluegrass Blend (mineral base)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
Mulch

AutoCAD SHX Text
Shredded Hardwood Bark

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
QI

AutoCAD SHX Text
Quercus imbricaria

AutoCAD SHX Text
Shingle Oak

AutoCAD SHX Text
POE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Platinus o. 'Exclamation'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Exclamation London Planetree

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
Celtis occidentalis

AutoCAD SHX Text
Common Hackberry

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
PGD

AutoCAD SHX Text
Picea glauca 'Densata'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Black Hills Spruce

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
JSG

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
Juniperus c. 'Sea Green'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sea Green Juniper

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'- O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'- O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5" BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5" BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5" BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5" BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5" BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5" BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' BB/Cont.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GD

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gymnocladu d. 'Exspresso'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Exspresso Kentucky Coffee Tree

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
Platinus o. 'Exclamation'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Exclamation London Planetree

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
QB

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
Quercus bicolor

AutoCAD SHX Text
Swamp White Oak

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tilia a. 'Redmond'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Redmond American linden

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
Taxus m. 'Hicksii'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Hicks Yew

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'- O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
QI

AutoCAD SHX Text
Quercus imbricaria

AutoCAD SHX Text
Shingle Oak

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
PA

AutoCAD SHX Text
Picea abies

AutoCAD SHX Text
Norway Spruce

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Pseudotsuga meziesii

AutoCAD SHX Text
Eastern White Pine

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
JVG

AutoCAD SHX Text
Juniperus v. 'Glauca'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Silver Eastern Cedar

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
JVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
Juniperus v. 'Canaertii'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Canaerti Eastern Cedar

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
SY

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seed

AutoCAD SHX Text
Kentucky Bluegrass Blend (mineral base)

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.D.



VINES, GROUNDCOVERS & ANNUALS)
(PERENNIALS, ORNAMENTAL GRASSES

CONTAINER PLANTS TO PROMOTE
EXTERIOR ROOTS ON ROOT-BOUND
SLICE, CUT, OR SEPARATE

ROOT GROWTH.
DISTRIBUTOR FOR PRECISE DEPTHS.
OTHER PLANTING DEPTHS.  CONSULT BULB
CERTAIN BULBS/PERENNIALS MAY REQUIRE

BED PLANTING DETAIL

SEE SPECIFIC SPACING
DIMENSION ON DRAWINGS

NTS

GROUNDCOVER & PERENNIAL BEDS &

APPLY 18-6-12 OSMOCOTE (270 DAY)
TIMED RELEASED FERTILIZER TO

TIME RELEASED FERTILIZER TO

RECOMMENDATIONS.
ANNUAL BEDS PER MFRS.

14-14-14 OSMOCOTE (120 DAY)

DEPTH OF 9".  DO NOT COMPACT
UNNECESSARILY AFTER PLANTING

ROTOTILLED INTO SOIL TO A MIN.
MIN. OF 3" MUSHROOM COMPOST

SHALL BE TOPDRESSED WITH 2"
OF SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH

PERENNIALS & ORN. GRASSES 

SHALL BE TOPDRESSED WITH 2"
GROUNDCOVERS & ANNUALS

OF MUSHROOM COMPOST

EXISTING SUBGRADE

SPACING

ALL BED PLANTINGS
SHALL BE INSTALLED
WITH TRIANGULAR

9"-12"

PLANTING SOIL:

FINISHED GRADE

FORM MULCH SAUCER
AROUND PLANTING PIT

PINE BARK MULCH
2" OF SOUTHERN

1" OF SHREDDED
HARDWOOD MULCH

3/16" STEEL AIRCRAFT
CABLE

KEEP MULCH AWAY
FROM TRUNK

PREPARED BACKFILL

PEAT OR COMPOST.

AROUND THE ROOTBALL
BE REMOVED OR ROLLED DOWN
BURLAP & PLASTIC WRAP SHALL
SHALL BE REMOVED.  TREATED
TWINE AROUND THE TRUNK
BE REMOVED, HOWEVER ALL

45° OR LESS

OF 75% SOIL & 25%

UNTREATED BURLAP NEED NOT

NTS

TO MAINTAIN WIRE TAUTNESS

NEW 2-PLY 1/2" REINFORCED
RUBBER HOSE, 1/4" CABLE
CLAMP & 1/4" TURNBUCKLES

30" STEEL SCREW EARTH ANCHORS

2 TIMES BALL WIDTH

EVERGREEN TREEDECIDUOUS TREE

2 TIMES BALL WIDTH
DRAINAGE MATERIAL WHEN
WETNESS OR DRAINAGE 
PROBLEMS ENCOUNTERED

DRAINAGE TUBING AND/0R

NTS

2-PLY 1/2"
REINFORCED HOSE

FROM TRUNK
KEEP MULCH AWAY

AROUND PLANTING PIT
FORM MULCH SAUCER

HARDWOOD MULCH
3" OF SHREDDED

OF 75% SOIL & 25%
PEAT OR COMPOST.

PREPARED BACKFILL

45° OR LESS

3 METAL STAKES @ 8'

#12 GAUGE STEEL WIRE

UNTREATED BURLAP NEED NOT
BE REMOVED, HOWEVER ALL
TWINE AROUND THE TRUNK
SHALL BE REMOVED.  TREATED
BURLAP & PLASTIC WRAP SHALL
BE REMOVED OR ROLLED DOWN
AROUND THE ROOTBALL

NOTE: STAKING OF DECIDUOUS
TREES NOT REQUIRED UNLESS

PROTECTED W/ TREE WRAP.
SECURE WRAP W/ TWINE @
TOP & REMOVE THE NEXT

DO NOT STAKE INTO

TRUNK OF TREE SHALL BE

TREE WILL NOT REMAIN PLUMB.

SPRING

ROOTBALL

FINISHED GRADE

EXISTING SUBGRADE

SHRUBS
NTS

6"

PREPARED BACKFILL

PEAT OR COMPOST.
OF 75% SOIL & 25%

3" OF SHREDDED
HARDWOOD MULCH

SHALL BE REMOVED.  TREATED

UNTREATED BURLAP NEED NOT
BE REMOVED, HOWEVER ALL

AROUND THE ROOTBALL
BE REMOVED OR ROLLED DOWN
BURLAP & PLASTIC WRAP SHALL

TWINE AROUND THE TRUNK

L-2

GENERAL
NOTES &
DETAILS

PROJECT NO.: JOB NO.:

DATE:
SCALE:
PLANNER:
DRAWN BY:
CHECKED:

SHEET

REVISIONS

IRG Ives/Ryan
Group, Inc.

www.ivesryangroup.com

Landscape Architecture
Park & Recreation Design

Site & Community Planning

GENERAL NOTES:

Plant material shall be nursery grown and be either balled and bur-lapped or container
grown.  Sizes and spreads on plant list represent minimum requirements.

The requirements for measurement, branching and ball size shall conform to the latest
addition of ANSI Z60.1,  AMERICAN STANDARD OF NURSERY STOCK by the
American Nursery & Landscape Association.

Any materials with damaged or crooked/disfigured leaders, bark abrasion, sunscald,
insect damage, etc. are not acceptable and will be rejected.  Trees with multiple
leaders will be rejected unless called for in the plant list as multi-stem or clump (cl.).

If any mistakes, omissions, or discrepancies are found to exist with the work product,
the Landscape Architect shall be promptly notified so that they have the opportunity to
take any steps necessary to resolve the issue.  Failure to promptly notify the
Landscape Architect and the Owner of such conditions shall absolve them from any
responsibility for the consequences of such failure.

Under no circumstances should these plans be used for construction purposes without
examining actual locations of utilities on site, and reviewing all related documents
mentioned herein, including related documents prepared by the project Civil Engineer
and Architect.

Civil Engineering or Architectural base information has been provided by others.  The
location of various site improvements on this set of drawings is only illustrative and
should not be relied upon for construction purposes.

Quantity lists are supplied as a convenience.  However, Bidders and the Installing
Contractor should verify all quantities.  The drawings shall take precedence over the
lists.  Any discrepancies shall be reported to the Landscape Architect.

Actions taken without the knowledge and consent of the Owner and the Landscape
Architect or in contradiction to the Owner and the Landscape Architect's work product
or recommendations, shall become the responsibility not of the Owner and the
Landscape Architect, but for the parties responsible for the taking of such action.

Refer to Civil Engineering documents for detailed information regarding size, location,
depth and type of utilities, as well as locations of other site improvements, other than
landscape improvements,

Plant symbols illustrated on this plan are a graphic representation of proposed plant
material types and are intended to provide for visual clarity.  However, the symbols do
not necessarily represent actual plant spread at the time of installation.

All plant species specified are subject to availability. Material shortages in the
landscape industry may require substitutions. All substitutions must be approved by
the Village, Landscape Architect and Owner.

The Landscape Contractor shall verify location of all underground utilities prior to
digging by calling "J.U.L.I.E." (Joint Utility Location for Excavators) 1-800-892-0123
and any other public or private agency necessary for utility location.

All perennial, ornamental grass, groundcover and annual  beds shall be top dressed
with a minimum of three inches (3") of mushroom compost.  The top dressing shall be
worked into the soil to a minimum depth of nine inches (9") by the use of a cultivating
mechanism.  Upon completion perennials & ornamental grasses shall be mulched with
an additional two inch (2") layer of shredded wood mulch; Annuals & groundcovers
shall be covered with an additional two inch (2") layer of mushroom compost.

All other planting beds and tree saucers shall be mulched with a minimum of three
inches (3") of shredded wood mulch.

Planting beds adjacent to building shall be mulched in their entirety to the building
foundation.  Plant materials shall not be installed under building overhangs and other
such areas which do not receive natural rainfall.

All bed lines and tree saucers shall require a hand spaded edge between lawn and
mulched areas.

Grading shall provide slopes which are smooth and continuous. Positive drainage
shall be provided in all areas.

Sod shall be mineral base only.

Seed mixes shall be applied mechanically so that the seed is incorporated into the top
one-half inch (1/2") of the seed bed. The seed shall then be covered with the specified
blanket (installed per manufacturer's. specs) or Hydro-mulch.

All plant material shall be guaranteed for one (1) year from the date of acceptance.

 c  2021 Ives/Ryan Group, Inc.
The drawings, specifications, design ideas, and
other information contained within as prepared
by the Landscape Architect and/or Land
Planner for this project are instruments of the
Landscape Architect's and/or Land Planner's
service, for use solely with respects to this
project and, unless otherwise provided, the
Landscape Architect and/or Land Planner shall
be deemed the author of these documents and
shall retain all common law, statutory, and
other rights, including copyright.  This drawing
is not to be reproduced without the expressed
written consent of IVES/RYAN GROUP, INC.

GENERAL SITE NOTES:

1. DECIDUOUS AND EVERGREEN TREE SPACING
SHALL BE AS SHOWN.

2. SELECTIVE PRUNING SHALL BE PERFORMED ON
TREES AND SHRUBS AS NECESSARY.

3. ALL TREES SHALL RECEIVE A 4' MULCH RING
FOLLOWING INSTALLATION.

4. ALL LAWN AREAS AND OFF-SITE AREAS DISTURBED
BY GRADING SHALL BE SEEDED AND COVERED WITH
NORTH AMERICAN GREEN S75 BLANKET OR AN APPROVED
EQUAL.

5. PLANT LOCATION MAY VARY PENDING FIELD
VERIFICATION OF GRADING AND UTILITIES.

6. SEE ENGINEERING PLANS FOR GRADING, UTILITIES,
EASEMENTS, RETAINING WALLS, ETC.

1741 S. Wiesbrook Road
Wheaton, IL 60189
PHONE: 630.7380725

OASIS SENIOR
LIVING

FRANKFORT, IL

L1721    9317

RTP
RTP/JMR

12/15/21

JMR

N.T.S.

1/11/22Per City Review1
2/15/22Per City Review2
4/14/22Per City Review3

5/4/22Per City Review4
Add Fence & Wall5 6/2/22
Per City Review6 8/12/22



RECEIVED 8.9.22



cgruba
Received





.\OASIS FRANKFORT SITE REVISED 060222_image1.bmp .\OASIS FRANKFORT SITE REVISED 060222_image2.bmp

.\OASIS FRANKFORT SITE REVISED 060222_image3.bmp .\OASIS FRANKFORT SITE REVISED 060222_image4.bmp

.\OASIS FRANKFORT SITE REVISED 060222_image5.bmp .\OASIS FRANKFORT SITE REVISED 060222_image6.bmp

0.1

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.9

0.9

1.0

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.7

1.1

1.2

0.9

0.5

0.4

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.9

0.9

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.6

1.4

1.3

1.2

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.4

1.9

2.0

1.7

1.4

0.5

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.7

1.5

1.9

1.6

1.2

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.8

1.1

1.5

1.2

0.9

1.0

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.6

0.9

1.0

0.9

0.6

0.4

1.4

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.3

0.4

2.1

0.6

0.4

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.4

3.5

1.0

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.4

3.3

0.9

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.4

2.0

0.6

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.5

1.4

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

1.0

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.5

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.5

2.7

0.4

0.6

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.7

0.5

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.4

1.9

0.2

0.5

1.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

1.5

0.4

0.2

0.3

0.4

2.2

0.7

0.4

0.4

3.6

0.8

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.4

3.3

0.9

0.7

0.1

0.4

0.9

0.4

2.0

0.6

0.4

0.1

1.2

6.1

0.2

0.4

1.3

0.3

0.2

0.1

1.0

4.8

0.4

0.9

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.6

0.4

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.3

0.1

0.3

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.9

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.4

1.0

0.2

0.4

1.3

0.3

0.2

0.1

1.1

6.4

0.2

0.4

2.0

0.6

0.4

0.1

0.9

4.6

0.4

3.2

0.9

0.7

0.1

0.3

0.6

0.4

3.7

0.9

0.7

0.1

0.2

0.4

2.3

0.7

0.4

0.2

0.5

0.4

1.5

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.5

3.7

0.4

1.0

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.6

6.6

0.4

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.3

1.3

0.4

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.3

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.9

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.6

1.1

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.6

1.8

0.5

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

2.0

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.6

1.2

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.8

1.0

1.0

0.8

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.8

0.8

0.9

1.1

1.6

2.1

1.7

1.1

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.3

0.5

0.8

1.2

1.7

2.0

1.5

1.0

0.7

0.5

0.3

1.0

0.9

1.0

1.2

1.6

1.8

1.6

1.2

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.3

0.5

0.9

1.2

1.7

1.8

1.6

1.2

0.8

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

1.1

0.9

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.3

1.2

1.0

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.5

0.8

1.1

1.3

1.3

1.2

1.0

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.9

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.4

0.6

1.1

0.9

0.4

0.3

0.4

0.8

1.5

1.6

1.0

0.9

0.8

0.9

1.5

1.5

0.8

0.7

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.6

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

1.4

4.0

0.6

0.3

0.3

1.1

5.8

5.9

1.1

0.4

0.4

1.1

6.2

5.6

1.3

0.9

1.0

1.2

1.2

0.9

1.1

1.4

1.8

1.7

0.7

1.2

1.8

2.4

2.4

0.7

1.2

1.9

2.8

3.5

0.7

1.2

1.9

2.8

3.4

0.8

1.2

1.8

2.3

2.3

0.7

1.1

1.4

1.7

1.7

0.7

0.9

1.1

1.3

1.3

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.0

1.0

0.6

0.8

0.9

1.0

0.9

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.1

1.1

0.7

0.9

1.2

1.4

1.4

0.8

1.1

1.5

1.8

1.8

0.7

1.2

1.8

2.5

2.5

0.7

1.2

1.9

2.8

3.6

0.7

1.2

1.9

2.7

3.4

0.7

1.2

1.7

2.2

2.3

0.7

1.0

1.3

1.6

1.6

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.2

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.8

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.8

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.1

1.1

0.7

1.0

1.3

1.6

1.6

0.7

1.2

1.7

2.2

2.3

0.7

1.2

1.9

2.7

3.3

0.7

1.2

1.9

2.8

3.6

0.7

1.2

1.8

2.5

2.5

0.7

1.1

1.4

1.8

1.8

0.6

0.8

1.1

1.3

1.3

0.5

0.7

0.8

0.9

0.8

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.7

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.7

0.8

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.3

1.4

1.0

1.5

1.9

1.0

1.5

2.0

1.0

1.3

1.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

7.7

7.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.8

0.2

0.1

0.10.10.10.10.10.10.20.10.10.10.10.10.20.30.40.40.40.20.10.10.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.00.00.00.00.0

1.1

1.1SB-1

SA-1 SA-2 SA-3

W-1

W-2

W-3

W-4 W-5 W-6 W-7

SB-2

SB-3

SB-4

Statistics

Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min

Calc Zone Entire Site 0.4 fc 7.7 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A
Calc Zone Property Line 0.1 fc 1.1 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A
Calc Zone Parking Area 1.1 fc 7.4 fc 0.2 fc 37.0:1 5.5:1

Schedule

Symbol Label Image Quantity Manufacturer Catalog Number Description Number 
Lamps

Lumens 
Per Lamp

Light Loss 
Factor Wattage Plot

SA

3 Lithonia Lighting DSX1 LED P3 40K T4M 
MVOLT

DSX1 LED P3 40K T4M MVOLT 1 12308 0.95 102

SB

4 Lithonia Lighting DSX1 LED P1 40K T4M 
MVOLT HS

DSX1 LED P1 40K T4M MVOLT with 
houseside shield

1 5290 0.95 54

W

7 Lithonia Lighting WDGE1 LED P2 40K 
80CRI VW

WDGE1 LED WITH P2 - PERFORMANCE 
PACKAGE, 4000K, 80CRI, VISUAL 
COMFORT WIDE OPTIC

1 1982 0.95 15.0178

Luminaire Locations

No. Label X Y

Location

MH Orientation Tilt

1 SA 76.65 365.45 20.00 180.00 0.00
2 SA 186.15 365.70 20.00 180.00 0.00
3 SA 319.15 365.95 20.00 180.00 0.00
1 SB 428.65 347.70 20.00 180.00 0.00
2 SB 20.66 28.48 20.00 34.11 0.00
3 SB -4.10 117.20 20.00 90.00 0.00
4 SB -4.35 254.20 20.00 90.00 0.00
1 W 47.75 300.75 10.00 270.00 0.00
2 W 48.50 241.25 10.00 270.00 0.00
3 W 48.50 179.00 10.00 270.00 0.00
4 W 141.50 53.25 10.00 180.00 0.00
5 W 216.50 51.25 10.00 180.00 0.00
6 W 306.25 51.50 10.00 180.00 0.00
7 W 359.75 53.75 10.00 180.00 0.00

cgruba
Received



cgruba
Received


	Findings of Fact - Variance 9.8.22
	September 22, 2022 Agenda Packet
	9.22.22 PH Packet.pdf
	5. ChamClad warranty from internet.pdf
	COVERAGE UNDER THIS WARRANTY
	EXCLUSIONS AND LIMITATIONS UNDER THIS WARRANTY
	CLAIM PROCEDURES UNDER CHAMCLAD® WARRANTY
	CARE AND MAINTENANCE OF CHAMCLAD® PANELS

	9. Pics.pdf
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7
	8


	9.22.22 PH Packet.pdf
	7. pics- inside.pdf
	1
	2
	4
	5


	9.22.22 PH Packet.pdf
	4. Stormwater Report 4.14.22.pdf
	SKM_C224e22041409160
	GJN21074 Stomrwater Report - Rev 2
	App 2 - Storm Sewer Divides.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	STORM SEWER DIVIDES


	App 2 - Storm Sewer Divides.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	STORM SEWER DIVIDES




	5. Storm Sewer Analysis 6.8.22.pdf
	Existing Storm Capacity Memo
	master utility plan
	windy hill storm sewer areas
	ex stm 100 yr

	14. Site Plan 8.17.22.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SITE PLAN


	16. Improvement Plans 9.14.22.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	21074 Title Sheet-TITLE SHEET
	21074 base-EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN
	21074 base-GEOMETRIC PLAN
	21074 base-GRADING PLAN
	21074 base-UTILITY PLAN
	21074 SWPPP-STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN
	21074 base-EROSION CONTROL PLAN
	21074 Details-DETAILS - 1
	21074 Details-DETAILS - 2
	21074 Specifications-Specifications


	17. Tree Survey 2.16.22.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	TP 1 EXISTING TREE PLAN


	18. Landscape Plan 8.17.22.pdf
	21074 Frankfort Oasis Landscape_Plan - Rev 6
	Sheets and Views
	L 1 LANDSCAPE PLAN


	2022-06-02_Frankfort Oasis_Landscape_Plans-L-2  GENERAL NOTES & DETAILS
	Sheets and Views
	L-2  GENERAL NOTES & DETAILS
	OLE1




	22. Photometric Plan 6.8.22.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PHOTOMETRIC PLAN







